CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BEVERLY CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION

601 Bentley Avenue

Beverly, New Jersey 08010

www.beverlycityschool.org

REGULAR MEETING
Beverly City School 6:00 PM
December 14, 2023 Beverly School Library
AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

The New Jersey Open Public Meeting law was enacted to ensure the right of the public to have advance notice of and to
attend the meetings of public bodies at which any business affecting their interests is discussed or acted upon. In accordance
with the provisions of this Act, the Beverly City Board of Education has caused notice of this meeting to be given by having
the date, time, and place faxed to City Hall on Broad Street and advertised in the Burlington County Times in writing on
January 5, 2023. A copy was also submitted to the Beverly Post Office.

There will be two opportunities for public input at every Board of Education meeting. The first opportunity, titled “Public
Comment on Agenda ltems Only,” is your opportunity to provide comments to the Board of Education, prior to the Board
taking action. This opportunity is only for items that appear on the agenda.

The second opportunity, titled “Public Comment,” is your opportunity to ask questions or provide comment that may be of
interest to the educational welfare of the district but is not restricted to agenda items only.

At no time during these public comment periods will the Board allow disparaging remarks about students, district personnel,
or members of the Board of Education. In addition, the Board will not allow remarks about specific students or district
personnel. If such remarks are made, the Board President will declare the speaker out of order and will request the speaker
cease and desist from making such comments. Refusal to do so may result in removal from the Board meeting.

2. Pledge of Allegiance



CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

3. Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

4. President opens meeting

5. Board Member Comments on the Agenda
6. Public Comment on Agenda Items Only
7. Student Recognition

8. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the regular meeting minutes for November 16, 2023.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

MONTHLY FINANCIALS/CONTRACTS:

9. The following action items A through F will be considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further
discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and acted upon separately.

A. MOTION: To accept the financial Report of the Secretary for the month ending October 2023: Balance on hand
$3,805,427.11

Board Secretary’'s Month Certification
Budgetary Line Item Status

Certification of No Over-expenditures — Recommend acceptance that pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2,12(c)3, Dr. Brian F.
Savage, Board Secretary, certifies that as of October 2023, budgetary line item account has obligations and payments
(contracted orders) which in total exceed the amount appropriated by the District Board of Education pursuant to
N.J.S.A.18A:22-8 and 18A:22-8.1, which would be in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.12 (a), that the District financial accounts
have been reconciled and are in balance.



CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

School Business Administrator/Board Secretary Date

Board Certification — Recommend acceptance that through the adoption of this resolution, the Beverly City Board of
Education, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.12 (c) 4, certifies that as of October 2023, after review of the Secretary's monthly
financial report (appropriations section) and upon consultation with the Business Administrator and other appropriate district
officials, that to the best of our knowledge no major account or fund has been over-expended in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23-
2.12 (c)4 i-vi and that sufficient funds are available to meet the district's financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal
year.

B. MOTION: To accept the financial report of the Treasurer of School Monies ending October 2023.

C. MOTION: To approve to authorize the Business Administrator to make transfers within accounts for the month of October
2023.

D. MOTION: To approve the purchase orders in the amount of $119,678.50 for the month of December 2023.

E. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the bills totaling $440,051.42 for the month of
December 2023 to be paid, and the Secretary and the President be hereby authorized and directed to draw orders on the
Treasurer for the payment of same.

F. MOTION: To approve the gross payroll wages for the pay period ending November 15, 2023 in the amount of
$216,469.20 and the pay period ending November 30, 2023 in the amount of $212,734.50 in the total amount of
$429,203.70 for the month of November 2023.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

FINANCIALS/CONTRACTS:

10. The following action items A through C will be considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further
discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and acted upon separately.
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A. MOTION: To approve the following 2023-2024 school year tuition for out-of-district placement:

School # of Students Cost Effective Comments Total
BCSSSD 1 $47,740.00 12/4/2023/6/30/2024 Change in Program $47,740.00
Placement
Cinnaminson High 1 $3,474.70 ESY $3,474.70
School
Cinnaminson High 1 $35,828.92 9/1/2023-6/30/2024 $35,828.92
School

B. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the Memorandum of Agreement between Education
and Law Enforcement Officials.

C. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, Authorizing the Beverly City Board of Education to approve the 2022-2023 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) and the Auditor's Management Report (AMR) on Administrative Findings:
Financial Compliance and Performance. There are no findings or recommendations in the ACFR and AMR Reports.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth
PERSONNEL:

11.The following action items A through C will be considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further
discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and acted upon separately.

A.MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve Jeffrey Lake, substitute custodian, at the rate of
$18.50 per hour, effective December 15, 2023.

B. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the FMLA for Alyssa de la Pena, effective February
20, 2024 and will return September 1, 2024 (see attachment).

C. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve Heather Farrelly and Frankie DiMedio (Amy Hornbeck
will substitute if either teacher cannot attend) to conduct the Fundations Club for 8 weeks(once a week on Thursday's),
effective January 25, 2024 through March 14, 2024, at the rate of $40.50 per hour.
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Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION:

12. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the following projected enroliment for our Pre-
Kindergarten program fiscal year 2024-2025:

3 years old: 27
4 years old: 28

Special Education: 5

Total: 60
Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

13. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the professional development for Amy Hornbeck to
attend the PLC/Master Teacher & PIRS Workshop on December 6, 2023 at Summerfield Elementary School in Neptune,
NJ, there will be no cost to the district.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

14. Old Business -

- BPU Grant - ROD 5 Grant



CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
- Modular Building

15. New Business

16. Superintendent's Report:
A. Enroliment Report
B. Attendance Report

C. Nurse's Report
D. Discipline Report:

Total Suspensions: _0_

E. Drills
- Bomb Threat Drill - November 27, 2023 - 12:09 PM
MOTION: Executive Session Resolution:
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 allows for a Public Body to go into closed session during a Public Meeting, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the Beverly City School District has deemed it necessary to go into closed session to
discuss certain matters which are exempted from the Public; and

WHEREAS, the regular meeting of this Board of Education will reconvene at the conclusion of closed session, at
approximately p.m. this evening.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Education of the Beverly City School District will go into closed
session for the following reason(s) as outlined in N.J.S.A. 10:4-12;

Any matter involving the employment, appointment, termination of employment, terms and conditions of employment,
evaluation of the performance, promotion or disciplining of any specific prospective public officer or employee or current public
officer or employee employed or appointed by the public body, unless all individual employees or appointees whose rights
could be adversely affected request in writing that such matter or matters be discussed at a public meeting (Subject to the
balancing of the public’s interest and the employee’s privacy rights under South Jersey Publishing, 124 N.J. 478, the
employee(s) and nature of discussion is:

A. H.L.B. Case #1



By

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned subject(s)
may be made public at a time when the Board Attorney advises the Board of Education that the disclosure of the discussion
will not detrimentally affect any right, interest or duty of the School District or any other entity with respect to said discussion.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education, for the aforementioned reasons, hereby declares that the public
is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion shall take place and hereby directs the Board
Secretary to take the appropriate action to effectuate the terms of this resolution.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve to affirm the determinations of November 2023 HIB
reports, Case #1.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

F. H.I.B. Incidents:

_1 incidents reported: was confirmed bullying, determined to be non-HIB related or non-actionable
HIB,and __1 inconclusive.

Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth

17. Correspondence
18. Board Comments
19. Public Comments

20. Adjournment
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Roll Call
Barbara Kelly Robert Thibault
Ariel Pina Richard Wolbert

Susan E. Roth
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CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BEVERLY CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION
601 Bentley Avenue
Beverly, New Jersey 08010
www.beverlycityschool.org
REGULAR MEETING
Beverly City School 6:00 PM
November 16, 2023 Beverly School Library

Minutes

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Board President, Richard Wolbert and the following was read: The New
Jersey Open Public Meeting law was enacted to ensure the right of the public to have advance notice of and to attend the
meetings of public bodies at which any business affecting their interests is discussed or acted upon. In accordance with the
provisions of this Act, the Beverly City Board of Education has caused notice of this meeting to be given by having the date,
time, and place faxed to City Hall on Broad Street and advertised in the Burlington County Times in writing on January 5,
2023. A copy was also submitted to the Beverly Post Office.

There will be two opportunities for public input at every Board of Education meeting. The first opportunity, titled “Public
Comment on Agenda Items Only,” is your opportunity to provide comments to the Board of Education, prior to the Board
taking action. This opportunity is only for items that appear on the agenda.

The second opportunity, titled “Public Comment,” is your opportunity to ask questions or provide comment that may be of
interest to the educational welfare of the district but is not restricted to agenda items only.

At no time during these public comment periods will the Board allow disparaging remarks about students, district personnel,
or members of the Board of Education. In addition, the Board will not allow remarks about specific students or district
personnel. If such remarks are made, the Board President will declare the speaker out of order and will request the speaker
cease and desist from making such comments. Refusal to do so may result in removal from the Board meeting.

There were no members of the public present.

2. Mr. Wolbert led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Present Robert Thibault Absent
Ariel Pina Present Richard Wolbert Present
Susan E. Roth Present
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4. Richard Wolbert, Board President opened the meeting.
5. Board Member Comments on the Agenda

There were no Board Member comments on the agenda.
6. Public Comment on Agenda items Only

There were no Public comments on the agenda.

7. Student Recognition

There was no student recognition this month.

8. A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following, that the Board of Education
approve the regular meeting minutes for September 14, 2023 and October 26, 2023.

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative  Robert Thibault Absent
Avriel Pina Affirmative Richard Wolbert Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative

MONTHLY FINANCIALS/CONTRACTS:

9. A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following action items A through C will
be considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and
acted upon separately.

A. MOTION: To approve the purchase orders in the amount of $265,905.01 for the month of November 2023.

B. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the bills totaling $445,424.61 for the month of
November 2023 to be paid, and the Secretary and the President be hereby authorized and directed to draw orders on the
Treasurer for the payment of same.

C. MOTION: To approve the gross payroll wages for the pay period ending October 15, 2023 in the amount of $138,651.00
and the pay period ending October 31, 2023 in the amount of $136,613.99 in the total amount of $275,264.99 for the month
of October 2023.



Roll Call

Barbara Kelly
Ariel Pina
Susan E. Roth

Affirmative
Affirmative
Affirmative

FINANCIALS/CONTRACTS:

Robert Thibault
Richard Wolbert

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Absent
Affirmative

10. A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following 2023-2024 school year tuition
for out-of-district placement:

School # of Students Cost Effective Comments Total

Cinnaminson High 2 $3,474.00 ESY $6,948.00
School

Cinnaminson High 1 $37,054.00 9/1/2023-6/30/2024 $37,054.00
School

Cinnaminson High 1 $34,747.00 9/1/2023-6/30/2024 $34,747.00
School

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative  Robert Thibault Absent

Ariel Pina Affirmative  Richard Wolbert Affirmative

Susan E. Roth Affirmative

PERSONNEL:

11. Consent Agenda:

A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following action items A and B will be
considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and
acted upon separately.

AMOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the resignation of Jennifer Barrientos, Teacher,
effective December 22, 2023.
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B.MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve Christine Vinegra, Teacher, at the salary of
$90,321.00, MA+30, Step #19 prorated, anticipated start date January 15, 2024 through June 30, 2024.

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative ~ Robert Thibault Absent
Ariel Pina Affirmative Richard Wolbert Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative

CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION:

12. Consent Agenda:

A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following following action items A through
C will be considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further discussion may be pulled from the consent
agenda and acted upon separately.

A. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the Nursing Services Plan for the 2023-2024 school
year.

B.MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve Amie Jones, Social and Emotional Learning counselor,
as the social and emotional support counselor for the 2023-2024 school year, programming and counseling will be provided
to support healthy, safe, and drug-free behaviors and support academic achievement post-COVID 19 in the amount of
$500.00 per visit, not to exceed $8,000.00 for 16 visits.

C. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the following projected enrollment for our Pre-
Kindergarten program fiscal year 2024-2025.

3 year olds: 25
4 year olds: 28

Total: 53

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative ~ Robert Thibault Absent
Ariel Pina Affirmative Richard Wolbert Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

13. Consent Agenda:

A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following action items A and B will be
considered under consent agenda. Any item that requires further discussion may be pulled from the consent agenda and
acted upon separately.

A.MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the professional development for Donna Groves and
Melissa Shaw to attend the Strengthen Your Math Instruction for your English Language Learners Workshop on December
5, 2023, virtual, in the total amount of $279.00.

B. MOTION: BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Education approve the professional development for Caitlin Stone to
attend the NJDOE-OSE- Speech Language Community of Practice on December 13, 2023, February 21, 2024, and May 1,
2024 at The Learning Resource Center-Central, 200 Riverview Plaza, Trenton, NJ 08611, there will be no cost to the
district.

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative ~ Robert Thibault Absent
Ariel Pina Affirmative Richard Wolbert Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative

14. Old Business

- BPU Grant - Dr. Savage informed the Board of Education that the project is moving along well. The contractor has been
on site beginning work.

- Modular Building - The dumpster enclosure project is moving along with concrete being poured and brick work has begun.
15. New Business

- ROD 5 Grant - Dr. Savage contacted the State of New Jersey and is waiting for a response back. The District is looking
to make sure that the RODS grant money can be used because of the timing of the bid award. The District will be seeking
any waiver or rule exception possible.

16. Superintendent’s Report:

A. Enroliment Report: 333
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B. Attendance Report: 93%

C. Nurse's Report: The report is included for review.
D. Discipline Report:
Total Suspensions: 1

E. Drills

Fire Drill - November 6, 2023 - 9:41 AM - 3 minutes 43 seconds

F. H.L.B. Incidents:

1 incidents reported: 1 was confirmed bullying, 0 determined to be non-HIB related or non-actionable
HiB, and 0 inconclusive.

MOTION: Executive Session Resolution:

A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to approve the following: WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12
allows for a Public Body to go into closed session during a Public Meeting, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the Beverly City School District has deemed it necessary to go into closed session to
discuss certain matters which are exempted from the Public; and

WHEREAS, the regular meeting of this Board of Education will reconvene at the conclusion of closed session, at
approximately p.m. this evening.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Education of the Beverly City School District will go into closed
session for the following reason(s) as outlined in N.J.S.A. 10:4-12:

Any matter involving the employment, appointment, termination of employment, terms and conditions of employment,
evaluation of the performance, promotion or disciplining of any specific prospective public officer or employee or current public
officer or employee employed or appointed by the public body, unless all individual employees or appointees whose rights
could be adversely affected request in writing that such matter or matters be discussed at a public meeting (Subject to the
balancing of the public’s interest and the employee's privacy rights under South Jersey Publishing, 124 N.J. 478, the
employee(s) and nature of discussion is:

A. H..B. Case #1

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned subject(s)
may be made public at a time when the Board Attorney advises the Board of Education that the disclosure of the discussion
will not detrimentally affect any right, interest or duty of the School District or any other entity with respect to said discussion.
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Education, for the aforementioned reasons, hereby declares that the public
is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion shall take place and hereby directs the Board
Secretary to take the appropriate action to effectuate the terms of this resolution.

The Board of Education entered executive session at 6:23 p.m. and came out of executive session at 6:31 p.m.

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative
Ariel Pina Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative

17. Correspondence
There was no correspondence for the month.

18. Board Comments

There were no Board comments for the month.

19. Public Comments

Robert Thibault Absent
Richard Wolbert Affirmative

The public comments portion of the meeting was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at 6:32 p.m. There were no public

comments for the month.

A motion was made by Barbara Kelly and seconded by Ariel Pina to adjourn the Board of Education Meeting at 6:33 p.m.

Roll Call

Barbara Kelly Affirmative
Ariel Pina Affirmative
Susan E. Roth Affirmative

Respectfully submitted:

DBrearn, F Jc’waﬂ&

Brian F. Savage, Ed.D.

Staff Accountant/Board Secretary

Robert Thibault Absent
Richard Wolbert Affirmative
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11/28 3:40pm

---A S S

101
102-107
116
121

132
141

---RE S
301
302

ETS ---

Cash in bank

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital reserve Account

Tax levy receivable

Accounts receivable:
Interfund

Intergovernmental - State

OURCES ---
Estimated Revenues

Less Revenues

Total assets and resources

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
General Fund - Fund 10
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

ASSETS AND RESOURCES

$1,181,280.
$500.
$181,976.
$34,422.
$0.23
$941,606.34
$941,606.
$9,343,836.00
($2,159,320.90)
$7,184,515.
$9,524,300.

63
00
oo
12

57

10

42

e e ]

Page
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LIABILITIES ——-
Interfund Accounts Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
General Fund - Fund 10
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

($231,078.00)

($231,078.00)

Reserve for Encumbrances - Current Year $5,391,555.92

Less : Expenditures

Encumbrances

$392,738.95
$10,708,563.00
$2,244,979.39
$5,391,555.92
($7,636,535.31)
$3,072,027.69

402
FUND BALANCE
~~—~-Appropriated---
753

Reserved fund balance:
760 Reserved Fund Balance
601 Appropriations
602
603

Total Appropriated
~~—-Unappropriated--—-
770 Unreserved Fund Balance -~
303

Budgeted Fund Balance

TOTAL FUND BALANCE
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

$8,856,322.56

$2,263,782.86
($1,364,727.00)

$9,755,378.42
$9,524,300.42

Page
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Beverly City Board of Education
General Fund - Fund 10

RECAPITULATION OF FUND BALANCE:

Appropriations

Revenues

Less: Adjust for prior year encumb.

Budgeted Fund Balance

Recapitulation of Budgeted Fund Balance by Subfund

Fund 10 (includes 10, 11, 12, and 13)

TOTAL Budgeted Fund Balance

Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Budgeted Actual Variance
$10,708,563.00 $7,636,535.31 $3,072,027.69
($9,343,836.00)

($2,159,320.90)
($7,184,515.10)
$1,364,727.00 $5,477,214.41 ($4,112,487.41)
$0.00 $0.00
$1,364,727.00 $5,477,214.41 ($4,112,487.41)
$1,364,727.00 $5,477,214.41 ($4,112,487.41)
$1,364,727.00 $5,477,214.41 ($4,112,487.41)

Page
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APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO

#*#* REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS ***

1XXX
3XXX
4AXXX

From Local Sources
From State Sources

From Federal Sources

TOTAL REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS

#*%% EXPENDITURES ***

——— CURRENT EXPENSE ---

11-1XX-100-XXX
11-2XX-100-XXX
11-230-100-XXX
11-240-100-XXX
11-401-100-XxX
11-402-100-XxXX

Regular Programs - Instruction
Special Education - Instruction
Basic Skills - Remedial Instruction
Bilingual Education - Instruction
School-Spon. Cocurr. Acti-Instr

School-Spons. Athletics - Instruction

-=-- UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES ---

11-000-100-XXX
11-000-211-XXX
11-000-213-XXX
11-000-216~-XXX
11-000-217-XXX
11-000-218-XXX
11-000-219-XXX
11-000-221-XXX
11-000-222-XXX
11-000-223-XXX
11-000-230-XXX
11-000-240-XXX
11-000-25X-XXX
11-000-261-XXX
11-000-262-XXX
11-000-266-XXX
11-000-270-XXX
11-XXX-XXX-2XX

Instruction

Attendance and Social Work Services
Health Services

Speech, OT,PT & Related Svcs

Other Support Serv - Students Extra Srve
Guidance

Child Study Teams

Improv of Inst. - Instruc Staff
Educational Media Serv/School Library
Instructional Staff Training Services
Supp. Serv.-General Administration
Supp. Serv.-School Administration
Central Serv & Admin. Inform. Tech.
Require Maint. for School Facilities
Custodial Services

Security

Student Transportation Services
Allocated and Unallocated Benefits

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
DATE
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023
BUDGETED ACTUAL TO NOTE: OVER UNREALIZED
ESTIMATED DATE OR (UNDER) BALANCE
$2,859,773.00 $911,544.75 $1,948,228.25
$6,445,701.00 $1,219,448.00 $5,226,253.00
$38,362.00 $28,328.15 $10,033.85
$9,343,836.00 $2,159,320.90 $7,184,515.10
AVAILABLE
APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES BALANCE
$2,280,261.00 §525,867.45 $1,141,722.43 $612,671.12
$481,157.00 $109,188.90 $329,922.00 $42,046.10
$81,017.00 $14,175.92 $53,159.70 $13,681.38
$74,144.00 $14,745.20 $55,294.50 $4,104.30
$13,000.00 $2,601.00 $0.00 $10,399.00
$9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00
$3,129,944.00 $487,534.57 $1,801,650.92 $840,758.51
$42,369.00 $15,858.80 $23,530.31 $2,979.89
$142,669.00 $34,135.69 $107,499.53 $1,033.78
$184,768.00 $30,199.92 $113,260.37 $41,307.71
$9,500.00 $3,343.30 $0.00 $6,156.70
$105,051.00 $22,705.01 $81,184.42 $1,161.57
$275,996.00 $47,379.25 $148,845.68 $79,771.07
$230,344.00 $71,802.84 $146,877.24 $11,663.92
$4,920.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,920.00
$18,400.00 $13,468.00 $0.00 $4,932.00
$261,523.00 $97,088.53 $118,734.14 $45,700.33
$34,619.00 $9,564.72 $16,018.16 $9,036.12
$158,268.00 $59,054.44 $81,237.52 $17,976.04
$155,000.00 $54,473.69 $24,372.42 $76,153.89
$476,960.00 $192,659.69 $133,695.98 $150,604.33
$56,804.00 $19,009.98 $33,009.07 $4,784.95
$498,581.00 $45,106.72 $256,026.81 $197,447.47
$1,165,279.00 $249,575.85 $725,514.72 $190,188.43
$9,889,574.00 $2,119,539.47 $5,391,555.92 $2,378,478.61

EXPENDITURES/USES OF FUNDS

4



REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO DATE

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

*#** EXPENDITURES - cont'd #*#** APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES

ENCUMBRANCES

Page

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

**# CAPITAL OUTLAY **#
12-XXX-XXX-73X Equipment $18,989.00 $18,989.00
12-000-4XX-XXX Facilities acquisition & constr. serv. $800,000.00 $106,450.92

$0.00

$0.00
$693,549.08

TOTAL CAP OUTLAY EXPEND./USES OF FUNDS $818,989.00 $125,439.92

$0.00

$693,549.08

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $10,708,563.00 $2,244,979.39

$5,391,555.92

$3,072,027.69

5



--- LOCAL SOURCES ---

1210

1XXX

Local Tax Levy

Miscellaneous

TOTAL LOCAL

==~ STATE SOURCES ---

3121
3131
3132
3176
3177
3178

Categorical Transportation Aid
Extraordinary Aid

Categorical Special Education Aid
Equalization

Categorical Security

Adjustment Aid

TOTAL

--- FEDERAL SQURCES ---

4200

4XXX

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Beverly City Board of Education

GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES

ACTUAL COMPARED WITH ESTIMATED
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Federal Grants including Medicaid Reimbursement

Other Federal Aids

TOTAL

-== OTHER FINANCING SOURCES =---

TOTAL REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ACTUAL UNREALIZED

$2,846,899.00 $749,226.00 $2,097,673.00
$12,874.00 $162,318.75 ($149,444.75)
$2,859,773.00 $911,544.75 $1,948,228.25
$193,173.00 $179,773.00 $13,400.00
$65,000.00 $189,349.00 ($124,349.00)
$182,606.00 $182,606.00 .00
$5,141,344.00 $562,451.00 $4,578,893.00
$105,269.00 $105,269.00 .00
$758,309.00 .00 $758,309.00
$6,445,701.00 $1,219,448.00 $5,226,253.00
$16,142.00 $4,775.55 $11,366.45
$22,220.00 $23,552.60 ($1,332.60)
$38,362.00 $28,328.15 $10,033.85
$9,343,836.00 $2,159,320.90 $7,184,515.10

Page

6
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REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Beverly City Board of Education

GENERAL FUND - FUND 10

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS

COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance

*** GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE #**

--- Regular Programs - Instruction ---

11-105-100-101 Preschool - Salaries of Teachers $16,000.09 $2,526.33 §13,473.76 .00

11-110-100-101 Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers $143,492.00 $27,699.38 $100,723.90 $15,068.72

11-120-100-101 Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers $718,436.91 $149,534.02 $476,959.84 $91,943.05

11-130-100-101 Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers $615,411.00 $122,592.44 $447,773.62 $45,044.94

--- Regular Programs - Home Instruction ---

11-150-100-101 Salaries of Teachers $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00

11-150-100-320 Purchased Prof.-Ed. Services $3,000.00 .00 .00 $3,000.00

--- Regular Programs - Undistr. Instruction ---

11-190-100-106 Other Salaries for Instruction $426,916.00 $42,597.10 .00 $384,318.90

11-190-100-320 Purchased Prof.-Ed. Services $62,000.00 .00 .00 $62,000.00

11-190-100-340 Purchased Technical Services $63,000.00 $37,521.43 $25,449.49 $29.08

11-190-100-500 Other Purch. Serv. (400-500 series) $40,000.00 $9,808.71 $28,009.89 $2,181.40

11-190-100-610 General Supplies $134,500.00 $116,103.72 $15,683.53 $2,712.75

11-190-100-640 Textbooks $51,505.00 $17,484.32 $33,648.40 $372.28

11-190-100-800 Other Objects $3,000.00 .00 .00 $3,000.00
TOTAL $2,280,261.00 $525,867.45 $1,141,722.43 $612,671.12

-—— SPECIAL EDUCATION -~ INSTRUCTION ---

Learning and/or Language Disabilities Mild or Moderate:

11-204-100-101 Salaries of Teachers $160,103.00 $31,604.40 $117,616.50 $10,882.10

11-204-100-106 Other Salaries for Instruction $2,560.00 $2,560.00 .00 .00

11-204-100-610 General Supplies $1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
TOTAL $163,663.00 $34,164.40 $117,616.50 $11,882.10

Resource Room/Resource Center:

11-213-100-101 Salaries of Teachers $302,994.00 $66,334.80 $212,305.50 $24,353.70

11-213-100-106 Other Salaries for Instruction $8,500.00 $8,240.00 .00 $§260.00

11-213-100-610 General supplies $6,000.00 $449.70 .00 $5,550.30
TOTAL $317,494.00 $75,024.50 $212,305.50 $30,164.00

TOTAL SPECIAL ED - INSTRUCTION $481,157.00 $109,188.90 $329,922.00 $42,046.10

~—- Basic Skills/Remedial-Instruction ---

11-230-100-101 Salaries of Teachers $81,017.00 $14,175.92 $53,159.70 $13,681.38
TOTAL $81,017.00 $14,175.92 $53,159.70 $13,681.38

--- Bilingual Education-Instruction ---

11-240-100-101 Salaries of Teachers $74,144.00 $14,745.20 $55,294.50 $4,104.30
TOTAL $74,144.00 $14,745.20 $55,294.50 $4,104.30

--- School spons.cocurricular activities-Instruction ---

11-401-100-100 Salaries $10,000.00 $2,601.00 .00 $7,399.00

11-401-100-500 Purchased Services (300-500 series) $3,000.00 .00 .00 $3,000.00
TOTAL $13,000.00 $2,601.00 $0.00 $10,399.00

--- School sponsored athletics-Instruct. ---
11-402-100-100 Salaries $5,000.00 .00 .00 $5,000.00



Page 8
Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance
11-402-100-600 Supplies and Materials $4,000.00 .00 .00 $4,000.00
TOTAL $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00
--- UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES ---
=== Instruction ---
11-000-100-561 Tuition to Other LEAs within State Regular $736,450.00 $223,896.96 $511,775.12 $777.92
11-000-100-562 Tuition to Other LEAs within State Special $618,429.00 $127,016.41 $292,200.60 $199,211.99
11-000-100-563 Tuition to Co.Voc.School Dist.-reg. $231,407.00 $69,415.20 $161,968.80 $23.00
11-000-100-565 Tuition to Co.Spec.Serv. & Reg. Day schls $1,359,931.00 $67,206.00 $754,413.00 $538,312.00
11-000-100-566 Tuition to Priv Sch for Disbl w/i State $154,639.00 .00 $81,293.40 $73,345.60
11-000-100-568 Tuition - State Facilities $29,088.00 .00 .00 $29,088.00
TOTAL $3,129,944.00 $487,534.57 $1,801,650.92 $840,758.51
--- Attendance and social work services ---
11-000-211-100 Salaries $40,069.00 $13,577.36 $23,530.31 $2,961.33
11-000-211-300 Purchased Prof. & Tech. Sve. $2,300.00 §2,281.44 .00 $18.56
TOTAL $42,369.00 $15,858.80 $23,530.31 $2,979.89
--- Health services ---
11-000-213-100 Salaries $97,419.00 $23,248.65 $74,104.06 $66.29
11-000-213-300 Purchased Prof. & Tech. Svc. $41,250.00 $9,912.25 $31,028.75 $309.00
11-000-213-600 Supplies and Materials $3,500.00 $974.79 $2,366.72 $158.49
11-000-213-800 Other Objects $500.00 .00 .00 $500.00
TOTAL $142,669.00 $34,135.69 $107,499.53 $1,033.78
~=~- Speech, OT,PT & Related Svcs ---
11-000-216-100 Salaries $74,568.00 $14,905.20 $55,894.50 $3,768.30
11-000-216-320 Purchased Prof. Ed. Services $108,200.00 $15,294.72 $57,265.87 $35,639.41
11-000-216-600 Supplies and Materials $2,000.00 .00 $100.00 $1,900.00
TOTAL $184,768.00 $30,199.92 $113,260.37 $41,307.71
--- Other support services - Students - Extra Srvec
11-000-217-100 Salaries $3,500.00 §3,343.30 .00 $156.70
11-000-217-320 Purchased Prof. Ed. Services $6,000.00 .00 .00 $6,000.00
TOTAL $9,500.00 $3,343.30 $0.00 $6,156.70
--- Guidance ---
11-000-218-105 Sal Secr. & Clerical Asst. $15,851.00 $5,457.50 $9,396.93 $996.57
11-000-218-320 Purchased Prof. - Ed. Services $9,200.00 $8,685.00 $350.00 $165.00
11-000-218-390 Other Purch. Prof. & Tech Svc. $80,000.00 $8,562.51 $71,437.49 .00
TOTAL $105,051.00 $22,705.01 $81,184.42 $1,161.57
--=- Child Study Teams ---
11-000-219-104 Salaries Other Prof. Staff $188,357.00 $37,825.47 $139,634.33 $10,897.20
11-000-219-105 Sal Secr. & Clerical Asst. $25,972.00 $7,019.88 $9,198.91 $9,753.21
11-000-219-320 Purchased Prof. - Ed. Services $24,500.00 .00 .00 $24,500.00
11-000-219-390 Other Purch. Prof. & Tech Svc. $32,587.00 $2,405.14 .00 $30,181.86

11-000-219-600 Supplies and Materials $2,800.00 $128.76 $12.44 $2,658.80



11-000-219-800

=-- Improv. of
11-000-221-102
11-000-221-104
11-000-221-105
11-000-221-11%
11-000-221-390
11-000-221-600

Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Other Objects

instr. Serv. ---

Salaries Superv. of Instr.
Salaries Other Prof. Staff
Sal Secr. & Clerical Asst.
Other Salaries

Other Purch. Prof. & Tech Svec.
Supplies and Materials

--- Educational media serv./sch.library ---

11-000-222-300
11-000-222-500
11-000-222-600
11-000-222-800

Purchased Prof. & Tech Svc.
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

--- Instructional Staff Training Services ---

11-000-223-3590
11-000-223-500

Other Purch. Prof. & Tech Sve.

Other Purchased Services

--- Support services-general administration ---

11-000-230-100
11-000-230-331
11-000-230-332
11-000-230-339
11-000-230-340
11-000-230-530
11-000-230-585
11-000-230-590
11-000-230-610
11-000-230-890
11-000-230-895

Salaries

Legal Services

Audit Fees

Other Purchased Prof. Svc.
Purchased Tech. Services
Communications/Telephone

BOE Other Purchased Prof. Svc.
Misc Purchased Services (400-500)
General Supplies

Misc.
BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Expenditures

--- Support services-school administration ---

11-000-240-105
11-000-240-600
11-000-240-800

Sal Secr. & Clerical Asst.
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

--- Central Services ---

11-000-251-100
11-000-251-340
11-000-251-592

Salaries

Purchased Technical Services

Page

Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance

$1,780.00 .00 .00 $1,780.00
TOTAL $275,996.00 $47,379.25 $148,845.68 $79,771.07
$208,514.00 $62,786.67 $136,538.96 $9,188.37
$8,000.00 $2,739.07 $4,840.12 $420.81
$2,600.00 $853.05 $1,507.44 $239.51
$6,000.00 $2,066.35 $3,651.45 $282.20
$3,300.00 $3,295.00 .00 $5.00
$1,930.00 $62.70 $339.27 $1,528.03
TOTAL $230,344.00 $71,802.84 $146,877.24 $11,663.92
$1,420.00 .00 .00 $1,420.00
(400-500 series) $1,500.00 .00 .00 $1,500.00
$1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
$1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
TOTAL $4,920.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,920.00
$1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
(400-500 series) $17,400.00 $13,468.00 .00 $3,932.00
TOTAL $18,400.00 $13,468.00 $0.00 $4,932.00
$182,523.00 $58,993.07 $108,981.53 $14,548.40
$26,000.00 $795.00 $9,205.00 $16,000.00
$20,000.00 $19,500.00 .00 $500.00
$4,965.00 $4,965.00 .00 .00
$1,035.00 .00 .00 $1,035.00
$6,000.00 $1,673.70 $173.70 $4,152.60
$1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
$5,000.00 $674.77 $0.00 $4,325.23
$4,000.00 $2,232.09 $373.91 $1,394.00
$3,000.00 $500.00 .00 $2,500.00
$8,000.00 $§7,754.90 .00 $245.10
TOTAL $261,523.00 $97,088.53 $118,734.14 $45,700.33
$30,619.00 $9,064.72 $16,018.16 $5,536.12
$3,500.00 .00 .00 $3,500.00
$500.00 $500.00 .00 .00
TOTAL $34,619.00 $9,564.72 $16,018.16 $9,036.12
$115,568.00 $39,453.97 $69,898.38 $6,215.65
$6,900.00 $2,490.09 $1,880.14 $2,529.77
$4,000.00 .00 .00 $4,000.00

Misc Pur Serv (400-500 seriess )



Beverly City Board of Education

GENERAL FUND -~

FUND 10

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Page 10

Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance
11-000-251-600 Supplies and Materials $4,000.00 $1,559.78 .00 $2,440.22
11-000-251-89X Other Objects $2,700.00 .00 .00 $2,700.00
TOTAL $133,168.00 $43,503.84 $71,778.52 $17,885.64
=-- Admin. Info. Technology ---
11-000-252-340 Purchased Technical Services $25,100.00 $15,550.60 $9,459.00 $90.40
TOTAL $25,100.00 $15,550.60 $9,459.00 $90.40
TOTAL Cent. Sves. & Admin IT $158,268.00 $59,054.44 $81,237.52 $17,976.04
--- Required Maint.for School Facilities ~-~
11-000-261-420 Cleaning, Repair & Maint. Svc $120,000.00 $50,223.72 $16,520.13 $53,256.15
11-000-261-610 General Supplies $35,000.00 $4,249.97 $7,852.29 $22,897.74
TOTAL $155,000.00 $54,473.69 $24,372.42 $76,153.89
~== Custodial Services ---
11-000-262-1XX Salaries $106,759.00 $56,876.60 $15,040.81 $34,841.59
11-000-262-300 Purchased Prof. & Tech. Svec. $56,250.00 $49,003.55 $7,197.11 $49.34
11-000-262-420 Cleaning, Repair & Maint. Svec. $45,500.00 $18,570.56 $7,522.24 $19,407.20
11-000-262-441 Rental of Land & Bldgs Other Than Lease $18,000.00 $187.47 $517.53 $17,295.00
11-000-262-490 Other Purchased Property Svc. $4,000.00 $762.00 .00 $3,238.00
11-000-262-520 Insurance $56,701.00 $45,323.60 .00 $11,377.40
11-000-262-590 Misc. Purchased Services $7,000.00 .00 .00 $7,000.00
11-000-262-610 General Supplies $6,000.00 .00 .00 $6,000.00
11-000-262-621 Energy (Natural Gas) $76,250.00 $710.41 $29,289.59 $46,250.00
11-000-262-622 Energy (Electricity) $95,500.00 $21,225.50 $74,128.70 $145.80
11-000-262-8XX Other Objects $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
TOTAL $476,960.00 $192,659.69 $133,695.98 $150,604.33
-=-- Security ---
11-000-266-100 Salaries $56,804.00 $19,009.98 $33,009.07 $4,784.95
TOTAL $56,804.00 $19,009.98 $33,009.07 $4,784.95
TOTAL Oper & Maint of Plant Services $688,764.00 $266,143.36 $191,077.47 $231,543.17
--- Student transportation services ---
11-000-270-161 Sal Pupil Trans(Bet Home & Sch)-Sp Ed $38,697.00 $9,840.41 $19,449.83 $9,406.76
11-000-270-162 Sal Pupil Trans.Other than Bet Home & Sch $26,297.00 $8,801.01 $15,552.08 $1,943.91
11-000-270-503 Contr Svc-Aid in Lieu Paymnts-Non Pub Sch $40,000.00 ($5,928.00)

.00 $45,928.00
11-000-270-511 Contract Svc (btw Home & Sch.)-vendors $54,499.00 $10,723.64 $42,694.56 $1,080.80
11-000-270-512 Contract Svc (other btw home & sch)-vndrs $10,000.00 .00 .00 $10,000.00
11-000~270-514 Contract Svec (Sp Ed.)-vendors $10,000.00 .00 .00 $10,000.00
11-000-270-515 Contract Svc (Sp Ed.)-joint agreements $18,492.00 .00 .00 $18,492.00
11-000-270-517 Contract Svc (reg std) - ESCs $74,596.00 .00 .00 $74,596.00
11-000-270-518 Contract Svc (Sp Ed) - ESCs $220,000.00 $21,669.66 $178,330.34 $20,000.00
11-000-270-800 Misc, Expenditures $6,000.00 .00 .00 $6,000.00
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Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Available

Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance
TOTAL $498,581.00 $45,106.72 $256,026.81 $197,447.47

-—~ Personal Services-Employee Benefits---

11-XXX-XXX-210 Group Insurance $49,946.00 $9,103.00 .00 $40,843.00
11-XXX-XXX-220 Social Security Contributions $84,000.00 $23,917.74 $60,082.26 .00
11-XXX-XXX-241 Other Retirement Contrb. - PERS $80,000.00 $151.50 .00 $79,848.50
11-XXX-XXX-242 Other Retirement Contrb. - ERIP $1,000.00 .00 .00 $1,000.00
11-XXX-XXX-250 Unemployment Compensation $25,000.00 $7,601.87 $17,398.13 .00
11-XXX-XXX-260 Workman's Compensation $51,425.00 $25,657.22 .00 $25,767.78
11-XXX-XXX-270 Health Benefits $845,408.00 $181,064.48 $636,614.37 $27,729.15
11-XXX-XXX~280 Tuition Reimbursement $15,000.00 .00 .00 $15,000.00
11-XXX-XXX-290 Other Employee Benefits $13,500.00 $2,080.04 $11,419.96 .00
TOTAL $1,165,279.00 $249,575.85 $725,514.72 $190,188.43
Total Undistributed Expenditures $6,950,995.00 $1,452,961.00 $3,811,457.29 $1,686,576.71
*%% TQTAL CURRENT EXPENSE EXPENDITURES #*+* $9,889,574.00 $2,119,539.47 $5,391,555.92 $2,378,478.61
*#*% TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSE EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS **#* $9,889,574.00 $2,119,539.47 $5,391,555.92 $2,378,478.61
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GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
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Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance
*** CAPITAL OUTLAY ***
=== EQUIPMENT -——
Regular programs-instruction
12-120-100-730 Grades 1-5 $9,494.50 $9,494.50 .00 .00
12-130-100-730 Grades 6-8 $9,494.50 $9,494.50 .00 .00
Undist. Exp. - Non-instructional Services
TOTAL $18,989.00 $18,989.00 $0.00 $0.00
--- Facilities acquisition and construction services ---
12-000-400-390 Other Purchased Prof. & Tech Services $36,000.00 .00 .00 $36,000.00
12-000-400-450 Construction Services $664,000.00 $106,450.92 .00 $557,549.08
12-000-400-710 Land and improvements $100,000.00 .00 .00 $100,000.00
Sub Total $800,000.00 $106,450.92 $0.00 $693,549.08
TOTAL $800,000.00 $106,450.92 $0.00 $693,549.08

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES $818,989.00 $125,439.92 $0.00 $693,549.08



TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Beverly City Board of Education
GENERAL FUND - FUND 10
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances

Page

Available

Balance

$10,708,563.00 $2,244,979.39 $5,391,555.92

$3,072,027.69

13



REPORT OF THE SECRETARY CERTIFICATION PAGE
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
General Fund - Fund 10

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/2023

I, , Board Secretary/Business Administrator

certify that no line item a t has brances and ditures,

)

which in total exceed the line item appropriation in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.10(c)3.

Board Secretary/Business Administrator Date



All Accounts in the Expense Account File appear to be included in the details of THE REPORT OF THE SECRETARY




11/28 3:40pm

~~~-ASSETS ---

-~~-RESOURCES ---

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
School-Based Budget - Fund 15
Interim Balance Sheet

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

ASSETS AND RESOURCES

Page

1



Page 2
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Baverly City Board of Education
School-Based Budget - Fund 15
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE

---Appropriated---

Reserved fund balance:

---Unappropriated---



Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
School-Based Budget ~ Fund 15
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

RECAPITULATION OF FUND BALANCE:

Budgeted Actual Variance

Less: Adjust for prior year encumb. $0.00 $0.00




*#%* REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS ***

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

School-Based Budget - Fund 15

INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING

BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

Page

BUDGETED ACTUAL TO NOTE: OVER UNREALIZED
ESTIMATED DATE OR (UNDER) BALANCE
ESTIMATED ACTUAL UNREALIZED




*** APPROPRIATIONS #vr
—-- SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION ---
——- UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES ---

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

School-Based Budget - FUND 15
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances

Available

Balance

Page
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REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
School-Based Budget - Fund 15
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances

Available

Balance

Page




REPORT OF THE SECRETARY CERTIFICATION PAGE
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
School-Based Budget - Fund 15

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

I, , Board Secretary/Business Administrator

certify that no line item account has encumbrances and expenditures,

which in total exceed the line item appropriation in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.10(c)3.

Board Secretary/Business Administrator Date



All Accounts in the Expense Account File appear to be included in the details of THE REPORT OF THE SECRETARY




11/28 3:40pm

---ASSETS ---
101 Cash in bank
Accounts receivable:

141 Intergovernmental - State
142 Intergovernmental - Federal

~--RESOURCES ---

301 Estimated Revenues

302 Less Revenues

Total assets and resources

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20
Interim Balance Sheet

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

ASSETS AND RESOURCES

$118,062.94
$8,653.06

$1,168,877.00
($813,056.00)

$416,429.75

$126,716.00

$355,821.00

$898,966.75

Page



Page 2
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

---LIABILITIES -——~
481 Deferred revenues ($9,440.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES {$9,440.00)

FUND BALANCE

-——-Appropriated---

753 Resarve for encumbrances - Current Year $638,374.42
601 Appropriations $1,168,877.00

602 Less: Expenditures $260,470.25

603 Encumbrances $638,374.42

($898,844.67)
$270,032.33

TOTAL FUND BALANCE $908,406.75

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $898,966.75




*%* REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS #*#**
3XxXX From State Sources

4XXX From Federal Sources

TOTAL REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS

**+ EXPENDITURES ***

STATE PROJECTS:
Preschool Education Aid (218)

TOTAL STATE PROJECTS

FEDERAL PROJECTS:
ESSA Title I - Part A/D (231-239)
I.D.E.A. Part B (Handicapped) (250-259)
ESSA Title II - Part A/D (270-279)
ESSA Title IV (280-289)
ARP - ESSER Grant Program (487)
ARP - ESSER Accelerated Learning Coaching (488)

TOTAL FEDERAL PROJECTS

Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO DATE
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23
BUDGETED ACTUAL TO NOTE: OVER UNREALIZED
ESTIMATED DATE OR (UNDER}) BALANCE

$812,785.00 $812,785.00 .00
$356,092.00 $271.00 $355,821.00
$1,168,877.00 $813,056.00 $355,821.00

AVAILABLE

APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES BALANCE
$812,785.00 $185,171.76 $481,722.63 $145,890.61
$812,785.00 $185,171.76 $481,722.63 $145,890.61
$178,215.00 $21,712.48 $81,421.80 $75,080.72
$138,639.00 $44,526.01 $61,051.99 $33,061.00
$19,238.00 $5,060.00 $14,178.00 .00
$10,000.00 $4,000.00 .00 $6,000.00
$5,000.00 .00 .00 $5,000.00
$5,000.00 .00 .00 $5,000.00
$356,092.00 $75,298.49 $156,651.79 $124,141.72
$1,168,877.00 $260,470.25 $638,374.42 $270,032.33

*%* TOTAL EXPENDITURES *+**

3



REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Beverly City Board of Education

SPECIAL REVENUE - FUND 20
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
ACTUAL COMPARED WITH ESTIMATED

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

~== STATE SOURCES ---

3218

Preschool Education Aid

Total Revenue from State Sources

-~- FEDERAL SOURCES ---

4411-16
4420-29
4540
4541
4XXX

Title I

I.D.E.A. Part B (Handicapped)

ARP-ESSER Grant Program

ARP-ESSER Accelerated Learning Coaching
Other Federal Aids

Total Revenues from Federal Sources

TOTAL REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ACTUAL UNREALIZED
$812,785.00 $812,785.00 .00
$812,785.00 $812,785.00 $0.00
$178,215.00 $1.00 $178,214.00
$138,639.00 .00 $138,639.00

$5,000.00 .00 $5,000.00
$5,000.00 .00 $5,000.00
$29,238.00 $270.00 $28,968.00
$356,092.00 $271.00 $355,821.00
$1,168,877.00 $813,056.00 $355,821.00

Page
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Local Projects:
State Projects:

--- Preschool Education Aid - Instruction ---
20-218-100-101 Salaries of Teachers
20-218-100-106 Other Sal. For Instruction
20-218-100-321 Purchased Prof & Ed Services

Total Instruction

--- Preschool Education Aid - Support Services ---
20-218-200-102 salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
20-218-200-103
20-218-200-105
20-218-200-110 Other Salaries
20-218-200-173

Salaries of Program Directors

Salaries of Secr. And Clerical Assistants

20-218-200-176
20-218-200-200
20-218-200-330 Other Purchased Professional Services
20-218-200-420
20-218-200-800

Salaries of Master Teachers

Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services

Other Objects

Total Support Services

-- TOTAL Preschool Education Aid --

TOTAL STATE PROJECTS

Federal Projects:
--- CARES Act Educational Stabilization Fund ---
~-- Bridging the Digital Divide Program
--- Coronavirus Relief Grant Program ---

--- Other Federal Programs ---
20-231 to 20-239-XXX-XXX ESSA Title I - Part A/D
20-25X-XXX-XXX I.D.E.A. Part B
20-27X-XXX-XXX ESSA Title II - Part A/D
20-28X-XXX-XXX ESSA Title IV
20-487-XXX-XXX ARP-ESSER Grant Program
20-488-XXX-XXX ARP-ESSER Accelerated Learning Coaching
TOTAL Other Federal Programs

TOTAL FEDERAL PROJECTS

20-XXX-XXX-XXX All Other State/Fed/Loc Projects

Salaries of Community Parent Involvement Spec.

Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20
STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS - RESTRICTED STATE ENTITLEMENTS
COMPARED WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23
Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance
$271,950.00 $55,376.51 $202,076.20 $14,497.29
$99,835.00 $20,064.79 .00 $79,770.21
$800.00 .00 .00 $800.00
$372,585.00 $75,441.30 $202,076.20 $95,067.50
$28,860.00 $9,623.08 $17,832.26 $1,404.66
$40,330.00 $13,174.48 $25,206.30 $1,949.22
$35,276.00 $10,119.49 $21,796.54 $3,359.97
$65,804.00 $15,854.58 $30,366.05 $19,583.37
$18,547.00 $3,700.99 $13,772.17 $1,073.84
$93,046.00 $18,004.20 $67,515.75 $7,526.05
$136,411.00 $34,102.74 $102,308.26 .00
$3,000.00 .00 .00 $3,000.00
$10,426.00 .00 .00 $10,426.00
$500.00 .00 .00 $500.00
$432,200.00 $104,579.56 $278,797.33 $48,823.11
$804,785.00 $180,020.86 $480,873.53 $143,890.61
$804,785.00 $180,020.86 $480,873.53 $143,890.61
$178,215.00 $21,712.48 $81,421.80 $75,080.72
$138,639.00 $44,526.01 $61,051.99 $33,061.00
$19,238.00 $5,060.00 $14,178.00 .00
$10,000.00 $4,000.00 .00 $6,000.00
$5,000.00 .00 .00 $5,000.00
$5,000.00 .00 .00 $5,000.00
$356,092.00 $75,298.49 $156,651.79 $124,141.72
$356,092.00 $75,298.49 $156,651.79 $124,141.72
$8,000.00 $5,150.90 $849.10 $2,000.00
$1,168,877.00 $260,470.25 $638,374.42 $270,032.33

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

5



Page 6
Available
Appropriations Expenditures Encumbrances Balance




REPORT OF THE SECRETARY CERTIFICATION PAGE
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

1, , Board Secretary/Business Administrator

certify that no line item account has s and expenditures,

which in total exceed the line item appropriation in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.10(c)3.

Board Secretary/Business Administrator Date



All Accounts in the Expense Account File appear to be included in the details of THE REPORT OF THE SECRETARY




11/28 3:40pm

ASSETS ——-

Cash in bank
Accounts receivable:

Intergovernmental - State

RESOURCES ---

Total assets and resources

Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Capital Projects Fund - Fund 30
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

ASSETS AND RESOURCES

($48,624.56)

($185,244,00)

($185,244.00)

($233,868.56)



Page 2
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Capital Projects Fund - Fund 30
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE

---Appropriated---

-~-~-Unappropriated---

770 Fund balance ($233,868.56)
TOTAL FUND BALANCE ($233,868.56)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ($233,868.56)

===s==s===s=—ooac



*%% REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS #*#**

*%% EXPENDITURES #*¥%

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Capital Projects Fund - Fund 30
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO DATE
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

Page

BUDGETED ACTUAL TO NOTE: OVER UNREALIZED
ESTIMATED DATE OR (UNDER) BALANCE

AVAILABLE

APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES BALANCE

3



REPORT OF THE SECRETARY CERTIFICATION PAGE
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Capital Projects Fund - Fund 30
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

I, , Board Secretary/Business Administrator

certify that no line item account has b and expenditures,

which in total exceed the line item appropriation in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.10(c)3.

Board Secretary/Business Administrator Date



All Accounts in the Expense Account File appear to be included in the details of THE REPORT OF THE SECRETARY




Page
11/28 3:40pm REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Debt Service Fund - Fund 40
Interim Balance Sheet
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

ASSETS AND RESOURCES

~—-ASSETS ---

101 Cash in bank $0.84

-~-RESOURCES ——

301 Estimated Revenues $85,494.00
302 Less Revenues {§7,747.00)
$77,747.00
Total assets and resources $77,747.84

== —mrrocooooooe



FUND BALANCE

~=~=-Appropriated---

Reserved fund balance:

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Debt Service Fund - Fund 40
Interim Balance Sheet

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

601 Appropriations $85,494.00
602 Less : Expenditures $7,746.88
($7,746.88)
$77,747.12
Total Appropriated $77,747.12
~~~-Unappropriated---~
770 Fund Balance $0.72
TOTAL FUND BALANCE $§77,747.84
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $77,747.84
RECAPITULATION OF FUND BALANCE: Budgeted Actual Variance
Appropriations $85,494.00 $7,746.88 $77,747.12
Revenues ($85,494.00)
($7,747.00)
($77,747.00)
$0.00 ($0.12)
$0.12
--=- Change in Maint. / Capital reserve account ---
Subtotal $0.00 ($0.12)
$0.12
Less: Adjust for prior year encumb. $0.00 $0.00
Budgeted Fund Balance $0.00 ($0.12)
§0.12

Page
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REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education

Debt Service Fund - Fund 40
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO DATE
For 4§ Month Period Ending 10/31/23

BUDGETED ACTUAL TO NOTE: OVER UNREALIZED
ESTIMATED DATE OR (UNDER) BALANCE
*##** REVENUES/SOURCES OF FUNDS #**
--=- Local Sources ---
1210 Local tax levy $85,494.00 $7,747.00 $77,747.00
Total Local Sources $85,494.00 $7,747.00 $77,747.00

TOTAL REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS $85,494.00 $7,747.00 $77,747.00




Page
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Debt Service Fund - Fund 40
INTERIM STATEMENTS COMPARING
BUDGET REVENUE WITH ACTUAL TO DATE AND
APPROPRIATIONS WITH EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES TO DATE
For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23
AVAILABLE
*#* EXPENDITURES *** APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES/Enc. BALANCE
--- Additional State School Bldg. Aid - Ch. 10 ---
40-703-510-830 Interest $15,494.00 $7,746.88 $7,747.12
40-703-510-910 Redemption of principal $70,000.00 .00 $70,000.00
TOTAL $85,494.00 $7,746.88 $77,747.12
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS BEFORE TRANSFERS $85,494.00 $7,746.88 $77,747.12
*%% TOTAL USES OF FUNDS #*** $85,494.00 §7,746.88 §77,747.12




REPORT OF THE SECRETARY CERTIFICATION PAGE
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Beverly City Board of Education
Debt Service Fund - Fund 40

For 4 Month Period Ending 10/31/23

I, , Board Secretary/Business Administrator

certify that no line item account has brances and ditures,

P

which in total exceed the line item appropriation in violation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.10(c)3.

Board Secretary/Administrator Date



All Accounts in the Expense Account File appear to be included in the details of THE REPORT OF THE SECRETARY




Form A - 149

REPORT OF THE TREASURER TO THE BOAR

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOLS
ALL FUNDS

FOR THE MONTH ENDING October

(1)

Beginning
FUNDS Cash
Balance
REVISED
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
1 General Fund - Fund 10 2,758,496.61
2 0.00
3 ED JOBS - Fund 18 -
4 Special Revenue Fund - Fund 20 (see page 2) 691,464.37
5 Capital Project Fund - Fund 30 16,553.64
Debt Service Fund - Fund 40 48,811.70
6
Total Governmental Funds (Lines 1 thru 5) 3,515,326.32
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
7
10 Food Program Fund - Fund 60 248,983.43
8
9
11
12
Total Operating Account 3,764,309.75
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
13
14 Payroll 20,003.53
15 Payroll Agency - Fund 90 23,404.39
16 FSA account 3,127.06
17
Other - School Activities 10,083.41
18
Total Trust & Agency Funds (Lines 13 thru 15) 56,618.39
19
Total All Funds (Lines 6,12, and 16) 3,820,928.14




D OF EDUCATION

31, 2023
CASH REPORT
2) (3 4)
Cash Cash Ending
Receipts Disbursements Cash
This This Balance
Month Month
860,518.38 930,490.46 2,688,524.53
0.00
175,151.00 102,159.70 764,455.67
27.86 16,581.50
48,811.70
1,035,697.24 1,032,650.16 3,518,373.40
2,631.51 20,554.48 231,060.46 |
1,038,328.75 1,053,204.64 3,749.433.86
275,308.40 275,308.40 20,003.53
185,093.71 185,643.11 22,854.99
5.26 3,132.32
16.94 97.94 10,002.41
460,424.31 461,049.45 55,993.25
1,498,753.06 1,514,254.09 3,805,427.11

Reconciled
Bank Statements

16,581.50

3,749,433.86

#REF!

120,003.53
22,854.99
313232

10,002.41



Balance
Sheets

|

0.00

i

542158.51
541006.65
1151.86

14.36
2677.78
2692.14

(2,688,524.53)
(0.00)

(16,581.50)
(48,811.70)

0.00






Pablo Canela

Treasurer of School Moneys



12/2/2023




S PO ————







Form A - 149
Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name WSFS Bank
Account number General operating Acct
Statement Date October 31, 2023
Fund/Funds 10,,20,40,

1 | Balance per Bank
Reconciling ltems
Additions
Deposits in transit
Date Amount
2a
2b
2c
2d Total D.L.T.'s
2 Misc 2,349.85
3 Total Additions 2,349.85
Deductions
Outstanding Checks
4 (attached list) 823,462.11
5 Other (explain) -
6 Total Deductions 823,462.11
7 | Net Reconciling Items 1
8 ]Adjusted Balance per Bank As of October 31, 2023
*k
9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of 10/31/2023
Reconciling Items:
Additions
10 Interest Earned
11 Other (Explain) 0.20 | Pending journal entries
12 Total Additions 0.20
Deductions
13 Bank Charges
14 Other (Explain) (1,737,712.97) ] Pending journal entries
15 Total deductions (1,737,712.97)
16 | Net Reconciling items
17 Adjusted Board Secretary's Balance As of OctoE;él]“i_Z'(H)éB====

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

If for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt
service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary's report

Page 3a




Prepared b
Date:

4,553,964.62

Helth bene

(821,112.26)

3,732,852.36

1,995,139.18

1,737,713.17

3,732,852.36




Form A - 149

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name WSFS Bank
Account number REFERENDUM ACCT
Statement Date October 31, 2023
Fund/Funds FUND 30

1 |Balance per Bank

Reconciling Items

Additions
Deposits in transit
Date Amount
2a
2b
2¢c
2d Total D.I.T.s
2 Misc -
3 Total Additions -
Deductions

Qutstanding Checks
4 (attached list) -
5 Other (explain) -
6 Total Deductions -
7 | Net Reconciling ltems

8 |Adjusted Balance per Bank As of

October 31, 2023

9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of

10/31/2023

k%

Reconciling ltems:

Additions
10 Interest Earned -
11 Other (Explain) 65,206.06 | Pending journal entries
12 Total Additions 65,206.06
Deductions
13 Bank Charg_;es
14 Other {Explain) Pending joumnal entries
15 Total deductions -
16 | Net Reconciling items

17 Adjusted Board Secretary's Balance As of

Qctober 31, 2023

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

If for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt
service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary’s report

Pag_]e 3a.1




Prepared b
Date:

16,581.50

16,581.50

(48,624.56)

65,206.06

16,581.50




Form A - 149

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name WSFS Bank
Account number 2400000357
Statement Date October 31, 2023
Fund/Funds Net Payroll

I

Balance per Bank

Reconciling Items

17 Adjusted Board Secretary's Balance As of

Additions
Deposits in transit
) Date Amount
2a |
2D |
| 2¢ | Misc
ﬂ Misc
L Misc -
i Total Additions -
Deductions
Outstanding Checks

4 (attached list) 5,791.04

5 Other (explain) -

6 Total Deductions 5,791.04

7 | Net Reconciling Items

8 | Adjusted Balance per Bank As of October 31, 2023

*%

9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of
| Reconciling ltems:
- Additions

ﬂ Interest Earned

[11] Other (Explain)

E Total Additions -

[ | Deductions

[13] Bank Charges

14 Other (Explain)

|15 Total deductions -

16 | Net Reconciling items

*

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

ek

If for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt

service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary's report

Page 3c

n




Prepared b
Date:

=

25,794.57

(5,791.04)

20,003.53

m




Form A -

149

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name

WSFS Bank

Account numbe

r 6101433275

Statement Date

October 31, 2023

Fund/Funds

Payroll Agency (90)

1 |Balance per Bank

Reconciling Items

Additions
Deposits in transit
== Date Amount
23
[2b |
| 2¢ |
2d |
| 2 | MISC WSFS Bank
i Total Additions -
Deductions
QOutstanding Checks
4 (attached list) 6,035.02
5 Other (prior period voids) 2
6 Total Deductions 6,035.02
7 | Net Reconciling Items -

8 | Adjusted Balance per Bank As of

October 31, 2023

17 Adjusted B

oard Secretary's Balance As of

9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of **
S —

] Reconciling_] ltems:
= Additions
ﬂ Interest Earned
[11] Other (Explain)
2 Total Additions -
] Deductions
ifi Bank Charges
l Other (Explain)
_12 Total deductions -

16 | Net Reconciling items

*

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

If for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt
service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary's report

que 3d




Prepared b
Date:

28,890.01

(6,035.02)

22,854.99




Form A - 149

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name

WSFS Bank

Account number

2400000340

Statement Date

October 31, 2023

17 Adjusted Board Secretary's Balance As of

Fund/Funds School Activities
| | | | i
-1— Balance per Bank
Reconciling ltems
Additions
Deposits in transit
el Date Amount
23
2b
[2¢]
2d
2 | total D.LT.'s
|3 Total Additions
Deductions
Outstanding Checks
4 (attached list) 0.00
5 Other - due current fund 0.00
6 Total Deductions
7 | Net Reconciling Items
8 | Adjusted Balance per Bank As of October 31, 2023
See Page 3d for Summary
9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of **
] Reconciling ltems:
2] Additions
_l(_)_ Interest Earned
[11] Other {Explain)
12 Total Additions
[ | Deductions
3 Bank Cha&;es
14 Other (Explain)
E Total deductions
16 | Net Reconciling items
*

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

if for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt
service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary's report

Pag_;e 3h-e




Prepared b;
Date:

L
10,002.41
0.00
10,002.41
e




Form A - 149

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Name

WSFS Bank

Account number 9500064390

Statement Date

October 31, 2023

Fund/Funds

FSA account

Balance per Bank

17 Adjusted Board Secretary's Balance As of

Reconciling ltems
Additions
Deposits in transit

1954 Date Amount
23

2b
20
2d |
| 2 | total D.LT.'s

3 Total Additions
| Deductions

Outstanding Checks

4 (attached list) 0.00

5 Other - due current fund 0.00

6 Total Deductions

7 | Net Reconciling Items

8 | Adjusted Balance per Bank As of October 31, 2023

See Page 3d for Summary
9 |Balance per Board Secretary's Records As of **
Reconciling ltems:

Il Additions
ﬂ Interest Earned
1 Other (Explain)
[12] Total Additions
|| Deductions
2 Bank Charges

[14] Other (Explain)

1_5 Total deductions -

16 | Net Reconciling items

*

Line 8 MUST EQUAL line 17.

If for general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund or debt
service fund, must agree with amount per board secretary's report

Page 3h-f




Prepared b;
Date;

|
3,132.32
0.00
3,132.32




BEVERLY CITY SCHOOLS
ANALYSIS OF RECONCILING ITEMS
As of 10-31-23

FUND-10
cash per Board Secretary's Report ( Fund 10,16,17)

NEEDED GENERAL LEDGER ADJUSTMENTS:

Prior year diff 7-1-23 1,326,834.90
Audit adj - 6-30-21
July - June serv charges (61.44)
WIRE /PAYROLL POSTING (1,505.56)

Summer pay
Summer pay

7/25/2023 SUI




1,363,256.63

1,325,267.90




cash per Treasurer school monies report

FUND 20 20
cash per Board Secretary's Report -

NEEDED GENERAL LEDGER ADJUSTMENTS:

Prior year diff 7-1-23 348,025.92

cash per Treasurer school monies report

FUND 30
cash per Board Secretary's Report

NEEDED GENERAL LEDGER ADJUSTMENTS:

Prior year diff 6-30-21 65,095.79
Audit adj - 6-30-21
Due to current fund -payroll charges
Due to current fund disb adj
trsnfer from general fund
fund 30 acct check
Interest 110.27

cash per Treasurer school monies report

FUND 40
cash per Board Secretary's Report




2,688,524.53

416,429.75

348,025.92

764,455.67

(48,624.56)

65,206.06

16,581.50

0.84




NEEDED GENERAL LEDGER ADJUSTMENTS:

Prior year diff 6-30-21
Audit adj - 6-30-21

cash per Treasurer school monies report

MISC
FUND 60
cash per Balance Sheet.

NEEDED GENERAL LEDGER ADJUSTMENTS:

Prior year diff 7-1-23
Audit adj - 6-30-21

cash per Treasurer school monies report

48,810.86

15,608.49




48,810.86

48,811.70

215,451.97

15,608.49

231,060.46



BEVERLY CITY SCHOOLS
OUSTANDING CHECK LIST

10/31/2023

CHECK #

TIN

16502
17961
18116
18815
18870
19035
19086
19652
19653
21136
21845
22596
22605
22976
23357
23367
23992
24114
24156
24160
24731
24842
24854
24905
25021
25589
25792
25889
25922
25923
26072
26242

AMOUNT

34.65
867.83
1,605.20
7.50
180.00
600.00
437.50
12.40
14.20
391.68
32,981.00
11,720.00
36,399.00
8,287.50
166,061.03
200.00
500.00
31,023.70
158.00
211
500.00
1,250.00
39,871.00
1,150.00
5,793.48
23,500.20
437.00
300.00
535.50
495.00
16.24
421.16

365,771.87

CHECK #

26380

26786
26810

6813
26833
26864
26982
27114
27140
27218
27220
27233
27286

27304

27398
27399
27400
27402
27404
27405
27407
27408
27409
27410
27411
27413
27414
27416

AMOUNT

9,846.00

9.60
20.00
3.00
200.00

3,953.42
166.68

375.00
661.60
70.00

12,561.98

2,630.00
46,276.80
24,576.00

2,646.64

225.00
17.43
540.00
279.00
75.00
312.54
9,240.00
118.17
420.00
210.00

115,433.86

CHECK #

27418
27419
27421
27424
27427
27428
27429
27431
27433
27435
27436
27437
27438
47439
27440
27441
27442
27444
27445
27446
27447
27450
27451
27453
27454
27455
27458
27459
27462
27463



AMOUNT

15,009.66
3,295.00
7,161.96
5,937.47
3,846.25
7,286.50

219.70
5,100.00
8,628.50

400.00

51.70

680.88
1,495.00

750.00

254.25

23.76
6,954.44

345.53

839.00

19,059.48

227,975.60
1,045.00

797.50
7,886.22

171.84

929.31

757.92
9,212.10

354.20

230.00

336,698.77

PAGE 1
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OPERATING ACCOUNT

27467 1,013.19
27468 760.54
27469 198.50
27470 291.31
27471 442.80
27472 936.10
27473 1,915.17

5,557.61
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TOTAL OPERATING A

36,009.22
BEG BAL OS CKS
ISSUED
CASHED
void
NET PAYROLL ACCOUNT

202822 182.23
205215 167.61
206123 984.06
206225 539.01
207363 128.39
209414 1,470.75
211739 85.80
212824 5.27
214204 87.25
214205 198.20
216090 963.13
216862 307.27
217139 138.20
217513
218176 85.82

218362 448.05



CCT OS 823,462.11

473,908.97
512,197.99

(95,438.85)
(67,206.00)

823,462.11
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5,791.04 -

TOTAL O/S CHECKS -PAYROLL ACCT

BEG BAL OS CKS

ISSUED

CASHED
15,503.65
744.57

PAYROLL AGENCY

10539 14.20
11994 400.00
12391 272.86
19392 4,847.96
12393 500.00

6,035.02




5,791.04

5,791.04

5,791.04




5,720.54

5,720.54



BEG BAL OS CKS

FUND REF NDUM A

18

BEG BAL OS CKS

ISSUED
CASHED
void

NT

7,872.05
10,490.41
(12,327.44)

6,035.02
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ISSUED
CASHED
void
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Beverly City Board of Education

wasqi 28 Fully Approved Requisitions converted into Entered Purchase
12/14/2023 Orders.

Reqg# PO# Req. by Vendor Ship Attention Total Price
24-00290 24-00290 DBRYSONRE DECKER EQUIPTMENT, INC. 000 2,301.65
24-00291 24-00291 gBRYSONRE INTERACTIVE KIDS ED SERVICES, LLC 000 9,687.50
24-00292 24-00292 gBRYSONRE THE BILINGUAL CHILD STUDY TEAM 000 4,400.00
24-00293 24-00293 gBRYSONRE PEARSON ASSESSMENTS 000 C.LIGHT 167.40
24-00294 24-00294 gBRYSONRE STAPLES ADVANTAGE 000 A. SANCHEZ 184.39
24-00295 24-00295 gBRYSONRE STAPLES ADVANTAGE 000 K.LAWLER 3,164.10
24-00296 24-00296 gBRYSONRE CMRS-FP 000 1,000.00
24-00297 24-00297 SBRYSONRE JAY'S LANDSCAPING,LLC 000 2,170.00
24-00298 24-00298 gBRYSONRE PARA PLUS TRANSLATIONS, INC. 000 296.00
24-00299 24-00299 <l;lBRYSONRE GIACOBBE, ELIZABETH 000 1,278.00
24-00300 24-00300 gBRYSONRE SCHOOL SPECIALTY, LLC. 000 CALIMER 5243
24-00301 24-00301 gBRYSONRE LAKESHORE LEARNING MAT. 000 SPRATT 79.96
24-00302 24-00302 gBRYSONRE WOODBURN PRESS 000 VESPE 343.00
24-00303 24-00303 gBRYSONRE PYRAMID EDUCATION CONSULTANTS 000 C.STONE 95.00
24-00304 24-00304 gBRYSONRE DE LONG SERVICE COMPANY, INC. 000 2,507.50
24-00305 24-00305 gBRYSONRE SCHOOL SPECIALTY, LLC. 000 HORNBECK 552.89
24-00307 24-00307 gBRYSONRE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES UNIT 000 30,000.00
24-00306 24-00306 gBRYSONRE DAFELDECKER ASSOCIATES, LLC 000 150.00
24-00308 24-00308 gBRYSONRE WISCONSIN CENTER FOR EDU 000 JODI GOTTLIEB 240.00
24-00309 24-00309 gBRYSONRE KEYSTONE ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. 000 21,543.89
24-00310 24-00310 gBRYSONRE NJMVC REVENUE PROCESSING 000 50.00
24-00311 24-00311 (I:BRYSONRE BUCKEYE INTERNATIONAL, INC 000 1,634.16
24-00312 24-00312 SBRYSONRE SAVAGE, BRIAN 000 1,284.36
24-00313 24-00313 gBRYSONRE KENNEY, GROSS, KOVATS & PARTON 000 3,220.00
24-00314 24-00314 gBRYSONRE GENERAL CHEMICAL CO. 000 683.83
24-00315 24-00315 gBRYSONRE SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP. 000 1,397.04
24-00316 24-00316 gBRYSONRE CM3 BUILDING SOLUTIONS INC 000 1,158.00

Run on 12/12/2023 at 01:54:57 PM

Page 1



!

Beverly City Board of Education

vwaeqt 28 Fully Approved Requisitions converted into Entered Purchase

12/14/2023 Orders.
h

Req# PO# Req. by Vendor Ship Attention Total Price

ﬁ
Q

24-00317 24-00317 DBRYSONRE CM3 BUILDING SOLUTIONS INC 000 166.00
Q

Run on 12/12/2023 at 01:54:57 PM Page 2



Beverly City Board of Education
vaeet 3 Fully Approved Requisitions converted into Entered Purchase

0205

12/14/2023 Orders.

Req# PO# Req. by Vendor Ship Attention Total Price

24-00318 24-00318 DBRYSONRE WILLINGBORO BOARD OF EDUCATION 000 27,325.00
Q

24-00319 24-00319 DBRYSONRE CAMDEN CO. EDUCATIONAL SVC. 000 1,780.20
Q

24-00320 24-00320 DBRYSONRE PEARSON CLINICAL 000 C.STONE 97.20
Q

Run on 12/13/2023 at 11:36:02 AM Page 1
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Beverly City Board of Education
va_areq One (1) Fully Approved Requisition converted into an Entered

020514

12/14/2023 Purchase Order.

Req# PO# Req. by Vendor Ship Attention Total Price

24-00321 24-00321 DBRYSONRE GREAT PLUMBERS 000 669.00
Q

Run on 12/13/2023 at 12:06:23 PM Page 1



1 abeg

621 1LOMLSIA

0¥'9.8'92$ T00DHS dIHSNMOL NOSNINVNNIO 104 [ejo1
00°068'} L£612 SWI NOILO3YYOD LINLAON-Ld3S  dD
95'LEE' L LESIT JW €202 030-1d3S  dD
0Lvib'E JARIXA ‘4'W-€20C AS3 dd
¥¥'G0L'E FA%YXA SIr €202 03a dd

0L 'viV'E 1€5.2 dl €202 034 dO
oo'erl 9es6.¢ €/810918 40
0z'08.'t Ge6.le €LS0AY 40

oL'vLe'Les €661 JAN3AVYOV G1314X00Ng 104 [ej0 )
Sh'vll'9 pe8.Le Wr-€¢ 1.d3s dd

€T v8Y'6 ¥e6.2 Wr €2 120 dd
ye6Z1L'8 2T XA Wr €2 AON d0
80°92Z'L vesLZ WFrEzo3a do

SL°896'v$ 1652 /ONI SISHNN VAVAVE 40} [E10L
059206 €€6.¢C ¢8..8.81 dO
00°08¢C €€6.C 1900281 dd
G28LL' €€6/.C £6169/81 dd
00°099 €€6.¢ ¢9t1S.81 d0
0s'20¥'L €€6.¢ 916£9981 [= o]

[V VA 44 [A% Y4 L0E06v1 40
GG'1€0'9 1€6.C ar-€20¢ AON d0
ov'8cL'ee 0gsle 202 NI dO
Junowy ¥93y9d # %93yd aweN %99y oL Hway BINW , adA)

Jo uopduosag J99yo  yoayo
R

3NAa3 IvIdo3dS VITNOILINL /-
JNAa3 Ivid3dS VIT-NOILINL /-
aNAa3a vid3ads vaT-NOILINL /-
oNas3 Ivid3ds v3TNOoILINL /-
aNA3 vid3dS vITNOLLINL /-

ONYLSNI SANdAdNS TYH3INTO /-

¥3S JO¥d Ld/LO/HDO3AdS /-

JO0OHJS ALVAIRId-NOILINL /-
TOOHIS ILVAILd-NOILLINL /-
TOOHOS FLVAIYA-NOILINL /-
TOOHOS ILVAIRYd-NOILINL /-

a3/40dd G3svHOUNd HLIV3H /-
Q3/40dd G3SYHOHNd HLTV3H /-
03/40¥d G3SYHOHNd HLTV3H /-
a3/304d d3SvHOUNd HLTV3H /-
a3/304d a3svHOUNd HL1VY3H /-

ONYLSNI STNddNS TYHINEO /-

NOLLINL v3al /-

TO0HJS J0A OO-NOLLINL /-

WY 02:62-80 e £20e/vL/2l uo uny

181148 X28YD PUBH - dH lINd %98YD PUBH - JH [BllEd J8lndwo) - 40 [ind J8indwoD - 40 .

-¢95-001-000-L L
-295-001-000-L 1
~295-001-000-} 1
-¢95-001-000-L L
-296-001-000-}1 88200-vC
14144
/LO1MLS10 TOOIOHS dIHSNMOL NOSNIWVNNID
-019-001-061-}1 101L00-¥2
$S9€ /ONINYVYIT IOVONIO
-02€-912-000-} 1 61€00-v2
2861 I'ODAS TVYNOILYONA3 "0J NIAWVD

-996-004-000-L 1
-99G6-004-000-L 1
-99G6-001-000-1 1
-985-001-000-}¢ 29100-v2
€561 /AN3IAVIV AT3idMooNg

~00€-€12-000-L 1
-00€-€12-000-}1
-00€-€12-000-11
-00€-€12-000-11
-00€-€12-000-1 1 60200-v2
L6SZ /ONI S3SHNN vavAvea
-019-001-06}-t 1 68200-¥¢
€L¥Z 'ONI 37190N 2 SIANMVE
-005-001-062-02 €9100-¥2
$SPE /HLTVIHOUNIN L4OYHINYE
-€96-001-000-11 19100-vC
¢s6L /L1ro'g
9y pased

uondudsaq / # JUN09dY #0d

€202/SL/Z) S1 91eQ }93yD pue 505 seydjeg Jo}
JwieN J0pud A Ag 310day swre)) puy S[ig
uonednpy Jo pieoyg AN ALIAdY

sweN / # JOpUaA

gecoevirel
£262£0°GIING A




g abed WV 02-62:80 18 £c0a/vi/et uo uny
[eilied 308D PUBH - dH IINd 984D PUBH - JH [elied Jeindwo) - 42 ind sendwo) — 49 ,

601€ /38800VI9 HL3aVZIN3
90'629'22$ 8581 /LINN S3JIAY3AS TYNOILYONQA3 404 |BjoL
90°0S¥'9 YA L VXA €6€03¥2 - 03d do JOVHLINOD 03 4S 0S3 SNYHL /- -815-0.2-000-L1 26100-¥2
00°006 VAL VXA SLilezldA3g d0 H3S 40¥d Ld/LO/HD33dS /- -02€-912-000-4 1
00°009 VA 4T X4 leoleeldA3dg dd H3S Jd0¥d Ld/LO/HD3AdS /- -02€-912-000-L 1 2e200-v2
00'629'%1 VA 4° 7 X4 PARAIE) 74 dd AVYd N317 NI Al SNYYL /- -£06-042-000-¢1 10€00-¥¢
8581 /LINN S3JIAY3S TYNOILYONA3
0S°LES 9y6.2 1£000-10v2 d0 AY3S HOFL HOYNd 440 sng /- -0ve-1S2-000-L 1 S¥000-¥2
9882 /S3DIANIS VYLVA TVYNOILYONA3
g¢'80l [*1 4°7 X4 169.€61 40 JNYLSNI SAIMddNS TVHINID /- -019-001-061-L 1 9.200-¥C
€202 MOI18 Mola
0S°205°C$ 96¥€ /"ONI ‘ANVJINOD JDIANAS DNOT 30 404 [Bj0L
05°.€C b4 4°T%A 124434 dd HIvd3ay 403 AY3S a00d /- -02¥-01€-016-09
000lE't ha4°7XA [$34934 dO HIVd3y 403 AY3S 004 /- -02¥-01L£-016-09
00°098 b44° TR 4 L0ELP 40 Hlvd3y 403 AY3S Q004 /- -0¢v-01€-016-09 +0€00-¥2
96¥€ I'ONI ‘ANVAINOD 3DIAN3S ONO1 3a
00°/GE [ N4 VX4 -ebv8l d0 OAS TYOIT-NINGY NID /- -1€€-0€2-000-11 GS100-vC
1Z¥e 10d ‘Nigny g diAva
00°0S1 [4 4774 2950¢€C 40 JASNIIX3 OSIN SNYHL /- -008-0.2-000-L1 90€00-¥2
ZZ.€ 1971 ‘'SALVID0SSY ¥INO3A134va
L1'8lL1 [R4°7A 1182€0041 150668 #1OV dd OAS HO31 d3SYHOHNd /- -0¥E-001-061-L1 ¢S1L00-¥2
261 INOISIAITEaVO LSYOWNOD
00°052'2$ L6EE /DT 'HNND 10} ejoL
00°0S. [0)4°7%4 Sl 40 "3S 40¥d 1d/1O/HD33dS /- -02€-91¢-000-L 1 00200-¥¢C
00052 [0)4°7X4 [9)} 40 d3S 4049d 1d/LO/HDO3IdS /- -02€-912-000-L1
00°0S. [0)4°7X4 A\ [=0] H3S 40¥d 1Ld/1O/HDO33dS /- -02€-912-000-L} 89200-¥2
L6LE /197711 ‘HNND
00°000°L 6€S.¢ 659.20009 # LOV 40 FOVLSOd INOHA3ITIL /- -0€5-0€C-000-L1 96200-¥¢C
€.0€ /d3-SUND
00'991 8€6.¢ 12G29vC1 40 SHIVAIH/ONINYITO LNIVW /- -02-192-000-L1 21002
§98¢ /ONI SNOILNTTOS ONIaing ¢Nd
$93Y) PaIsog
JUNOWY Yo3UD # 493UD | SWEN %¥03UD OL HWIY RN  » odAL # AU UORALS3Q | # JUNOOOY #0d
10 uonduosag o8yD 3oeys SWEN / #J0pUSA
£Z0Z/SL/T) S! 838Q Y98YD PUE L5‘0§ Saydleg 10} 62021121
£262£0°GINg Bea
JuIeN J0PUI A Ag 110doy sunrg)) puv S[ig

uoneInpy Jo paeoyg A A[IAdY ;




GE'8E6'L 09s.2
00°021°2$
00042 65522
00'006'1 655.¢C
8E'¥6. 8662
05°289'6 2586.2
28'689'¢ 986.¢
GL8pS'e G5G/¢2
28'9ee's pssle
00699 £66.¢2
£8'€89 L§sle
£0°099'€$
00°ZEL'E 085.¢
€0'¥5e 0s5i¢
00viL 0ssie
09¥S2'2 6¥S.2
4k 33 8V5.i¢c
00'8/2°L 26sle

unowy %93y # ¥93yd

¢ abed

80012

40

£89€ /OT1'ONIdVYOSANY1 S.AV 40} [Ej0L

11956
15056

£202 AON

1891

260102€0€-€2 O3d

€202 AON

€¢0¢ 030

666.6

[AVAR AR

dd
40

dd

40

do

dd

dO

40

30

L9€Z /ONI AN3IAVIOV MiVd QT3IdHVO 04 [ejo)

OOW |-| -€2 1438
OOW 'rav linl €2 100
OOWN -4 €2 100

£¢0¢ 030

$20C NvI

ONYLSNI S3ITddNS TYHINIO

SWeN %93y o Jway BINW , adA}

dd

40

dd

40

dd

40

Jo uonduosaq ¥o8yd oayn

WY 0¢-62:80 I8 £202/b 1/t Uo uny

IBIEL 284D PUBH - dH [INd 984D PUBH - JH [BiUBd JenduwoD - 4o jind Jenduwod ~ 49 ,

SHIVdIH/ONINYITO LNIVIN /-

S30IAYIS LOVHINOD H3dO /-
S3IVINYIS LOVHLNOD ¥3dO /-

¥3S 40¥d Ld/LO/HDO3AdS /-

Y3S 40¥d Ld/LO/HOIAdS /-

S1143N38 H1TV3H H3HLO0 /-

Y3S 40¥d 1d/10/HO33dS /-

934 SAS 1INOO SNVl /-

SHIVdIW/ONINYITO LNIVIN /-

SYHIVdIY/ONINYITO LNIVIN /-

NOLLINL v3Al /-

NOILINL v3Qi /-

NOILINL v3ai /-

HYINO3Y VAT-NOILINL /-

AY3S HO31 HOYNd 440 sna /-

ONYLSNI S3INddNS TVHIANIO /-

£202/S1LIZ) 1 8)eQ X99YD pue L§'0s saydleq 10}
JuIBN I0pud A Ag ja0day swre)) puyv s[ig
uonedNpy Jo preoy A ALIAIY

uonduosaq / # JUNOIIY

9ZSE INOLYVd '8 SLYAOM ‘SSOUD ‘AINNIN
-02-192-000-1 1 18200-vC

61.¢
I'ONI “00 YIINRIAS ® NMV1 JHOHS A3SHAr

-02¥-2¢92-000-L |

-0Z¥-¢9¢-000-} L 16200-vC
£89€ /OTT'ONIdVOSANV1 S.AVE

-02€-912-000-L 1 65100-v2
#29€ /0711 'O HOIA1 P

-02€-91¢-000-1 1 16200-¥¢
LLL€ 19711 *SADIANTS a3 SAIM IAILOVHEILNI

-0/2-162-000-1 1 6¥100-¥C
6662 /NV1d NOLLJO TVLN3A NOZIMOH

-02€-912-000-11 96100-v2
929€ /'O ‘S3IAYISIY H1TVaAH

-115-0.2-000-} 1 2eeoo-ve
8€.Z 'd¥OD ‘LMOdSNYYL LSO

-02¥-19¢-000-1 L 12€00-¥Z
681L€ /SYITNNTd LVRUO

-02t-192-000-L1 ¥1E00-¥2
6501 /"0 TVOINTHO TVHEN3AO

-005-004-052-02
-005-001-05¢-02
-005-001-06¢-0C ¥9100-+¥2
L9EZ /ONI ANIAVIV MUVd a13I1d48vVD
-196-001-000-L1 25200-v¢
9¢¥Z INOLIVONA3 40 QivO8 dML FONFHOTS
-0ve-162-000-1 1 69000-¥2
1882 I'ONI MNvE3TId
-01L9-00L-061-1 L 66200-vC

NIy parsod

#0Od

BWieN / # JOpUap

£202/%1/21
£262E0°GIIq eA




v ebed WV 0¢:62:80 J& £20a/¥1/ck uo uny

[efed X98YQ pueH - dH 1IN 984D PUBH - JH [BIUEd J8Indwo) - 4O [ind Jeindwo)d —~ 42 ,

124 24%4 04842 60S09Z10€El #1LOV dd SYO - ADHANI 4340 /- -129-292-000-1L1 €5100-v2
WLL 19 2 38d
0.°.S2 69S.¢ 202 NYIr-0299982200 dd S1I43aN3g HLTV3H ¥3HLO /- -0.2-162-000-L 1 20200-v2
S6€C /VACN - ‘09 "SNI TVILNIAN¥d
00'962$ 89Z€ /NI ‘SNOILVISNVYL SN1d Vavd 40} [ej0L
00'v¥L 896/¢ c0sell d0 y3S 40Yd 1d/LO/HO33dS /- -02€-912-000-L 1
00201 89522 gozeLL 40 ¥3S 40Yd Ld/LOMDIIAS F 026-012-000-L
00°0S 896.¢ 16lell dd Y3S 40¥d Ld/LO/HD33dS /- -02£-912-000-} 1 86200-vZ
89Z€ I'ONI ‘SNOILVISNVYML SN1d YHvd
08°286CLLS 6921 /NOILYONA3 40 QY08 VAWV 404 [ej01
08'zvl' Ly 198.¢ 202 NI dd JNA3 TI03dS VITNOLLINL /- -295-001-000-L L
00'sve'z. 196.2 $20Z NV d0 Hv1NO3Y Y3T-NOILLINL /- -195-001-000-L L 09100-¥2
6¥Z1 /NOILYONA3 40 Qyv08 VHAWTVd
0005 996.2 O34 SAS INOO SNVYL 40 O34 SAS INOOD SNvHl /- -116-0/2-000-L1 01€00-¥2
£29€ /MILNIO ONISSIOON INNIATY DAWEN
€E6LY §95.¢2 LZ214/0201 dO SAS HO3AL/40"d HOMNd ¥3dO /- -00€-292-000-1 1 ¥S100-2
OPLL /'O H3LVM NVIOIN3INWY N
00'0EL'E po5.2 5612-0512  dD OAS HOIL GISVHOUN /- -OvE-00L-061-1)  2£000-+Z
2292 /19771 LH0ddNS YYOMLIN
00002 £95.2 YZOZNVE  dD SAS HOZL/HONd HOMNd H3dO /- -006-282-000-LL 120002
€4S€ /'ONI T4 SNOILNTOS MSIY SIXIANSIXI
9zZ.l¢
68°€¥s1Z$ I"ONI ‘dNOYD ONINIANIONI INOLSAIN 40} |BJ0L
16°086°L 296.¢ 6€€£20€ 40 NOILONYLSNOD-SIILNIOVL /- -0S+-00+-000-C1
96'205'61 29522 6022082 dD NOILONYLSNOO-SIILIIOVA /- -0Sp-007-000Zh  BOS00-HZ
9Z.€ /'ONI ‘dNOYD ONIYTINIONT INOLSAIN
00'0zz'e$ 625¢ INOLMVd 2 SLYAOY ‘SSONS ‘AINNE) 10 [E101
000L6 196.¢ €C AVW dd OAS TVOIT-NINAY N3O /- -LEL-0£2-000-L L
00'S¥9°L 196.¢2 €¢ INNr [= o] OAS TIVOIT-NINQY NIO /- -1E€€-0€2-000-L 1
00°G6S 196.2 € AN 40 OAS TVOIT-NINGY N3O /- -LEE-0£C-000-L1
0002 18622 £ZUdY  dD OAS TVOITNINGY N3O - -1E6-062-0001L  E1E00++Z
YD paysog
JunOUIY 393UD # 3o8UD BUIBN ¥99UD O1 Wy BINW 5 odAL % AU UoRdLI2saQ | # JUNOIOY # Od
40 uopduasag ¥o8yD Woayo aWeN / #Jopuap
L _

£202/v1/21
£262E0°5INg BA

£202/SL/Z) S1 91eQ IaYD pue LG'0s saydjeg io}
dWIBN J0PUI A Ag 110ddy swre)) puvy S[g
uonednpy Jo pieoy A A[I9Adg _




G abed

WV 02:62:80 18 £202/vL/21L Uo uny

1BIUEd %08YD PUBH - dH 1N %O8YD PUBH - HH [BILEd JaINdWoD - 42 |ind Jeinduwod — 49 .

LELE NINVYHL ‘IdS3A

-005-001-061-L1 Ly100-¥2
6€LL /INOZIY3A

-02€-91¢-000-11 26200-vC
6€.€ /INVIL AQNLS GTIHO TVNONITIE 3HL

-0vE-252-000-L L 10000
LOOL /000€ SWILSAS

-00¢-002-81¢-0C
-04¢-162-000-1 1 59100-v2
V6€Z Rid SL1I43INIE HLTV3H rN 40 31viS

-019-152-000-¢ 1 98¢00-v¢

-019-612-000-L} §8200-¥C
¥86Z /AOVINVAQY S31dV1S

-019-001-061-11 20100-¥2
22S€ I'ONI ‘'VSN AdILOdS

-00€-002-04¢-0¢
-00€-002-0.2-02 85100-v¢
9.5€ [ANIYIHLYD ‘INOWIS

-00€-29¢-000-1 1
-00€-29¢-000-} 1 S1€00-¥2
€95¢€ I'dtOD TVNOILYNYIALNI IHS
-019-00L-061-}1 c¢ienn-ve
SELE /NVING 'HOVAVS
-006-001-061-11 €2000-v¢
SEZ€ /1071 "T13AN

~¢¢9-¢92-000-1 1
-¢¢9-292-000-1 1

$IIYD pajsog

uonduosaq / # Junoddy #0d

YE VL 61S.Z €20z/LZILL dD OAS Q3SVYHOUNd ¥3HLO F
00°00%'% 81512 896£0L 4D ¥3S 40Yd Ld/LO/HOFAdS /-
00'65%'6 1.5.¢2 €eBECICES 40 AY3S HO3L dNnd LIV /-
\eLz'LLS $6€Z dd S1I43N3E HLTV3H N 40 31V1S 10} jejoL
85°/9¢'L1 €cocet €20¢ 03a dH S1I43N3Y dW3 v3Sd /-
€8'L16'G9 €£cocel €2¢0¢ 03a dH SLI43IN39 HLTVv3H Y3H10 /-
ZroLLs 862 /SOVLNVAQY S31dVLS 10} [e10L
1L'6S 9/6.¢ 0rooveEPSSE 40 S3AINddNS SSANIsSNA /-
12°9G 9.6.2 601S611SSE 40 S3INddNS 182 /-
00°6¥€ 516/2 ONYLSNI S3NAdNS TvHaN3D 40 ONYLSNI STNddNS YHINIO /-
00°%20'2$ 9/S€ /ANINIAHLYD ‘IANOWIS 10} €301
00Z10'L v/1S.C €c/9reL d0 ‘AY3S WNd Vel /-
00210l 1612 [ X414 A" =] ‘A"3S '"Nd vl /-
v0°L6€°L$ £96€ /'d¥OD TYNOLLYNYILNI IHS 10} ejoL
889°G.6 €.5.¢2 1/8260.189 dd SAS HO3J1/408d HOHNd ¥3dO /-
] RA 4 | VAT XA 9/1201619 40 SAS HO3AL/40Hd HOHNd ¥3dO /-
9e'v8e’lL ¢lS.lt ONYLSNI SATddNS TVHINID 40 ONYLSNI S3ITddNS TVHINID /-
€626 11622 €20¢ 03a d0 IAS A3SVYHIHNd ¥3HLO /-
zZ19sL'L$ LPLL /9 8 3Sd 10} [EI0L
or'z68'} 04522 S068YLP09L #10V  dD LIDI¥LO373 - AOYIN3 ¥3dO -
2c6LL'e 0.5.¢ 60G09210€} #LOV d0 11014103713 - ADHINT ¥3dO /-
unowy 32ay9 # ¥93yd awieN Y92y o1 Jway BINW , adA}
Jo uonduasag 329y yoays
. SRR _ __

SWeN / # JOpuap

€202/S1/Z1 St 93ed ¥I3YD pue Ls'0s saydleq 10}
dweN Jopud A Aq 310day swrg[) puy S[ig
uonedInpy Jo paeoqg A ALIAdY

£202m1/21
£262£0°5IIG €A




9 ebeg

$)26UD pejsod Joj [Bj0L

Zriso‘ovys

TS'LI6'L 986.¢
SCovvre

vegel §85.¢
11'80¢€ G86.¢2
ov'LL9'L$

08°1S6°} ¥85.¢
08'v6t ¥85.¢
oveeL'z ¥8S.¢C
ovees'e ¥86.¢
05'861 £€85.¢
ooeeL'zt 286/2
61€L0'L 18622
£€£'80'9 086.¢

unowy %99yYJ # ¥93yd

4214443344

EVYE INOILVHOJdNOD XOHIX 10} [ejoL

€202 AON
£€2r8.L1020

920¢€ /NOILYONAT 40 QUVOE OUOEONITIIM 104 [Bj0L

Wr-€z 1d3s
OOW €2 1d3s
Wr €2 100
Wr €2 AON
€20z 03a
cvoces

0-20S0-8€5V91€

€202 J39WIAON

SweN %98yJ o1 Jway HINW

dd

dO
dd

do

dd

dO

dd

do

40

do

dd

» odA]L
Jo uonduosag ¥o3yy yoaayo

WV 02-62:80 JB £202/vi/c) uo uny

18iliBd %294D PUBH - dH 1IN 308D PUBH - 4H [eliBd Jeindwod - 40 |ind Jeindwo)d — 40 ,

OAS d3SVYHOHNd Y¥3HL0 /-

ONYLSNI S3ITddNS TYH3N3O /-
ONYLSNI S3INddNS TVH3INTO /-

JFHOV INIOr 03 dS SNVNHL /-
J3HOV LNIOT d3 dS SNYHL /-
J3HOV LNIOr a3 dS SNWiL /-
I3HOV INIOF 3 dS SNVHL /-
SAS HO3L/40¥8d HOYNd ¥3dO /-
SHIVdIW/ONINVITO LNIVIN /-

S3AVINYIS LOVHLINOD ¥3IdO /-

SOAS HO3L/4dd HOYNd aino /-

-006-001-061-11 05100-¥2
€182 /SNOILVOINNININOD 131X

-019-001-061-L1
-019-001-061-11 LG100-¥C
Ve INOILVUOLHO0D XOu3IX

-G16-04¢-000-L 1
-G15-0£2-000-11
-§16-0,2-000-L})
-G16-0,¢-000-1 4 81€00-vC
9.0€ /NOILYONA3 40 auvOod OHOIONITIM
-00€-292-000-¢ 1 48000-¥2
12SZ /SAVNINYIS 1S3d NHILSIM
-0Z¥-192-000-L1 €0100-¥2
982Z I'dd0D ¥IONIM
-02¥-292-000-11 45100-vC
6911 /AISUIr MIN 40 LNTJNIOVNVYIN ILSYM
-06€-812-000-11 8.100-¥2

YD) paysod

uondudsaq / # Junoddy #0d

SWeN / # JOpusp

£202/S1/Z1 St 23e@ %29y pue LG'0§ saydjeq 104
JwieN Jopud A Aq 310day] swire[) puv S[g
uoneInpy Jo pieog AN A[19A9g

gzoemires
£262£0°GlIq BA




saIWIWOY douRUl] JOqUBY

aa)IwwWwoy) adueUl{ UeuLIRYD

Zr'1S0'0bYS 000$ LW'6L2'LLS 00'0$ 10'2LL'29¢E8 TVLOL ANVHO
05°206'2$ 05°205'2$ 09 09
91'€80'cZ$ 86°L9€'11$ 85°GLL LIS ([4 0z
9. 09v'v1 v £8°116'59¢ £6°8VG'8VES IVi0OL 0} pung
68'€vS LTS 68°cHs'L2S 4} ol
18'916'26€$ £8°116'59% $0°600'L2€$ Ll ol
SHO8YD dV/UON S%09yD soYD dV/UON S}08yD $H398yD pung fiobaen
el pueH pueH 1endwon Joyndwon qns

pund Alewswing pun4

WY 02:62'80 18 £20c/vL/gt uo uny

‘pajuf sv paydazov aq spodas [p1oupuLf s,421ns02.4J pup S,41012428 ay) 1oy) s23anf puv puawidod 10f panosddn aq
UOIDLISIUNUPY SSIUISNG Y} Aq 1924400 2q 0} P11 PUD PAIIPUIL SIIIAIIS PUD PaA12Dad SPOOS 10 suiplo fo js1] U 10y} UOHN]OSIY

£202/SL/TL S1 91 )93y pue Lg'0S saydjeq 104

JweN I0pud A Aq 310day swire)) puv S[g
uonednpr Jo pivog A1) ALI9AdY

geoevirel
£262€0°SI1q BA




Payroll to Budget Transfer Report

Account# Check# Check Date Check Amount Check Description
11-000-211-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,664.48 ATTEND SVCS- CLER SAL
11-000-213-104- - 911162023 11/16/2023 4,446.05 HEALTH SVC SALARIES
11-000-213-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 660.97 HEALTH SVCS- CLER SAL
11-000-216-100- - 911152023 11/15/2023 3,726.30 SPEECH TEACHER SALARY
11-000-217-106- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,187.62 EXTRAORD PARA SAL
11-000-218-105- - 911162023 11/16/2023 664.72 GUID SECY/CLER SALARIES
11-000-219-104- - 911152023 11/16/2023 9,307.46 CST SALARIES
11-000-219-105- - 911152023 11/16/2023 650.73 CST SECY/CLER SALARIES
11-000-221-102- - 911152023 11/15/2023 9,364.66 CURR/INSTR SALARIES
11-000-221-104- - 911152023 11/15/2023 342.39 CURR/INSTR PROF SALARIES
11-000-221-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 106.63 CURR/INSTR SECY/CLER SAL
11-000-221-110- - 911152023 11/15/2023 268.29 Cl OTHER SALARIES
11-000-230-100- - 911152023 11/15/2023 8,378.87 GEN ADMIN SPRINTEND SAL
11-000-230-104- - 911152023 11/16/2023 214.33 TREASURER SALARIES
11-000-230-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,019.65 GENERAL ADMIN- CLER SAL
11-000-240-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,133.09 SCH ADMIN SEC/CLER SAL
11-000-251-104- - 911152023 11/16/2023 3,848.03 BUSINESS ADMIN SALARIES
11-000-251-105- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,083.71 BUS ADMIN/SECY SALARIES
11-000-262-110- - 911152023 11/15/2023 2,621.69 OPER/CUST SALARIES
11-000-262-110-0T - 911152023 11/15/2023 3,680.25 OPER/CUSTODIAL OT
11-000-266-100- - 911152023 11/15/2023 2,335.00 UE S SALS OF SEC G & INV
11-000-270-161- - 911152023  11/15/2023 1,359.98 SAL. FOR PUPIL TRANS(BET
11-000-270-162- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,100.13 SAL. FOR PUPIL TRANS(BET
11-106-100-101- - 911152023  11/15/2023 842.11 PRESCHOOL - SALARIES OF
11-110-100-101- - 911152023 11/15/2023 7,26045 KNDG TEACHER SALARIES
11-120-100-101- - 911152023 11/16/2023 38,658.68 GR. 1-5 TEACHER SALARIES
11-130-100-101- - 911152023 11/16/2023 31,738.26 GR. 6-8 TEACHER SALARIES
11-190-100-106- - 911152023 11/16/2023 13,840.66 OTHER SALARIES-INSTR
11-204-100-101- - 911152023 11/16/2023 7,341.10 LLD TEACHER SALARIES
11-213-100-101- - 911152023 11/16/2023 14,163.70 RR TEACHER SALARIES
11-230-100-101- - 911162023 11/15/2023 3,543.98 BSC SKILLS TEACHER SALAR
11-240-100-101- - 911152023 11/15/2023 3,686.30 BILINGUAL TEACHER SALARI
11-401-100-100- - 911162023 11/15/2023 103.00 COCURR SALARIES
20-218-100-101- - 911162023 11/16/2023 13,629.09 PSEA TEACHER SAL
20-218-100-106- - 911152023 11/16/2023 7,145.68 PSEA AIDES SAL
20-218-200-102- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,261.42 PSEA SUPERV SAL
20-218-200-103- - 911152023 11/15/2023 1,747.63 PRE-K SALARIES OF SUPERV
20-218-200-105- - 911152023 11/16/2023 1,641.85 PRE-K SALARIES OF SECR A
20-218-200-110- - 911162023 11/15/2023 2,163.55 OTHER SALARIES
20-218-200-173- - 911152023 11/15/2023 919.64 PEA SS CMTY PARENT INV S
20-218-200-176- - 911152023 11/15/2023 4,501.05 PEA SS MASTER TEACHERS
20-231-100-101- - 911152023 11/16/2023 5,428.12 TITLE | TEACHER SALARIES
Total # of Payments Total Check Amount 216,469.20

11/17/2023 08:41.08 AM
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Payroll to Budget Transfer Report

Account# Checkit Check Date Check Amount Check Description
11-000-211-105- 911302023  11/30/2023 1,664.49 ATTEND SVCS- CLER SAL
11-000-213-104- 911302023 11/30/2023 4,446.06 HEALTH SVC SALARIES
11-000-213-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 560.97 HEALTH SVCS- CLER SAL
11-000-216-100- 911302023 11/30/2023 3,726.30 SPEECH TEACHER SALARY
11-000-217-106- 911302023 11/30/2023 833.33 EXTRAORD PARA SAL
11-000-218-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 664.72 GUID SECY/CLER SALARIES
11-000-219-104- 911302023 11/30/2023 9,307.46 CST SALARIES
11-000-219-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 660.73 CST SECY/CLER SALARIES
11-000-221-102- 911302023 11/30/2023 9,662.89 CURR/INSTR SALARIES
11-000-221-104- 911302023 11/30/2023 342.39 CURR/INSTR PROF SALARIES
11-000-221-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 106.63 CURR/INSTR SECY/CLER SAL
11-000-221-110- 911302023 11/30/2023 258.29 Cl OTHER SALARIES
11-000-230-100- 911302023 11/30/2023 8,341.84 GEN ADMIN SPRINTEND SAL
11-000-230-104- 911302023 11/30/2023 214.33 TREASURER SALARIES
11-000-230-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,019.65 GENERAL ADMIN- CLER SAL
11-000-240-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,133.09 SCH ADMIN SEC/CLER SAL
11-000-251-104- 911302023 11/30/2023 3,848.03 BUSINESS ADMIN SALARIES
11-000-261-105- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,083.71 BUS ADMIN/SECY SALARIES
11-000-262-110- 911302023 11/30/2023 2,387.22 OPER/CUST SALARIES
11-000-262-110-0T - 911302023 11/30/2023 3,480.25 OPER/CUSTODIAL OT
11-000-266-100- - 911302023 11/30/2023 2,335.00 UE S SALS OF SECG & INV
11-000-270-181- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,359.98 SAL. FOR PUPIL TRANS(BET
11-000-270-162- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,100.13 SAL. FOR PUPIL TRANS(BET
11-105-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 842.11 PRESCHOOL - SALARIES OF
11-110-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 7,109.80 KNDG TEACHER SALARIES
11-120-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 38,040.06 GR. 1-5 TEACHER SALARIES
11-130-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 3127961 GR. 6-8 TEACHER SALARIES
11-190-100-108- 911302023 11/30/2023 10,562.60 OTHER SALARIES-INSTR
11-204-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 7,341.10 LLD TEACHER SALARIES
11-213-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 14,153.70 RR TEACHER SALARIES
11-230-100-101- 911302023  11/30/2023 3,543.98 BSC SKILLS TEACHER SALAR
11-240-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 3,686.30 BILINGUAL TEACHER SALARI
11-401-100-100- 911302023 11/30/2023 4400 COCURR SALARIES
20-218-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 13,629.08 PSEA TEACHER SAL
20-218-100-106- 911302023 11/30/2023 5,184.61 PSEA AIDES SAL
20-218-200-102- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,261.42 PSEA SUPERV SAL
20-218-200-103- 911302023  11/30/2023 2,285.43 PRE-K SALARIES OF SUPERV
20-218-200-108- 911302023 11/30/2023 1,641.856 PRE-K SALARIES OF SECR A
20-218-200-110- 911302023 11/30/2023 2,153.55 OTHER SALARIES
20-218-200-173- 911302023 11/30/2023 919.64 PEA SS CMTY PARENT INV S
20-218-200-178- 911302023 11/30/2023 4,501.05 PEA SS MASTER TEACHERS
20-231-100-101- 911302023 11/30/2023 5,428.12 TITLE | TEACHER SALARIES
Total # of Payments Total Check Amount 212,734.50

11/30/2023 11:56:14 AM
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A Uniform State
Memorandum of Agreement
Between Education
and
Law Enforcement Officials

2023 Revisions*

Approved by the New Jersey Department of Law & Public Safety

and the New Jersey Department of Education

*This document is a revision of the 1988, 1992, 1999, 2007, 2011, 2015, and 2019 versions of the State
Memorandum of Agreement approved by the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Education and
which is required in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)13 through 14.

*The regulations at N.J.A.C. 6A:16, Programs to Support Student Development, are reviewed as new
laws are passed and amendments may be presented to the State Board of Education. All related
statutory language preempts any conflicts or inconsistencies with these regulations.
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Article 1. Preface

1.1. The Predecessor Agreements

In 1988, the Department of Law & Public Safety and the Department of Education issued a
model agreement for use by local law enforcement and education officials. These agreements were
eventually signed in communities across the state and documented the commitment by both
professional communities to work together as co-equal partners to address the state’s alcohol and other
drug problems as they relate to school-age children. Regulations promulgated by the State Board of
Education and codified at N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)13 through 14 establish uniform statewide policies and
procedures for ensuring cooperation between education officials and law enforcement agencies; these
policies and procedures are consistent with and complementary to the Uniform State Memorandum of
Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement Officials (Agreement) approved by the Attorney
General and the Commissioner of Education. As needed, a working group, composed of educators and
law enforcement officials, convenes to revise this agreement to reflect the current policies and
procedures supported by statute and regulation, as well as Department of Education and the Office of
the Attorney General guidelines. In 2019, the working group focused on how a student’s school-based
arrest and subsequent court involvement may impact them. In response, the revisions reorganized and
reframed the Agreement to 1) clarify the difference between mandatory and non-mandatory reports to
law enforcement and 2) acknowledge the collaborative efforts of schools and law enforcement and
highlight the necessity of these relationships.

1.2. 2023 Revisions

In 2021, the Education-Law Enforcement Working Group reconvened to address new laws,
policies, and procedures, including the study of potential amendments to reduce disparities in criminal
justice referrals and take meaningful steps to close the school-to-prison pipeline. The group was focused
by the 2020 Youth Bias Task Force Report titled An Anti-Bias Vision for the Next Generation. The Youth
Bias Task Force was led by the Department of Law and Public Safety’s Division on Civil Rights, which

examined the root causes of a rise in youth bias and bias affecting young people. Revisions were made
to articles of the Agreement that affect the interaction of students, educators, and police officers to
reduce the possibility of bias toward students and improve the reporting of those incidents. The working
group has removed extraneous language to clarify and streamline the Agreement.

Following the creation of the Attorney General Directive 2020-9 Establishing “Statewide Handle

With Care” Program, an article has been added to explain the policy and procedures of the directive for
officers and how schools may respond to the receipt of a handle with care notification.



The use of body worn cameras by officers who work inside of schools, or respond to a school, is
addressed in a new article to make clear what policies should be followed by police officers. This article
is modeled on the Attorney General Directive 2022-01, which updated the Body Worn Camera Policy.

With the decriminalization of marijuana and the creation of a regulated market for cannabis, the
working group discussed how to amend the Agreement to “effectuate the tiered warning system
implemented by the legislation and ensuring a drug free school zone.” Articles were updated to define
marijuana and cannabis, update mandatory reporting, address changes to medical cannabis policy,
explain police procedure for interacting with students, and clarify all articles that mention marijuana.

Additionally, the articles for Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying (HIB), Cyber-Harassment,
Stationhouse Adjustments, Law Enforcement Response to Non-Mandatory Reports, Hazing, and others
were updated to reflect new law and policy.

The working group will continue to meet to address new challenges and community concerns.
The working group will create recommendations for the Commissioner of Education and Attorney
General, and update guidance documents related to and referenced by the Agreement. The working
group will reconvene in 2024 to review further revisions and receive feedback on the changes made in
this version.

1.3. Nature of the Problem

The 1988, 1992, 1999, 2007, 2011, 2015, and 2019 issues of the Agreement have been designed
to ensure cooperation between law enforcement and education officials and ultimately to protect the
educational environment. The undersigned parties hereby recognize the need to update the Agreement
and to reaffirm the commitment to work together as equal partners in addressing evolving problems
and emergencies of mutual concern. While schools are generally safe places for students and staff
members, a wide range of offenses are occasionally committed on school! grounds?. It is understood and
agreed that the commission of certain offenses on school grounds, whether directed at students, school
employees, or school grounds, not only undermines the educational environment, but can directly
endanger the safety and well-being of members of the school community and thus requires an
appropriate and decisive response.

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-1.3, “School grounds” means and includes land, portions of land, structures,
buildings, and vehicles, when used for the provision of academic or extracurricular programs sponsored
by the school district or community provider. School grounds also includes school buses, school-
sponsored functions, structures that support the buildings, such as school district wastewater treatment
facilities, generating facilities, and other central service facilities including, but not limited to, kitchens
and maintenance shops. School grounds also includes other facilities as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2,
playgrounds, and recreational places owned by municipalities, private entities or other individuals during
those times when the school district has exclusive use of a portion of the land.



Itis further understood and agreed that there is a demonstrable need for law enforcement and
education officials to cooperate and to share information, as appropriate, to address acts of violence or
potential acts of violence by students that may occur off school grounds or at times other than during
regular school hours, and that may involve victims or potential victims that are not members of the
school community. Experience has shown that violent acts committed by youth off school grounds can
have serious deleterious effects upon the school community, just as acts of violence committed on
school grounds can lead to further violence or retaliation at other places.

Itis important for school officials to be familiar with this Agreement and how it complements
the code of student conduct to establish standards, policies and procedures for positive student
development and behavioral expectations (N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1). There are specific types of incidents that
school officials are required to report to law enforcement. Conduct requiring a mandatory report is
outlined in Article 3.

There are other types of incidents that school officials are not required to, but may voluntarily,
report to law enforcement. Certain categories of conduct that school officials may voluntarily report are
outlined in Article 4. For non-mandatory reports to law enforcement (i.e., voluntary), school officials are
encouraged to refer to the school’s code of student conduct and provide a continuum of actions
designed to remediate and, where necessary or required by law, to impose sanctions, considering the
developmental ages of the student and their history of inappropriate behavior. While the majority of
incidents will not rise to the level of a mandatory report and may be addressed solely by schoo! officials,
schools are encouraged to consult with law enforcement for any offense that they believe may warrant
action outside of school, or should be brought to the attention of law enforcement. Both schoo! officials
and law enforcement should be aware that a school’s voluntary report of student misconduct to law
enforcement may not always result in a law enforcement response, investigation, or arrest. If law
enforcement deems that action is necessary, law enforcement should embrace the use of stationhouse
adjustments (see Article 4.2) as an alternative to filing a formal complaint, when appropriate.

1.4. Reasons for Special Concern

The parties to this Agreement are aware of and remain concerned by events that have occurred
throughout the nation involving violence committed by youth and violence committed on youth by
outsiders. The parties further recognize that no school is immune from the disruptive influence of
alcohol and other drug abuse and distribution, vandalism, and violence. It is not our intention to cause
undue alarm or to overstate the nature or magnitude of the problem. Nor is it our intention in any way
to jeopardize the rights of students. To the contrary, we wish to emphasize that our goal is to safeguard
the essential right of all students and school employees to enjoy the benefits of a school environment
which is conducive to education and which is free of the disruptive influence of crime, violence,
intimidation and fear.
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Accordingly, the parties to this Agreement recognize the need to have in place policies and procedures
to appropriately and decisively manage these inherently dangerous and disruptive situations. It is our
hope and expectation that by developing and publicizing the existence of clear policies, we can
discourage the commission of serious offenses on school grounds and thereby protect the safety and
welfare of all members of the school community.

15 Obligation to Enforce This Agreement Without Discrimination

The Division on Civil Rights (DCR), as part of the Department of Law and Public Safety, under the
authority of the Attorney General, is responsible for enforcing New Jersey’s Law Against Discrimination
(LAD), N.J.S.A. 10:5-1 to -49. All schools subject to this Agreement constitute places of public
accommodation subject to DCR’s jurisdiction within the meaning of the LAD. School officials should be
aware that as employees and agents of a place of public accommodation, they cannot discriminate against
or harass students, and must take action to stop bias-based harassment of students if they knew or should
have known about it, even if the harassment is perpetrated by a fellow student.

School officials are prohibited under the LAD from enforcing this Agreement in a manner that
discriminates based on race, ethnicity, gender, disability, or any other protected characteristic. A schoo!
discriminates within the meaning of the LAD if it makes (or fails to make) mandatory referrals under Article
3 of this agreement differently with respect to students of one race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or
any other protected characteristic differently than it does students of another race, ethnicity, gender,
disability status, or other protected characteristic. Similarly, a school discriminates within the meaning of
the LAD if it chooses to refer (or not to refer) students of one race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or
any other protected characteristic differently under Article 4 of this agreement than it does students of
another race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or other protected characteristic.

Similarly, all law enforcement agencies subject to this Agreement constitute places of public
accommodation subject to DCR's jurisdiction within the meaning of the LAD. Law enforcement officials
should be aware that as employees and agents of a place of public accommodation, they likewise cannot
discriminate against or harass students. Law enforcement officials discriminate within the meaning of the
LAD if they respond to mandatory referrals under Article 3 or non-mandatory referrals under Article 4 of
this agreement differently with respect to students of one race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or any
other protected characteristic differently than they do students of another race, ethnicity, gender,
disability status, or other protected characteristic.

Article 2. Liaisons; Law Enforcement Units

2.1, Liaisons

We, (county prosecutor) and (each law enforcement agency having patrol jurisdiction) shall each
designate one or more persons to serve as a liaison to appropriate local and county school officials.
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The (executive county superintendent) and the (local chief school administrator of each school
district), pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)1, shall similarly designate one person to serve as a liaison to
the county prosecutor's office and to the respective local law enforcement agency. Pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:17-43.3, the chief school administrator of each school district must designate the school safety
specialist as the school district liaison with law enforcement. The roles and functions of these liaisons
are to:

¢ facilitate communication and cooperation;

e identify issues or problems that arise in the implementation of this Agreement and facilitate the
resolution of any such problems;

e act as the primary contact person between the schools and the affected law enforcement
agencies;

e act together in developing joint training and other cooperative efforts, including information
exchanges and joint speaking engagements;

¢ coordinate drug and alcohol abuse and violence intervention and prevention efforts; and

e consult on the review of school safety and security plans, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1, and the
review of approved model policies of the School Security Task Force.

School districts and law enforcement agencies will comply with the training requirements of
N.1.5.A. 52:17B-71.8 for safe schools resource officers and for the school district liaison to law
enforcement. The Police Training Commission in the Division of Criminal Justice in the Department of
Law and Public Safety provides this comprehensive training.

2.1.1. Benefit of Law Enforcement Liaisons

It is understood that law enforcement officials have access to confidential information that may
document that a juvenile offender has previously committed acts of delinquency outside of school
grounds and about which school officials may therefore be unaware

It is further understood that school officials may have legitimate concerns about the legal and
mental health implications of referring a student to law enforcement. The (designated law enforcement
official) and the county prosecutor must be available on an ongoing basis to explain to school officials
the practices and procedures of the juvenile justice system with respect to the handling of juveniles
suspected of, or formally charged with, acts of delinquency. The (designated law enforcement official)
and the county prosecutor also must provide, on an ongoing basis, information concerning the services
and resources available through the New Jersey Juvenile Justice System to deal with delinquent or at-
risk youth and families in crisis, including stationhouse adjustments, referrals to Family Crisis
Intervention Units, other pre-adjudication diversion programs, intervention services, and post-
adjudication disposition options that are available in the county.
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2.2. Consultation and Information Sharing

So as to foster and institutionalize the spirit of communication and cooperation underlying this
Agreement, (appropriate school and law enforcement personnel) agree to participate in ongoing joint
consultations. It is understood that the consultations shal! include discussions of:

a. Therules and regulations promulgated by the State Board of Education and codified at N.J.A.C.
6A:16-6, Law Enforcement Operations for Alcohol, Other Drugs, Weapons and Safety and
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5, School Safety and Security, as appropriate;

b. The Comprehensive Drug Reform Act, focusing especially on those provisions affecting juveniles
or that are designed to protect children and to displace drug trafficking activities from areas
adjacent to schools;

c. The United States Supreme Court decision in New Jersey v. T.L.O. and the New Jersey School
Search Policy Manual,

d. Federal and state laws and regulations on the confidentiality of alcohol and drug counseling and
treatment;

e. The warning signs of which school staff members should be aware that indicate a student may
be abusing chemical substances or is at risk of committing an act of violence involving firearms
or other deadly weapons;

f. The scope and nature of the problem concerning firearms and other dangerous weapons on
school grounds; and

g. Training needs to support school safety and security and the effective implementation of the
Agreement, including the exchange of information regarding the practices of the school district
and law enforcement agencies, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)12.

2.3. Safe Schools Resource Officers

A “safe schools resource officer” (SRO) is a trained and specially selected law enforcement
officer who supports the philosophy of community policing in schools. Security personnel, on the other
hand, are not affiliated with the local law enforcement jurisdiction, may or may not be armed, and are
employed to monitor and protect the school building and occupants.

The New Jersey Legislature stated that “the job of safe schools resource officer involves great
responsibility and highly specialized skills” because “every safe schools resource officer works with and
among pupils, teachers and administrators, and many also work with parents” and “by virtue of their
daily interaction with pupils, safe schools resource officers invariably make a strong, early impression of
the institution of law enforcement,” and found that “the State should provide comprehensive and
consistent training for those individuals entrusted with these responsibilities.”

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A-146.10, Class Three special law enforcement officers may provide
security and may also provide the role of SRO when schools are in session or occupied by
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students or staff. Class Three special law enforcement officers are nonetheless distinct from non-law
enforcement security personnel, because they “have all the powers conferred by law on police officers,”
including “the apprehension of offenders.” (N.).S.A. 40A:14-146.10).

The decision whether to employ an SRO, Class Three special enforcement officer, or other
security staff rests with each school board of education based upon the needs of the school community.
If a school board of education employs an SRO or Class Three special law enforcement officer, it must
ensure that the assigned officer has received the training required by law. New Jersey law requires that
any “safe schools resource officers” assigned to a public school must complete the safe schools resource
officer training course developed pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:17B-71.8 before they can be assigned by a
local board of education to serve as an SRO. (N.J.S.A. 18A:17-43.1.). Any Class Three special law
enforcement officer assigned by a local board of education to serve as an SRO is required to comply
with the safe schools resource officer training requirements outlined in N.J.S.A. 18A:17-43.1.

If a school board of education employs an armed security officer, it is strongly encouraged that
the assigned armed security officer attend the safe schools resource officer training course offered by
the Police Training Commission to ensure they receive training to assist them in their role.

2.4. Creation of Law Enforcement Units

Each school district shall consider designating, but is not required to designate, one or more law
enforcement units for the district, as provided under the Federal law, FERPA (Family Education Rights
Privacy Act), pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1232g(a)(4)(ii) and 34 C.F.R. 99.8. Schools that designate one or more
law enforcement units for the district shall comply with FERPA, pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1232g(a)(4)(ii) and
34 C.F.R. 99.8, to ensure the security and privacy of school records.

Pursuant to FERPA, if a school district designates one or more law enforcement units for the
district, the records maintained by those units are not deemed to be student records or educational
records [20 U.S.C. 1232g(a)(4)(B)(ii)] and may be voluntarily turned over to law enforcement without a
subpoena.

The term “law enforcement unit” means any individual, office, department, division or other
component of an educational agency or institution, such as a school administrator or a unit of
commissioned police officers or non-commissioned security guards, that is officially authorized or
designated by that agency or institution to enforce any local, State or Federal law, or refer to
appropriate authorities a matter for enforcement of any local, State or Federal law against any
individual or organization other than the agency or institution itself; or maintain the physical security
and safety of the agency or institution. {34 C.F.R. 99.8(a)(1)]. The law enforcement unit may be only one
person and does not have to be a law enforcement officer.
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Schools should refer to Article 8 of this agreement for details on designation of school records
and law enforcement records and may need to seek advice of school counsel to determine whether
further agreements or guidance are required and for matters requiring a subpoena.

Article 3. Obligation to Report Offenses and Preserve Evidence: Mandatory
Reports

3.1. Mandatory Report Offenses Summary

Itis important for school officials to be familiar with this Agreement and how it complements
the principles of the code of student conduct regulations to establish standards, policies and procedures
for positive student development and behavioral expectations {N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1). While the majority of
incidents may be addressed solely by school officials, there are specific types of incidents where school
officials are required to report a matter to law enforcement. By outlining these mandatory reports, the
Agreement helps ensure consistency among school districts.

There are seven offenses that must be reported to law enforcement if they qualify as mandatory
reports, as set forth and explained in further detail under Article 3 of this Agreement. These mandatory
reports include:

e Whenever any school employee has reason to believe a student is in unlawful possession of a
controlled dangerous substance, related paraphernalia, cannabis?, or is involved or implicated
in distribution activities regarding controlled dangerous substances or cannabis, pursuant to
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3 (Article 3.2);

e Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe that a firearm or other dangerous weapon has unlawfully been possessed on or off
school grounds, a weapon was used in an assault against a student or other school personnel, or
that any student or other person has committed an offense with, or while in possession of, a
firearm, whether or not such offense was committed on school grounds or during school
operating hours, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.5, 5.6(d)4 and 6.3(b) (Article 3.6);

e Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe that anyone has threatened, is planning, or otherwise intends to cause death, serious
bodily injury, or significant bodily injury to another person under circumstances in which a
reasonable person would believe that the person genuinely intends at some time in the future
to commit the violent act or to carry out the threat, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(c) through (e)
(Article 3.10);

2 pursuant to N.J. Stat. § 2C:33-15, any person under the age of 21, who knowingly possesses without
legal authority or who knowingly consumes any alcoholic beverage, cannabis item, marijuana, or hashish
in any school, public conveyance, public place, or place of public assembly, or motor vehicle shall be
subject to consequences.
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e Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe that a crime involving sexual penetration or criminal sexual contact has been committed
on school grounds, or by or against a student during school operating hours or during school-
related functions or activities, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(d) (Article 3.12);

® Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe that an assault upon a teacher, administrator, other school board employee, or district
board of education member has been committed, with or without a weapon, pursuant to
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.7(d)5 (Article 3.14);

e Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe a “bias-related act” has been committed or is about to be committed on or off school
grounds, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(e) (Article 3.16); and

® Whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to
believe a student is potentially missing, abused, or neglected, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-
11.1(a)3i through iii {Article 3.17).

Exceptions apply, as outlined below.

As a reminder, school officials are prohibited under the LAD from enforcing this Agreement in a
manner that discriminates based on race, ethnicity, gender, disability, or any other protected
characteristic. A school discriminates within the meaning of the LAD if it makes (or fails to make)
mandatory referrals under Article 3 of this agreement differently with respect to students of one race,
ethnicity, gender, disability status, or any other protected characteristic differently than it does students
of another race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or other protected characteristic.

3.1.1. Law Enforcement Response to Mandatory Reports
Specific response to mandatory reports are noted by offense type in the following sections.
When a mandatory report to law enforcement is made, the law enforcement agency retains full

discretion to investigate the act and decide that no further action is needed, or recommend a
stationhouse adjustment, as outlined in Article 4.2.
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3.2. Requirement to Report Offenses Involving Controlled Dangerous Substances &
Cannabis

Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)9 and 6.3(a), school officials
must immediately notify (police department and/or prosecutor) whenever any school employee has
reason to believe a student is in unlawful possession of a controlled dangerous substance?, related
paraphernalia, or cannabis®, or is involved or implicated in distribution activities regarding controlled
dangerous substances or cannabis, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4.3(a)3i. A non-exhaustive list of
controlled dangerous substances (CDS) are detailed in sections 3.2.1 through 3.2.4.

3.2.1. Anabolic Steroids, "Jimson Weed,” and “Date Rape” Drugs

In 1991, the New Jersey Commissioner of Health promulgated rules and regulations which
classify anabolic steroids as Schedule Ill controlled dangerous substances (CDS). The parties to this
Agreement understand that it is illegal in New Jersey to use, possess, or distribute any stramonium
preparation, commonly referred to as "Jimson weed”, and that it also is illega! for any person to
distribute or possess substances sometimes referred to as “date rape” drugs, including gamma
hydroxybutyrate (GHB), Rohypnol (roofies), and flunitrazepam (N.J.5.A. 2C:35-5.2 and 5.3, effective
August 8, 1997; N.J.5.A. 2C:35-2 and 2C:35-10.5). Therefore, a student’s possession or distribution of any
of these substances are required to be reported to law enforcement (see Article 3.2).

3.2.2. Designer Drugs

“Designer drugs” are substances that are structurally or functionally similar to banned
controlled dangerous substances (CDS) and created to mimic the effects of a CDS, while attempting to
avoid the CDS classification and accompanying legal consequences. For example, designer drugs such as
“bath salts” (synthetic cathinones) and “synthetic marijuana” (synthetic cannabinoids) were initially
created in an attempt to avoid CDS classification. Many “designer drugs” were and continue to be falsely
labeled as “not for human consumption,” “for novelty use only,” “plant food” or “bath salts” to conceal
from law enforcement their true nature.

3 “Controlled Dangerous Substance” means a drug, substance, or immediate precursor in Schedules |
through V of article 2 of P.L.1970, ¢.226 (C.24:21-1 et seq.), per N.J.S.A 24:21-2. The term shall not
include distilled spirits, wine, malt beverages, as those terms are defined or used in R.5.33:1-1 et seq., or
tobacco and tobacco products.” Included in Schedules | — V are: opiates and opium derivatives,
hallucinogenic substances, cannabinoids, coca leaf derivatives (cocaine), methamphetamine, barbiturates
(and other sedative drugs), narcotics (codeine), nalorphine, anabolic steroids.

4 “Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa L., whether growing or not, the seeds thereof,
and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its seeds,
except those containing resin extracted from the plant, which are cultivated and, when applicable,
manufactured in accordance with P.L.2021, ¢.16 (C.24:61-31 et al.) for use in cannabis products, but shall
not include the weight of any other ingredient combined with cannabis to prepare topical or oral
administrations, food, drink, or other product. N.J. Stat. § 24:61-33.
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Both synthetic cannabinoids and cathinones have been declared as CDS and are therefore
required to be reported to law enforcement (see section 3.2). Due to the danger of these products,
especially among youth in New Jersey, the Division of Consumer Affairs acted to ban synthetic
cannabinoids (see February 29, 2012 Order). The United States Drug Enforcement Administration

followed, subsequently scheduling many synthetic cannabinoids and cathinones as controlled
substances, therefore outlawing them. At the time of the release of this Agreement, synthetic
cannabinoids and cathinones are the only “designer drugs” designated as CDS and required to be
reported to law enforcement.

With the exception of synthetic cannabinoids and cathinones, designer drugs are not required
by New Jersey law to be reported to law enforcement but may be required under district policy or
procedure to be reported to law enforcement in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

All designer drugs should be deemed to be a serious matter that should be handled in
accordance with the district board of education’s approved student code of conduct and any other
applicable policies and procedures.

3.2.3. Prescription Drugs Including Controlled Dangerous Substances

A student’s possession of a prescription drug classified as a controlled dangerous substance
(CDS) prescribed to them is not unlawful, and that possession alone does not trigger school officials’
mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2. However, a student’s unlawful possession of a
prescription prescribed to them may nonetheless violate the school’s applicable code of student
conduct, and such violations should be handled in accordance with the district board of education’s
approved student code of conduct and any other applicable policies and procedures.

A student’s possession of a prescription drug classified as a CDS only triggers school officials’
mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2 if possession is unlawful (e.g., not prescribed to them)
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3. A student’s possession of a CDS not prescribed to them does trigger
school officials’ mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2.

A student’s distribution of a prescription drug classified as a CDS always triggers school officials’
mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2, regardless of whether the CDS was prescribed to the
student suspected of distributing it. See N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3. See N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3.

Students may also misuse or be in possession of prescription drugs that are not CDS. Possession
or misuse of any drug that is not a CDS does not trigger school officials’ mandatory obligation to report
under Article 3.2, but should be handled in accordance with the district board of education’s approved
student code of conduct and any other applicable policies and procedures.

See Article 3.3.7 regarding the protocols for student possession and use of medical cannabis
pursuant to Compassionate Use Medical Cannabis Act (CUMCA).
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3.2.4. Opioids

Opioids are a controlled dangerous substance (CDS). Consistent with Article 3.2.3, a student’s
possession of an opioid prescribed to them is not unlawful, and that possession alone does not trigger
school officials’ mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2. However, a student’s lawful
possession of an opioid prescribed to them may nonetheless violate the school’s applicable code of
conduct, and such violations should be handled in accordance with the district board of education’s
approved student code of conduct and any other applicable policies and procedures.

A student’s possession of opioids only triggers school officials’ mandatory obligation to report
under Article 3.2 if the student’s possession is unlawful (e.g., they are in possession of opioids not
prescribed to them) pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3. A student’s distribution of opioids always triggers
school officials” mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2, regardless of whether the opioid was
prescribed to the student suspected of distributing it. See N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3.

3.2.5. Marijuana, Hashish, and Cannabis

“Marijuana” and “hashish,” as defined in N.J.S.A. 24:21-2, are controlled dangerous substances.
However, N.J.S.A. 24:21-2 specifically defines “marijuana” and “hashish” to exclude “cannabis,”
“cannabis resin,” and “cannabis items,” as defined by N.J.S.A. 24:61-33. Accordingly, although marijuana,
hashish, and cannabis all originate with the plant Cannabis sativa L., regulated cannabis (i.e., Cannabis
sativa L. cultivated and manufactured in accordance with N.J.S.A. 24:61-31) is not classified as a
controlled dangerous substance. It is unlawful for persons under the age of 21 to possess cannabis,
marijuana, or hashish at school. N.J. Stat. § 2C:33-15.

Accordingly, a student’s possession or distribution of cannabis, marijuana, or hashish triggers
school officials’ mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2 if a school employee has reason to
believe the substance the student possessed or distributed is cannabis, marijuana or hashish. Law
enforcement must follow investigative procedures outlined in guidance from the Office of the Attorney
General.

Consistent with Article 3.2.3, a student’s possession of medical cannabis prescribed to them is
lawful, and that possession alone does not trigger school officials’ mandatory obligation to report under
Article 3.2, However, a student’s lawful possession of medical cannabis prescribed to them may
nonetheless violate the school’s applicable code of conduct, and such violations should be handled in
accordance with the district board of education’s approved student code of conduct and any other
applicable policies and procedures.

A student’s distribution of a substance that a school employee has reason to believe is cannabis,
marijuana, or hashish, always triggers school officials’ mandatory obligation to report under Article 3.2,
regardless of whether the cannabis was prescribed to the student suspected of distributing it. See
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3.

19



3.3.  Exceptions to Mandatory Reports of Offenses Involving Controlled Substances

3.3.1. Non-Applicability to Treatment Program Records and Information

Nothing in this Agreement or in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.5 shall be construed in any way to authorize or
require a report or transmittal of any information or records in the possession of a substance abuse
counseling or treatment program in violation of any state or federal confidentiality law or regulation,
and such information or records must be strictly safeguarded in accordance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations.

3.3.2. Voluntary Self-Report

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(a)3, reporting to law enforcement is not mandatory when a
student has voluntarily and on his or her own initiative sought treatment or counseling for a substance
abuse problem, provided the student was not involved in drug distribution activities and further
provided the student participates in an appropriate treatment or counseling program.

For the purposes of this Agreement and pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(a)3i, an admission by a
student which is in response to questioning initiated by a law enforcement officer or school employee
does not constitute a voluntary, self-initiated request for counseling and treatment.

3.3.3. Overdose Prevention Act

School officials and law enforcement officers must also be mindful of the immunity provisions of
the Overdose Prevention Act, codified at N.J.S.A. 2C:35-30 and N.J.S.A. 2C:35-31, and Attorney General
Law Enforcement Directive 2013-1, which seeks to ensure uniform statewide enforcement of the law.
The Act provides that when a person, in good faith, seeks medical assistance for an individual believed
to be experiencing a drug overdose, whether the person is seeking assistance for himself/herself or
another, the person calling for help and the person experiencing the overdose must not be arrested,
charged, prosecuted, or convicted for certain specified criminal offenses enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:35-
30(a)(1-6) and N.J.5.A. 2C:35-31(a)(1-6) involving the use or simple possession of controlled dangerous
substances. The Act does not limit in any way the ability of law enforcement to investigate, arrest, or
prosecute an offense involving the manufacture, distribution, or possession with intent to distribute an
illicit substance or paraphernalia or other drug-offenses. Attorney General Directive 2013-1 expanded
the immunity provisions of the Act beyond its plain language to encompass the spirit of the law by
providing immunity to others present at the scene of the overdose event if those other persons were
made aware of and participated in the request for medical assistance, even if only one person actually
placed the call to 9-1-1. As Attorney General Directive 2013-1 made clear, the immunity feature of the
Act does not extend to simple use or possession drug offenses that come to the attention of law
enforcement by independent means.
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Law enforcement and educators should also be mindful of P.L. 2009, c.133, the “9-1-1 Lifeline
Legislation,” which provides immunity for underage use and possession of alcohol for up to three people
(including the individual in need of medical assistance) when 9-1-1 is called for an alcohol poisoning-
related medical emergency. To be eligible for the immunity, the underage persons must be the first to
place the 9-1-1 call, must provide their names to the 9-1-1 operator, must remain on the scene of the
event, and must cooperate with law enforcement and medical responders.

3.3.4. Students Suspected of Being Under the Influence of Alcohol or Other Drugs

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4.3(a)3 and 6.3(a)4, school officials may, but need not, disclose to
law enforcement authorities the identity of a student suspected to be under the influence of alcohol or
other drugs. In each instance of a report to law enforcement authorities of a student suspected of being
under the influence of alcohol or other drugs, pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:40A-12(a) and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-
4.3(a), or of a student suspected of using of anabolic steroids, pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:40A-12(b) and
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4.3(b), the student must receive the required medical examination, pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:40A-12 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4.3(a)2 et seq. or (b)2 et seq., as appropriate.

3.3.5. Possession or Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages

School officials should be aware that it is unlawful for a person under the age of 21 to purchase,
possess, or knowingly consume an alcoholic beverage on school grounds (see N.J.S.A. 2C:33-15 and
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4 et seq.). It is also unlawful for an adult to bring or possess an alcoholic beverage on
school grounds without the express written permission of the school board, chief school administrator
or building principal. See N.J.5.A. 2C:33-16. School officials may, but need not, report this conduct by
youth or adults to law enforcement.

Law enforcement officers, including those assigned to schools, must follow the guidance set
forth by the Attorney General for individuals under the age of 21 who possess or consume any amount
of alcohol in any public place, including a school with respect to written warnings, searches, and
activation of body worn cameras.

3.3.6. Self-Administration of Medication by Students

Law enforcement and educators should be aware that, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.3, self-
administration of medication by students is permitted for specific medical conditions, including asthma,
life-threatening allergies and other potentially life-threatening medical conditions. The student must be
permitted to self-administer medication provided that

(i) the student’s parent or guardian submits to the board of education a written certification
from the student’s physician specifying the specific medical condition necessitating self-
administration, the medication to be administered, and the fact that the student is capable
of and has been instructed in the proper method for self-administration of the medication;
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(i) the student’s parent or guardian submits to the board of education written authorization
from the parent or guardian for self-administration of the medication by the student;

(iii) the board of education informs the student’s parent or guardian, in writing, that the district,
its employees, and its agents must incur no liability as a result of the student’s self-
administration of medication; and

(iv) the student’s parent or guardian signs a statement acknowledging that the district, its
employees, and its agents must incur no liability as a result of the student’s self-
administration of medicine, and that they (the student’s parent or guardian) will indemnify
and hold harmless the district, its employees, and its agents against claims arising out of the
student’s self-administration of medication.

In addition, the school nurse must maintain the student’s Individualized Health Care Plan {IHCP)
and Individualized Emergency Health Care Plan (IEHCP) documenting the student’s medical needs and
the need for self-administration of the specified medication, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.3(b)3xii. For
example, students with asthma who meet the above criteria may carry an inhaler such as a rapid-acting
bronchodilator. Likewise, students with life-threatening allergies may carry one or two epinephrine
auto-injector mechanisms and an oral or lingual form of Benadry! (antihistamine), if they too meet the
above criteria. Students with diabetes may carry either an insulin pump or injectable insulin, if they
similarly meet the above criteria. Students with other life-threatening medical conditions may have a
medication order for other specific medication which may, if the above criteria are met, be self-
administered.

3.3.7. Compassionate Use Medical Cannabis Act

On January 18, 2010, the Compassionate Use Medical Cannabis Act (CUMCA) (N.J.S.A. 24:6]-1 et
seq.) was signed into law. The purpose of CUMCA is to protect from arrest, prosecution, property
forfeiture, criminal and other penalties, those patients who use cannabis to alleviate suffering from
debilitating medical conditions, as well as their physicians, primary caregivers, and those who are
authorized to produce cannabis for medical purposes. CUMCA expressly provides that it does not
authorize a person to smoke cannabis in a school bus or on any school grounds. As to smoking medical
cannabis at such protected locations, CUMCA expressly provides that the patient “shall be subject to
such penalties as provided by law.” Although this provision of CUMCA applies only to smoking cannabis
in certain specified places, district boards of education are encouraged to consult with their attorney
about the oral consummation of medical cannabis at any of the protected locations.

The Office of the Attorney General developed Enforcement Guidelines to provide law
enforcement with guidance and instruction on key provisions of CUMCA.

3.3.8. Electronic Smoking Devices

“Electronic smoking device” means an electronic device that can be used to deliver nicotine or
other substances (e.g., cannabis or marijuana) to the person inhaling from the device, including, but not
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limited to, an electronic cigarette, vape pen, cigar, cigarillo, or pipe. N.J.5.A. 26:3D-55 bans the use of
electronic smoking devices in public places and workplaces, including, but not limited to public and
nonpublic elementary or secondary school buildings, board of education buildings and any area of any
building of, or on the grounds of, any public or nonpublic elementary or secondary school, regardless of
whether the area is an indoor public place or is outdoors.

Electronic smoking devices alone do not require a mandatory report to law enforcement. The
use of electronic smoking devices to deliver nicotine or any other substance that is not a controlled
dangerous substance also does not require a mandatory report. Electronic smoking devices should only
be reported to law enforcement when there is reasonable suspicion that the device is being used as a
nexus for marijuana, or other controlled dangerous substances, or cannabis (see Article 3.2).

Schools are encouraged to develop policies surrounding the use and/or possession of electronic
smoking devices. Electronic smoking devices should only be reported to law enforcement when there is
reasonable suspicion that the device is being used as a nexus for marijuana or other illegal drugs.

3.4. Securing Controlled Dangerous Substances and Paraphernalia

Whenever a school employee seizes or comes upon any substance believed to be a controlled
dangerous substance, drug paraphernalia, or cannabis, school officials must immediately advise the
(local law enforcement agency having patrol jurisdiction) and must secure the substance or item
pending the response by (law enforcement agency) to retrieve and take custody of the substance or
paraphernalia, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)8 and 6.4. School employees having custody of the
substance or item must take reasonable precautions, per local board of education procedures, to
prevent its theft, destruction or use by any person. In accordance with the requirements of law (N.J.S.A.
2C:35-10c), it is understood that under no circumstances may any person destroy or otherwise dispose
of any controlled dangerous substance, drug paraphernalia, or cannabis except by turning over such
substance or item to the responding law enforcement officer.

3.5. Law Enforcement Response to Reports of Controlled Dangerous Substances and
Cannabis

The (law enforcement agency) must dispatch an officer as promptly as possible to take custody
and secure the controlled dangerous substance (CDS), related paraphernalia, or cannabis. School
officials must provide to the responding law enforcement officer information necessary to establish the
chain of custody and the circumstances of the seizure, including the identity of any person(s) from
whom the substance or item was obtained.

All law enforcement officers, including those assigned to schools, must follow the newly
amended underage law, N.J.S.A. 2C:33-15, and Attorney General guidance set forth in Interim Guidance

23



Regarding Marijuana Decriminalization (Mar 26, 2021). N.J.5.A. 2C:33-15 requires the following in issuing
warnings:

e First offense. Officers shall issue a written warning, which must include the person’s name,
address, and date of birth. The law was amended on March 26, 2021 (P.L.2021, c.38) to require
the officer to provide written notification of the violation to the individual’s parent or guardian if
the individual is under the age of 18.

e Second offense. Officers shall issue a written warning, and also provide the person with
informational materials on community treatment services. For individuals under the age of 18,
the officer shall provide written notification of the violation to the individual’s parent or
guardian, including the informational materials.

e Third or subsequent offense. Officers shall issue a written warning and provide the individual
with a referral for community treatment services. The officer shall provide notice of the written
warning and referral to the community treatment services program regardless of the age of the
individual; if the individual is under 18, then the officer shall provide the juvenile’s parents or
guardian with written notification of the violation and the referral.

Law enforcement officers must also retain and track, with any of the written warnings outlined
above, a sworn statement with a description of the factual circumstances that support a finding of the
violation. Additionally, officers may not fingerprint individuals under the age of 21 for their first, second,
third, or subsequent offenses. However, if an individual under 21 is in possession of more than 6 ounces
of marijuana or 17 grams of hashish, that individual is also in violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:35-10(a)(3)(b), a
fourth-degree crime, and may be issued a complaint summons and fingerprinted at their first court
appearance.

All law enforcement officers, including those assigned to or present inside of a school, are
prohibited from engaging in certain actions when investigating an individual under the age of 21 for
possessian of marijuana, hashish, cannabis, or alcohol, in violation of N.J.5.A. 2C:33-15(a)(1).
Importantly, officers who violate these provisions may be charged criminally with depriving the
individual of their civil rights, regardless of whether the officer intended to do so. Prohibited conduct
includes:

e Officers shall not ask an individual under 21 for consent to search the person to determine a
violation of that provision. (However, if the individual is over 18 and the officer reasonably
believes that other criminal activity is afoot, the individual may grant consent to search);

e The odor of marijuana, hashish, or alcohol no longer constitutes reasonable articulable suspicion
to initiate a stop of an individual under the age of 21, nor does it provide probable cause to
search the person’s personal property or vehicle to determine a violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:33-
15(a)(1).
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e The unconcealed possession of an alcoholic beverage, marijuana, hashish, or cannabis item in
violation of N.J.5.A. 2C:33-15(a)(1) that is observed in plain sight shall not constitute probable
cause to initiate a search of an individual under the age of 21 or that individual’s personal
property or vehicle to determine a violation of any law.

e An individual under the age of 21 who violates N.J.S.A. 2C:33-15(a)(1) shall not be arrested,
detained, or otherwise taken into custody, and shall not be transported to a police station,
police headquarters, or other place of law enforcement operations, except to the extent that
detention or custody at or near the location where the incident occurred is required to issue a
written warning or collect information necessary to provide notice of a violation to a
parent/guardian, unless the person is being arrested, detained, or otherwise taken into custody
for also committing another violation of law for which that action is legally permitted or
required.

When responding to a violation or suspected violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:33-15(a)(1), all law enforcement
officers must activate their body worn cameras, which must remain activated throughout the
encounter.

3.5.1. Exception to Identity Disclosure

School officials need not provide law enforcement with identification information related to a
student when the student voluntarily turns over a controlled dangerous substance, related
paraphernalia, or cannabis to a student assistance coordinator or other individual who holds either a
school nurse, school nurse/non-instructional, school psychologist, school counselor, school social
worker or student personnel service endorsement on the Educational Services Certificate if the below
criteria are met.

1. The student voluntarily and on his or her own initiative turned over the substance to a school
employee;

2. Thereis no reason to believe that the student was involved in distribution activities;

3. The student participates in an appropriate school-based alcohol or other drug abuse
intervention, referral for evaluation, referral for treatment or continuity of care program,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-3.1 or community-based alcohol or other drug abuse treatment
program.

Nothing in this paragraph must be construed in any way to authorize or require a referral or
transmittal of any information or records in the possession of a school-based alcohol or other drug
abuse intervention, referral for evaluation, referral for treatment or continuity of care program or a
community-based substance abuse treatment program where such referral or transmittal would
constitute a violation of state or federal confidentiality laws or regulations, and such information or
records must be strictly safeguarded in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and
regulations.
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3.6. Requirement to Report Incidents Involving Firearms and Dangerous Weapons

Subject only to the provisions of Articles 7.4 and 9 of this Agreement, it is agreed that
(designated school official) must immediately notify (designated law enforcement official) whenever any
school employee in the course of his or her employment, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.5 and 6.3(b),
develops reason to believe that a firearm or ammunition has unlawfully been brought onto school
grounds, or that any student or other person is in unlawful possession of a firearm or ammunition,
whether on or off school grounds, or that any student or other person has committed an offense with,
or while in possession of, a firearm, whether or not such offense was committed on school grounds.

In addition, (designated school official}) must immediately notify (designated law enforcement
official) whenever any school employee in the course of his or her employment comes upon a non-
firearm weapon that was actually used or threatened to be used in committing an offense, including
weapons used to commit assault upon a teacher, administrator, other school board employee, district
board of education member, or another student on school grounds, pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:37-2.2
through 2.5. Law enforcement must also be notified if school officials seize or come upon any
switchblade, gravity, or ballistic knife, stun gun, or metal knuckles, whether or not the weapon was
actually used or threatened to be used, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(b).

3.7. Exceptions to Mandatory Firearms and Dangerous Weapons Reports

Whenever a school employee seizes a non-firearm weapon that was not actually used or
threatened to be used in committing an offense, the school should consult (designated law enforcement
official) to decide whether the offense warrants law enforcement action.

It is generally not necessary to report the seizure of small pen knives or Swiss-Army style knives.
Itis further understood and agreed that school officials should consult with law enforcement regarding
the seizure of a utility or “box-cutter” knife where the unlawful use of such knives as weapons is a
serious problem in the school and where the student has no explainable lawful purpose for possessing
such an instrument.

Procedures to secure this weapon are handled the same as below.

3.8. Securing Firearms, Ammunition and Dangerous Weapons

Whenever a school employee seizes or comes upon (1) a firearm, (2) ammunition for a firearm,
or (3) a non-firearm weapon that was actually used or threatened to be used in committing an offense
the school officials must immediately advise (designated law enforcement official) and secure the
firearm, ammunition or non-firearm weapon until the (law enforcement agency) responds and, pursuant
to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)8 and 6.4, retrieves and takes custody of the firearm, ammunition or non-firearm
weapon. School employees having custody of a firearm, ammunition or dangerous weapon must take
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reasonable precautions, per local board of education procedures, to prevent its theft, destruction or
unlawful use by any person. Itis understood and agreed that under no circumstances may any person
destroy or otherwise dispose of any seized or discovered firearm, ammunition or non-firearm weapon
except by turning over such firearm, ammunition or non-firearm weapon to the responding police
officer.

3.8.1. Advice on Weapons

Itis understood that new weapons have evolved and proliferated that are readily concealable
and easily disguised. For example, dangerous knives can be disguised as belt buckles and other
seemingly innocuous items. Accordingly, the (designated law enforcement agency) and the county
prosecutor must be available on an ongoing basis to provide school officials with information and advice
about such weapons and their prevalence in the district or in the county so that they may be readily
identified by school officials.

3.9. Law Enforcement Response to Mandatory Firearms and Weapons Reports

The {law enforcement agency) receiving information about the existence of an unlawful firearm
on school grounds or the actual or threatened use of a non-firearm deadly weapon pursuant to Article
3.6 of this Agreement must immediately dispatch an officer to take custody and secure the firearm or
other weapon. Except as may be specifically provided in Articles 7.4 and 9 of this Agreement, school
officials must provide to the responding law enforcement officer information necessary to establish the
chain of custody and the circumstances of the seizure or discovery of the firearm or other weapon,
including the identity of any person(s) from whom the firearm or other weapon was obtained.

3.9.1 Interdiction of Weapons

It is understood and agreed that the (law enforcement agency) must make every reasonable
effort to effect the arrest of any student believed to be in the unlawful possession of a firearm or other
dangerous weapon while the student is not on school grounds, to prevent whenever possible the
bringing of such firearm or weapon onto school grounds. When this is not feasible, the {law
enforcement agency) must scrupulously comply with the notification requirements for planned arrests
as set forth in Article 6.4 of this Agreement.

3.10. Requirement to Report Incidents Involving Planned or Threatened Violence

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, it is agreed that (school official) must
immediately notify (law enforcement agency) whenever any school employee in the course of his or her
employment develops reason to believe that anyone has threatened, is planning, or otherwise intends
to cause death, serious bodily injury, or significant bodily injury to another person under circumstances
in which a reasonable person would believe that the person genuinely intends at some time in the
future to commit the violent act or to carry out the threat, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(c) through (e).
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In making these determinations, the school official should employ risk management and assessment
tools and guidance from the New Jersey Department of Education.

The school official must provide to the responding law enforcement agency all known
information relevant to the threat, including but not limited to any historical or background information
concerning the person’s behavior or state of mind. For the purposes of this reporting requirement, the
threatened or planned act of violence need not be imminent, and the intended victim of the violent act
need not be aware of the threat. Nor must it be relevant for the purposes of this reporting requirement
that the intended victim is not a student or member of the school community, or that the violent act is
not intended to be committed on school grounds. The parties to this Agreement understand and agree
that students who make a credible threat of harm to themselves or others should be taken seriously.
Accordingly, the provisions of this paragraph must be liberally construed with a view toward preventing
future acts of violence.

3.11. The New Jersey Office of Homeland and Security Response to Planned or Threatened
Violence

The New Jersey Office of Homeland and Security receiving information about a threatened,
planned, or intended act of violence pursuant to Article 3.10 of this Agreement agrees to promptly
dispatch an officer, or immediately dispatch an officer where the circumstances so warrant, to
undertake an investigation and to take such actions as may be appropriate and necessary to prevent the
threatened, planned, or intended act of violence from occurring. Further, under the March 26, 2018,
update to Attorney General Directive 2016-7, the law enforcement agency must immediately report any

suspicious activity “with a possible nexus to terrorism or other criminal activity related to terrorism,”
which includes threats of violence directed at schools, to the appropriate County Terrorism Coordinators
and the Counterterrorism Watch Section of the New Jersey Office of Homeland Security.

3.12. Requirement to Report Sexual Offenses

Subject only to the provisions of Article 7.4 and 9 of this Agreement, it is agreed that
(designated school official) must immediately notify (designated law enforcement official) whenever any
school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to believe that a crime
involving sexual penetration or criminal sexual contact has been committed on school grounds, or by or
against a student during school operating hours or during school-related functions or activities, pursuant
to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(d). When the school official designated as the liaison for law enforcement is the
person under investigation, school districts are encouraged to have a plan in place on who should report
to law enforcement (e.g., the liaison’s supervisor or the chief school administrator).
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3.13. Law Enforcement Response to Sexual Offenses

The (law enforcement agency) receiving information about sexual penetration or criminal sexual
contact pursuant to Article 3.12 of this Agreement must promptly dispatch an officer, or immediately
dispatch an officer where the circumstances so warrant, to undertake an investigation and to take such
actions as may be appropriate and necessary to prevent future sexual offenses from occurring.

3.14. Requirement to Report Assaults on District Board of Education Members or
Employees

Subject only to the provisions of Articles 7.4 and 9 of this Agreement, it is agreed that
(designated school official) shall immediately notify (designated law enforcement official) whenever any
school employee in the course of his or her employment develops reason to believe that a student
committed assault, as defined under N.J.5.A. 2C:12-1(a)1, not involving the use of a weapon or firearm,
upon a teacher, administrator, other school board employee, or district board of education member,
with or without a weapon, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.7(d)5.

3.15. Law Enforcement Response to Assaults on District Board of Education Members or
Employees

The (law enforcement agency) receiving information about an assault on district board of
education members or employees pursuant to Article 3.14 of this Agreement agrees to promptly
dispatch an officer, or immediately dispatch an officer where the circumstances so warrant, to
undertake an investigation and to take such actions as may be appropriate and necessary to prevent
future assaults.

3.16. Requirement to Report Bias-Related Incidents

In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(e), it is agreed that (designated school official) must
promptly notify (designated law enforcement official) and the bias investigation officer for the county
prosecutor’s office whenever any school employee develops reason to believe a “bias-related act,” (1)
has been committed or is about to be committed on school grounds; (2) has been or is about to be
committed by a student on or off school grounds (whether such offense was or is to be committed
during operating school hours); or (3) a student enrolled in the school has been or is about to become
the victim of a bias-related act on or off school grounds, or during operating school hours. it is further
agreed that (designated school official) must immediately notify (designated law enforcement official)
and the bias investigation officer for the county prosecutor’s office where there is reason to believe a
bias-related act that involves an act of violence has been or is about to be physically committed against
a student or there is otherwise reason to believe a life has or will be threatened. A “bias-related act”
means an act that is directed at a person, group of persons, private property, or public property that is
motivated in whole or in part by race, color, national origin, ethnicity, gender, gender identity or
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expression, disability, religion, or sexual orientation. In weighing whether a student’s conduct meets this
definition and triggers a mandatory report, school officials should consider whether the student’s
conduct was motivated by a protected category. When weighing motive, educators may therefore
consider the context of the incident and the age, maturity, and competency of the student(s) implicated
in a potential bias-related act, since those factors would be considered by law enforcement and county
prosecutors.

A bias-related act need not involve conduct that constitutes a criminal offense to trigger a
mandatory report. However, school officials should be aware that certain bias-related acts may also
constitute the criminal offense known as “bias intimidation.” Pursuant to N.J.5.A. 2C:16-1(a), bias
intimidation occurs when an enumerated offense, such as harassment, assault, terroristic threats,
criminal mischief, arson, or homicide, is committed with the purpose to intimidate or with knowledge
that the offense would intimidate an individual or group of individuals “because of race, color, religion,
gender, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, or ethnicity.”
N.JL.S.A. 2C:16-1(a)

School officials should be aware that the Office of the Attorney General has established uniform
law enforcement procedures for the response to, and investigation of, bias incidents®. In this guidance
to law enforcement, a bias incident is defined as any suspected or confirmed violation of N.J.S.A. 2C:16-
1(a)(1) or (2).1., and faw enforcement officials are required to report such bias incidents within 24 hours.

School officials should also be aware that bias-related acts that trigger a school’s mandatory
reporting obligations under this Article will also constitute HIB, triggering a school’s obligation under the
Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act. Law enforcement officials agree to notify the principal of the school at
which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent or guardian reports to the law
enforcement agency that a student may be the victim of HIB, as defined in the ABR. School officials
should implement district policies for responding to HIB complaints when an HIB report is received from
law enforcement officials.

The Division on Civil Rights (DCR), as part of the Department of Law and Public Safety, under the
authority of the Attorney General, is responsible for enforcing New Jersey’s Law Against Discrimination
(LAD), N.J.5.A. 10:5-1 to -49. All schools subject to this Agreement constitute places of public
accommodation subject to DCR’s jurisdiction within the meaning of the LAD. School officials should be
aware that as employees and agents of a place of public accommodation, they cannot discriminate
against or harass students, and must take action to stop bias-based harassment of students if they knew
or should have known about it, even if the harassment is perpetrated by a fellow student.

S “Revised Bias Incident Investigation Standards Attorney General’s Law Enforcement Guideline” (the
Standards), https://www.nj.gov/oag/dcj/agguide/Bias-lnvest-Standards_040519.pdf
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School officials are prohibited under the LAD from administering this Agreement in a manner
that discriminates based on race, ethnicity, gender, disability, or any other protected characteristic. A
school discriminates within the meaning of the LAD if it makes (or fails to make) mandatory referrals
under Article 3 of this agreement differently with respect to students of one race, ethnicity, gender,
disability status, or any other protected characteristic differently than it does students of another race,
ethnicity, gender, disability status, or other protected characteristic.

School and faw enforcement officials should be aware that, in some cases, a school’s failure to
appropriately intervene in and investigate bias-related acts may also constitute a violation of the LAD.
When a law enforcement agency is confronted with a suspected or confirmed violation of New Jersey’s
Law Against Discrimination, the victim shall be informed of the Division on Civil Rights’ jurisdiction and
referred to the Division, if appropriate, and the Division on Civil Rights shall be contacted.

3.17. Requirement to Report Potentially Missing, Abused, or Neglected Children

New Jersey statutes (N.J.5.A. 18A:36-25 and 9:6-8.10) require reporting by school officials of a
potential missing or abused child to both law enforcement officials and Child Protection and
Permanency (CP&P), New Jersey Department of Children and Families (DCF), as set forth below.

3.17.1. Reports of Child Abuse or Neglect to CP&P

Any person having reasonable cause to believe that a student has been subjected to child abuse
or neglect must immediately report the matter to CP&P by telephone or otherwise, pursuant to N.J.S.A.
9:6-8.10 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11.1(a)2. The CP&P Child Abuse Hotline is to be contacted at 1-877-
NJABUSE.

3.17.2. Notification to Law Enforcement

Notification of a potential missing or abused or neglected student also must be made to law
enforcement officials by the person who is designated to report child abuse cases on behalf of the
school district, such as the chief school administrator, principal, assistant principal or other designated
school official, in accordance with N.J.5.A. 18A:36-25 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11.1(a)3. Each school district
may establish individual procedures for the notification. It is not necessary for the same person to
contact law enforcement and CP&P. It is only required that both notifications are made.

3.17.3. Notification of CP&P by Law Enforcement

Pursuant to the DCF/Law Enforcement Model Coordinated Response Protocol promulgated
February 2007 by the Attorney General and the Commissioner of the Department of Children and
Families, a law enforcement agency receiving a report of child abuse from the designated school official,
need not notify the CP&P hotline when the school official confirms that the CP&P hotline has been
contacted by school staff.
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3.17.4. Law Enforcement Response

The law enforcement agency receiving a report of child abuse or a potential missing child must
respond in accordance with the policies established by their County Prosecutor’s Office.

3.17.5. Notification of Parents or Guardians

Notification to the student’s parents or guardians must not be made by school officials when it
is suspected that either parent or guardian is responsible for the suspected abuse. Law enforcement
officials do not need the permission of a parent or guardian to speak to any student who is not the
target of an investigation. It is the sole responsibility of law enforcement officials to determine when or
whether a parent of any student must be contacted. Failure to follow this procedure may compromise
the integrity of an investigation and place the child at risk.

3.17.6 Anonymity

Individuals who report abuse may or may not be entitled to anonymity. While CP&P allows
anonymous child abuse reporting for the general public, school staff may not be entitled to anonymity
for these reports. Furthermore, there is no anonymity when incidents are reported to law enforcement
authorities.

3.17.7 Custody Disputes and Potentially Missing Children

Itis recognized by all parties to this agreement that custody disputes between parents often
have a detrimental effect upon the children. Sudden requests for school records accompanied by
suspicious absences should result in a heightened scrutiny within the school. Therefore, to the extent
that a report to law enforcement will not violate student record confidentiality, if it comes to the
attention of a school administrator that the absence of a child from school may be due to a parental
kidnapping or custodial interference, the school administrator must immediately contact law
enforcement authorities. Concerns that a child may be unlawfully removed from the jurisdiction should
be immediately brought to the attention of local law enforcement officials.

Article 4. Reporting other Offenses: Non-Mandatory Reports

4.1. Reporting Other Offenses

When contemplating a non-mandatory (i.e., voluntary) report, the Department of Education
encourages school officials to refer to the code of student conduct and provide a graduated response to
misconduct that provides a continuum of actions designed to remediate and, where necessary or
required by law, to impose sanctions for continued misbehavior, considering the developmental ages of
the student and their history of inappropriate behavior, prior to referring the incident to law
enforcement. Research has demonstrated that students who have contact with the juvenile justice
system, including a single arrest, are at increased risk of dropping out of school and having further
involvement with the juvenile and adult criminal justice system.
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Subject to the provisions of Articles 7.4 and 9 of this Agreement, it is agreed that (designated
school official) may, but need not, notify (designated law enforcement official) whenever any school
employee develops reason to believe that a non-mandatory report offense has been committed on or
against school grounds. In deciding whether to refer the matter to the designated law enforcement
agency, the principal of the school or his or her designee should consider the nature and seriousness of
the offense and the risk that the offense posed to the health or safety of other students, school
employees, or the general public and must be mindful that offenses committed on school grounds by or
against students may lead to an escalation of violence or retaliation that may occur on school grounds
or at other locations. Under no circumstances may any school employee prevent or discourage the
victim of an offense from reporting the offense to a law enforcement agency. Schools are encouraged
to consult with law enforcement concerning a non-mandatory report offense to discuss the appropriate
level of intervention and available resources.

As a reminder, school officials are prohibited under the LAD from enforcing this Agreement in a
manner that discriminates based on race, ethnicity, gender, disability, or any other protected
characteristic. A school discriminates within the meaning of the LAD if it chooses to refer (or not to
refer) students of one race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, or any other protected characteristic
differently under Article 4 of this agreement than it does students of another race, ethnicity, gender,
disability status, or other protected characteristic.

4.2. Stationhouse Adjustments

Though a report to law enforcement allows officers to remain vigilant to the possibility of a
criminal act occurring off school grounds, law enforcement is not required to file a formal complaint
against a juvenile for any offense. In response to reports to law enforcement by schoals, stationhouse
adjustments should be employed whenever appropriate to avoid the stigma of a formal juvenile
delinquency record. When considering whether to report an offense to law enforcement, schools should
strive to utilize all available school resources and sanctions prior to making the report, unless a
mandatory report is required, and consult with law enforcement if necessary.

The Attorney General Directive 2020-12 Directive Establishing Policies, Practices, and

Procedures to Promote Juvenile Justice Reform, repealed and superseded the provisions of Attorney
General Law Enforcement Directive No. 2008-2 (Guidelines for Stationhouse Adjustment of Juvenile
Delinquency Offenses); the 1998 Attorney General Guidelines on Procedures for Collecting Juvenile
Fingerprints and Photographs; and Attorney General Executive Directive No. 1990-1 (Handling of
Juvenile Matters by Police and Prosecutors).

The Directive outlines mechanisms available to police officers and prosecutors to divert youth
from the juvenile justice system and limit the likelihood of unnecessary detention. The one mechanism
that is applicable in the school setting is the stationhouse adjustment. A stationhouse adjustment is
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designed to divert a juvenile from the juvenile justice system without the filing of charges. In such
situations, an officer typically asks the juvenile and a parent or guardian/caregiver/designee to come to
the police station to discuss an alleged offense and work together to develop an appropriate resolution,
which is then memorialized in a written agreement. The officer may refer the juvenile for social services
and, if property has been stolen or damaged, require the juvenile to make restitution in some form. The
goal is to engage the parent or guardian/caregiver/designee—and, where appropriate, the victim—in
any resolution, allowing the family and community resources to address the violation rather than the
courts.

4.3. Law Enforcement Response to Non-Mandatory Reports

The (law enforcement agency) receiving information about the commission of an offense
pursuant to Article 4 of this Agreement shall respond promptly by telephone or in person, and where
appropriate, discuss with school officials whether further action is needed before contacting or
involving the student. Law enforcement officials’ obligation to respond to a non-mandatory report
does not require them to do more than consult with school officials. When a non-mandatory report to
law enforcement is made, the law enforcement agency retains full discretion to decide that no further
action is needed, or recommend a stationhouse adjustment, as outlined in Article 4.2. When there is
probable cause to believe that an offense has been committed, the (law enforcement agency) shall
handle the matter in accordance with the provisions of the Attorney General Directive 2020-12 Directive

Establishing Policies, Practices, and Procedures to Promote Juvenile Justice Reform.

4.4. Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying (HIB)

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying (HIB) in school settings presents an ongoing challenge
throughout New Jersey. HIB acts tear at the fabric of our society, pose grave risks to the physical and
emotional well-being of students, and can quickly lead to retaliation, an escalation of violence both on
and off school grounds, and even suicide. To address this problem, New Jersey enacted the Anti-Bullying
Bill of Rights Act on January 5, 2011 (N.J.5.A. 18A:37-13 et seq.).

The Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act sets forth the following definition for HIB (N.J.5.A. 18A:37-
14.):

“Harassment, intimidation or bullying” means any gesture, any written, verbal
or physical act, or any electronic communication, whether it be a single incident
or a series of incidents, that is reasonably perceived as being motivated either
by any actual or perceived characteristic, such as race, color, religion, ancestry,
national origin, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, or a
mental, physical or sensory disability, or by any other distinguishing
characteristic, that takes place on school property, at any school-sponsored
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function, on a school bus, or off school grounds as provided for in section 16 of
P.L.2010, c.122 (C.18A:37-15.3), that substantially disrupts or interferes with the
orderly operation of the school or the rights of other students and that:

a. a reasonable person should know, under the circumstances, will have
the effect of physically or emotionally harming a student or
damaging the student's property, or placing a student in reasonable
fear of physical or emotional harm to his person or damage to his
property;

b. has the effect of insulting or demeaning any student or group of
students; or

C. creates a hostile educational environment for the student by
interfering with a student’s education or by severely or pervasively
causing physical or emotional harm to the student.

The ABR sets forth standards and procedures for preventing, reporting, investigating, and
responding to incidents of HIB of students that occur on school grounds, at school-sponsored functions,
on school buses, and off school grounds, and school investigations of HIB must determine whether
conduct meets the above definition. The ABR further requires that policies be adopted through a
process that includes representation of parents or guardians, school employees, volunteers, students,
administrators and community representatives (N.J.S.A. 18A:37-15a). Upon request by a school district,
law enforcement agencies must make available a representative to participate in this process (see
Article 9.4 of this Agreement).

4.4.2. Reporting of HIB
4.4.2.1. Reporting of HIB by Schools to Law Enforcement

HIB does not by itself constitute a criminal offense. Accordingly, there is no obligation
on the part of school personnel to report HIB investigations to a law enforcement agency unless the
conduct rises to the level of mandatory report, as outlined in Article 3. However, school officials should
be aware that certain HIB acts may also rise to the level of a criminal offense if they constitute bias
intimidation, hazing, and cyber-harassment, which are discussed in Articles 3.16, 4.5, and 4.6 of this
Agreement, or violate another provision of the Code of Criminal Justice, such as those addressing
assault, harassment, threats, robbery, and sexual offenses. Because an HiB event that occurs in school
on a Friday can precipitate another event outside of school on a Saturday, reporting these offenses
allows law enforcement to remain vigilant. However, both school officials and law enforcement officials
should be aware that a school’s notification to law enforcement does not require that any formal action
be taken by law enforcement in response to the non-mandatory report. When making mandatory or
non-mandatory reports, school officials agree to indicate any suspicions or evidence that the conduct
was gang-related. Victims of HIB also should be informed that they may report an alleged offense to the
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appropriate law enforcement agency; however, school officials should avoid expressing any opinion to
victims as to whether the alleged conduct constitutes an offense under the Code of Criminal Justice.
Under no circumstances shall any school employee prevent or discourage the victim of an offense from
reporting the offense to a law enforcement agency.

4.4.2.2, Reporting of HIB to Division on Civil Rights

School officials should be aware that incidents of HIB in schools may also implicate the New
Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J.S.A. 10:5-1 to -49 (LAD). In some cases, a school district’s failure
to appropriately intervene in and investigate bias-based HIB incidents may constitute a violation of the
LAD. When a law enforcement agency is confronted with a suspected or confirmed violation of New
Jersey’s Law Against Discrimination, the victim shall be informed of the New Jersey Division on Civil
Rights’ jurisdiction and referred to the Division, if appropriate, and the Division on Civil Rights shall be
contacted.

4.4.3. Preservation of Evidence and Chain of Custody

Whenever a school official receives from school employees or directly seizes a document, an
electronic device or any other item that the official believes may contain evidence of HIB, reasonable
precautions must be taken to prevent its theft, destruction or unlawful use by any person. Itis
understood and agreed that under no circumstances may any person alter, destroy or otherwise dispose
of any such evidence. Such evidence must be maintained in a locked and secure location and the
handling of such evidence must be documented in order to provide a record that no one has had an
opportunity to tamper with the evidence.

4.4.4. Reporting of HIB by Law Enforcement to Schools

In addition to the obligations to share law enforcement information with schools set forth in
Article 9 of this Agreement, the law enforcement agency agrees to notify the principal of the school at
which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent or guardian reports to the law
enforcement agency that a student is the victim of HIB, as defined in the ABR. When the student is a
juvenile, such reports are permissible pursuant to the authority of N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60c and/or N.J.S.A.
2A:4A-60e, as outlined in Article 8 of this Agreement. Such notification also must be provided when the
alleged offending student is an adult. See Article 8.8 of this Agreement.

4.4.5. Coordination of HIB and Criminal Investigations

There may be times when HIB conduct is being investigated by both school officials pursuant to
the ABR and law enforcement officials pursuant to the Code of Criminal Justice. In such situations, the
law enforcement investigation focuses on whether there has been a violation(s) of the Code of Criminal
Justice, while an HIB investigation focuses on whether an act has been committed in violation of the
ABR. When a criminal investigation is initiated by law enforcement, but a school district has already
initiated its own disciplinary investigation for the same incident or conduct, a school district generally
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agrees to suspend its own investigation until law enforcement has concluded its investigation. This best
practice avoids hampering ongoing criminal investigations. Although the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act
(ABR) provides a ten school day timeframe to complete an HIB investigation, if law enforcement deems
it appropriate for a school district to suspend or stay its HIB investigation because its own investigation
could be compromised by a simultaneous or concurrent HIB investigation, it may request that the school
district suspend or “stay” its HIB investigation. The suspension or stay of a school district’s HIB
investigation may be appropriate when, among other things, there is a concern that witness statements
and/or evidence could be adversely affected or detrimental to an ongoing criminal investigation. It is
only when law enforcement affirmatively requests a school district to suspend or stay its HIB
investigation that such an investigation should be suspended or stayed. If law enforcement does not
affirmatively request a suspension or stay of an HIB investigation, a school district must comply with all
applicable ABR timeframes. If law enforcement has not affirmatively requested a stay or suspension of
an HIB investigation, but a school district believes that the action(s) involved may constitute a criminal
offense(s), it should contact law enforcement to inquire as to whether law enforcement may want to
investigate the matter.

When law enforcement requests a suspension or stay of an HIB investigation, school officials
must immediately memorialize this request, in writing, and advise the parent(s)/guardian(s) of the
alleged perpetrator(s) and alleged victim(s) of law enforcement’s request. Notice to the parents must
include notice that the school is obligated under the Law Against Discrimination to address student-on-
student bias-based harassment, and that the statute of limitations for filing a complaint in the Division
on Civil Rights will not be extended due to law enforcement’s request. If the parent(s)/guardian(s)
objects, either orally or in writing, to the suspension or stay of the school district’s HIB investigation, and
law enforcement wishes to enforce the stay over the parent(s)/guardian(s) objections, law enforcement
must seek appropriate legal assistance from the County Prosecutor’s Office to obtain a formal court
order compelling the stay. In addition, and more specifically:

e If law enforcement requests a suspension or stay of an HIB investigation, but the school district
has not yet initiated its investigation, the school district must initiate its investigation but solely
for the purpose of safeguarding the health and welfare of its students, and not for the purpose
of determining whether HIB occurred. The school district’s HIB investigation must remain open
and stayed during the pendency of law enforcement’s investigation. Upon completion of the
law enforcement investigation, and following notification of that completion from the county
prosecutor, the anti-bullying specialist must immediately resume the school’s HIB investigation.
In this instance, the anti-bullying specialist must have the ten school days to complete its HIB
investigation.

» If law enforcement requests a suspension or stay of an HIB investigation, but the school district
has already initiated its investigation, the school must immediately cease and stay its HIB
investigation at the request of law enforcement while following the parental/victim notification
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requirements set forth above, and pending the outcome of any court orders requested by law
enforcement to compel the stay. However, the school district must still be required to
safeguard the health and welfare of its students. The school district’s HIB investigation must
remain open and stayed during the pendency of law enforcement’s investigation. Upon a
court’s denial to compel a stay, or upon completion of the law enforcement investigation, and
following notification of that denial or completion from the county prosecutor, the anti-bullying
specialist must immediately resume the school’s HIB investigation. In this instance, the anti-
bullying specialist must have the number of days remaining in the ten school day timeframe to
complete its HIB investigation (e.g., if law enforcement directs a school district to cease its
investigation on day three, then the school district must have seven days, following clearance
from the county prosecutor, to complete its HIB investigation).

If law enforcement requests a suspension or stay of an HIB investigation, but the school district
has already completed its investigation, the ten school day timeframe must be unaffected.
However, in the event that additional information is available upon the completion of a criminal
investigation, the ABR permits the school anti-bullying specialist to amend the original report
with the results of the investigation to reflect the additional information (N.J.S.A. 18A:37-
15b(6)a). The anti-bullying specialist should review this additional information, and promptly
determine whether the original report should be amended.

If law enforcement requests a suspension or stay of school district action at any other point,
including prior to the reporting of the results of the investigation to the chief school
administrator or the board of education; the reporting of information to the
parent(s)/guardian(s) of the alleged perpetrator(s) and alleged victim(s); a parental request for a
hearing before the board of education; or prior to the issuance of the board of education’s
written decision; the school district must comply with this request while following the
parental/victim notification requirements and pending the outcome of law enforcement’s
application for court orders, if necessary, to stay requirements set forth above. All school
district action must be stayed during the pendency of law enforcement’s request or until a court
denies law enforcement’s request to compel a stay. Following notification of that completion
from the county prosecutor, the school district must immediately resume any and all remaining
action(s) required under law and regulation.
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4.5. Hazing

Hazing is a process, based on tradition that is used by groups to maintain a hierarchy (i.e., a
pecking order) within the group. Regardless of consent, the rituals require individuals to engage in
activities that are physically and/or psychologically stressful. These activities can be humiliating,
demeaning, intimidating, exhausting, and adversely affect the mental or emotional health or dignity of
the individual. Activities may also cause bodily injury. Hazing is about group dynamics and proving one’s
worthiness to become a member of a specific group. The newcomer, or victim, is hazed. Once accepted
by the group, the victim may become a bystander, watch others get hazed, achieve senior status, and
ultimately become a perpetrator of hazing.

Beginning in March 2022, district boards of education with a middle school or high school and
governing boards of a non-public middle or high school must adopt a written policy against hazing that
includes the rules, penalties, and the program for enforcing the policy (N.J.S.A. 18A:37-32.2 and 32.3).
The policy must also be posted on the district’s or non-public school’s publicly available website.
(N.J.S.A. 18A:37-32.2(c)).

School officials should be aware that hazing which involves the participation of a coach or a
teacher may also constitute child abuse (see Article 3.17). Hazing may also involve sexual offenses (see
Article 3.12) or bias-related acts (see Article 3.16). Hazing may also constitute HIB, triggering a school’s
obligations under the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act (see Article 4.4).

Hazing only triggers a school’s mandatory obligation to report if it involves conduct covered by
Article 3 as outlined above. However, school officials should also be aware that hazing is a criminal
offense. The written policy required under N.J.S.A. 18A:37-32.2 and 32.3 should specify under what
circumstances hazing conduct will be referred to law enforcement. The criminal law governing hazing,
N.J.5.A. 2C:40-3, sets forth the following definition for hazing:

A person is guilty of hazing, if, in connection with initiation of applicants to or members of a
student or fraternal organization, whose membership is primarily students... the person knowingly or
recklessly:

(1) Causes, coerces, or otherwise induces another person to commit an act that violates federal or
State criminal law;

(2) Causes, coerces, or otherwise induces another person to consume any food, liquid, alcoholic
liquid, drug or other substance which subjects the person to a risk of emotional or physical harm
or is otherwise deleterious to the person’s health;

(3) Subjects another person to abuse, mistreatment, harassment, or degradation of a physical
nature, including, but not limited to, whipping, beating, branding, excessive calisthenics, or
exposure to the elements;
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(4) Subjects another person to abuse, mistreatment, harassment, or degradation of a mental or
emotional nature, including, but not limited to, activity adversity affecting the mental or
emotional health or dignity of the individual, sleep deprivation, exclusion from social contact, or
conduct that could result in extreme embarrassment;

(5) Subjects another person to abuse, mistreatment, harassment, or degradation of a sexual nature;
or

(6) Subjects another person to any other activity that creates a reasonable likelihood of bodily
injury to the person. (N.J.S.A. 2C:40-3(a)).

Hazing is a crime of the third degree if the act results in death or serious bodily injury and a
crime of the fourth degree if the act results in bodily injury. Otherwise, hazing is a disorderly persons
offense (N.J.5.A. 2C:40-3(b)). The consent of the person hazed is not a defense (N.J.5.A. 2C:40-4).

4.5.1. Reporting of Hazing by School Officials and Law Enforcement

Unless the conduct rises to the level of a mandatory report, as outlined in Article 3, there is no
obligation on the part of school personnel to report any hazing incident.

Hazing may also constitute HIB. Law enforcement officials agree to notify the principal of the
school at which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent or guardian reports to the
law enforcement agency that a student may be the victim of HIB, as defined in the Anti-Bullying Bill of
Rights Act.

4.6. Cyber-Harassment

Cyber-harassment constitutes a separate criminal offense in New Jersey (N.J.S.A. 2C:33-4.1).
The law targets online communications that threaten to inflict a crime, an injury, physical harm, or are
made with the intent to emotionally harm a reasonable person or to place a reasonable person in fear of
physical or emotional harm. The offense of cyber-harassment may be charged as either a crime of the
third or fourth degree, depending on the ages of the target and harasser.

N.JL.S.A. 2C:33-4.1sets forth the following definition for cyber-harassment:

A person commits the crime of cyber-harassment if, while making a communication in an online
capacity via any electronic device or through a social networking site and with the purpose to harass
another, the person:

(1) threatens to inflict injury or physical harm to any person or the property of any person;

(2) sends, posts, comments, requests, suggests, or proposes any lewd, indecent, or obscene
material to or about a person; or

(3) threatens to commit any crime against the person or the person’s property.
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Cyber-harassment is a crime of the fourth degree, unless the person is 21 years of age or older at the
time of the offense and impersonates a minor for the purpose of cyber-harassing a minor, in which case
it is a crime of the third degree.

If a minor under the age of 16 is adjudicated delinquent for cyber-harassment, the court may
order as a condition of the sentence that the minor, accompanied by a parent or guardian, complete, in
a satisfactory manner, one or both of the following:

(1) aclass or training program intended to reduce the tendency toward cyber-harassment behavior;
or

(2) aclass or training program intended to bring awareness to the dangers associated with cyber-
harassment.

A parent or guardian who fails to comply with a condition imposed by the court pursuant to
subsection c. N.J.S.A. 2C:33-4.1is a disorderly person and must be fined not more than $100 for a first
offense and not more than $500 for each subsequent offense.

A parent or guardian having legal custody of a minor who demonstrates willful or wanton
disregard in the exercise of the supervision and control of the conduct of a minor adjudicated
delinquent of cyber-harassment may be liable in a civil action.

4.6.1. Reporting of Cyber-Harassment

Accordingly, there is no obligation on the part of school personnel to report any cyber-
harassment incident, unless the conduct rises to the level of mandatory report, as outlined in Article 3.
Cyber-harassment may also constitute HIB. Law enforcement officials agree to notify the principal of
the school at which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent or guardian reports to the
law enforcement agency that a student may be the victim of HIB, as defined in the Anti-Bullying Bill of
Rights Act.

4.7. Sexting

Sexting involves the sending of sexually explicit photos by electronic means such as text
message.

School officials should be aware that sexting of image or video involving sexual penetration or
criminal sexual contact has been committed on school grounds, or by or against a student during school
operating hours or during school-related functions or activities may trigger a school’s reporting
obligations related to sexual offenses (see Article 3.12). School officials should also be aware that
sexting may involve bias-related acts (see Article 3.16). Sexting may also constitute HIB, triggering a
school’s obligations under the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act (see Article 4.4).
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Sexting only triggers a school’s mandatory obligation to report if it involves conduct covered by
Article 3 as outlined above. However, school officials should also be aware that sexting may constitute a
criminal act pursuant to New Jersey’s child pornography laws. For instance, itis a crime to give to
someone else, offer to give to someone else, transfer, disseminate, distribute, circulate, or possess
pornography depicting a child, defined as a person younger than 18 (N.J.5.A. 2C:24-4). Penalties for
violating such laws include not only significant time in prison but also mandatory registration as sex
offenders.

4.7.1. Reporting of Sexting

There is no obligation on the part of school personnel to report any cyber-harassment incident,
unless the conduct rises to the level of mandatory report, as outlined in Article 3. However, school
officials should be aware that once a photograph has been sent out, it becomes difficult, if not
impossible, to know how many people have saved it, tagged it, shared it, etc. Working proactively with
law enforcement is often the best way to quickly ascertain who has a digital copy of the photograph and
to destroy it before it can be further circulated.

Schools are therefore encouraged to consult with law enforcement for any incident that may
require outside investigation. New Jersey has created an alternative to criminal prosecution for teens
charged with child pornography as a result of sexting (N.J.5.A. 2A:4A-71.1). If the court deems it
appropriate, these teens may be ordered to participate in an educational program or counseling in lieu
of prosecution. Both the creator and subject of the sexting image must be younger than 18 to be
eligible for this program.

Sexting may be also constituting HIB. Law enforcement officials agree to notify the principal of
the school at which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent or guardian reports to the
law enforcement agency that a student may be the victim of HIB, as defined in the Anti-Bullying Bill of
Rights Act.

4.8 Offenses Involving Computers, the Internet, and Technology

In 2003, a series of laws were passed allowing for the prosecution of new crimes, such as
unauthorized computer access and damage which such access may cause. In addition, digital cameras,
digital photos, digital videos, cell phones, e-mail and the Internet are increasingly used to commit
crimes. The purpose of this Article is to recognize some of the areas where law enforcement and
educational professionals should cooperate to ensure a unified response to the following conduct by
students, teachers, administrators and other school staff:

1) Harassment and threats via electronic media.
2} Unauthorized access to school networks.

3) Use of technology to facilitate other crimes.
4) Blogging (free speech).
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4.8.1. Harassment and Threats via Electronic Media, Unauthorized Access to School Networks,
and the Use of Technology to Facilitate Other Crimes

Students may inappropriately utilize technology to harass and threaten other students or
individuals. These types of actions may be considered incidents of harassment, intimidation, and
bullying (Article 4.4), bias-related incidents (Article 3.16), cyber-harassment (Article 4.6), sexting (Article
4.7), or other misconduct. Bias-related incidents trigger schools’ mandatory reporting obligations, and
school officials should be guided by the reporting obligations in Article 3.16 if students utilize technology
to engage in such conduct. Inappropriate use of technology to engage in other acts of harassment,
intimidation, and bullying (Article 4.4), cyber-harassment (Article 4.6), sexting (Article 4.7), or other
misconduct does not trigger schools’ mandatory reporting obligations, and school officials should be
guided by the reporting obligations elsewhere in this agreement, school district policy, and the board
attorney (as necessary) to determine the protocol for any violations of the code of student conduct.

Students may also take actions to access a school network, which is unauthorized by the school
district. There are instances where school officials may consider unauthorized accessing of a school
network to be an internal matter and not advise law enforcement authorities, especially if the nature of
unauthorized access does not require investigation regarding the extent of unauthorized access (e.g.,
when a student accesses a school district network to change a test score).

In situations where the significance of an attack on the integrity of a school computer network
has implications for community safety, school officials should notify law enforcement. Accordingly,
when notification to law enforcement is appropriate, notification should be made to law enforcement
immediately upon learning of unauthorized access.

Should schools make a mandatory report under Article 3 or choose to make a non-mandatory
report under Article 4, school officials need to assess the extent of unauthorized access to school
systems. When notification to law enforcement is deemed appropriate by educators, the entirety of the
investigation should be conducted by law enforcement so as not to compromise the integrity of
potential evidence and protect the school community (i.e., educators who may be part of the
investigation, victims, etc.).

Financial information, personally identifying information and content, as well as private images
may all be contained on a student’s computer or personal electronic device. School and law
enforcement officials should consult with Article 7.5 regarding any searches and seizures of students
and their property.

4.8.2. Blogs, Social Media, and Free Speech Issues

Blogs and social media have become a public forum for many people, including students, to post
a variety of personal information, including biographical information, opinion, media, and insulting or
harassing speech.
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School officials should be aware that blogs or social media posts that involve bias-related acts
(see Article 3.16) or threats to cause death, serious bodily injury, or significant bodily injury (see Article
3.10) may trigger mandatory reporting requirements or may constitute HIB, triggering a school’s
obligations under the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act (see Article 4.4).

However, school officials should also be aware that a school’s imposition of discipline and
county prosecution of blog and social media content can implicate the issue of “free speech” under the
Federal and New Jersey Constitutions. Prosecution of individuals who harass or threaten specific groups
or individuals is commonplace. However, law enforcement may be unable to prosecute those who
merely publish an opinion or a photograph. School personnel as well as students often are the target of
information contained in blogs.

4.8.3. Reporting of Blogs, Social Media, and Free Speech Issues

There is no obligation on the part of school personnel to report any blogging or free speech
issues, unless the conduct rises to the level of mandatory report, as outlined in Article 3.

Law enforcement authorities have the ability to preserve evidence before the author has an
opportunity to alter it. If such information is brought to the attention of law enforcement, a legal
determination will be made on whether the information contained in the blog is constitutionally
protected and whether it is criminal in nature.

Content on a blog or social media post may also constitute HIB. Law enforcement officials agree
to notify the principal of the school at which a student is enrolled when a student or a student’s parent
or guardian reports to the law enforcement agency that a student may be the victim of HIB, as defined
in the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act.

Article 5. Notice of Arrests

5.1.  Arrests of Students on School Grounds

Whenever a student has been arrested on school grounds, the law enforcement officer or
agency involved shall, as soon as practicable, notify the building principal. Whenever possible, such
notice shall be given before the student has been taken off school grounds. Where the studentis a
juvenile, all information concerning the circumstances of the arrest shall be provided to the building
principal on a confidential basis and in accordance with the provisions of N...S.A. 2A:4A-60d(3). See
Article 8.4 of this Agreement for a synopsis of those laws.

5.2. Arrests of Non-Students on School Grounds

Where a person other than an enrolled student is arrested on school grounds, the building
principal shall be advised as to the circumstances of the offense and the identity of the offender,
provided that where the person arrested is a juvenile, it is understood that the law enforcement agency
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or officer involved is not permitted to divulge any information that would violate the laws governing the
disclosure of juvenile information. See Article 8.4 of this Agreement for a synopsis of those laws.

5.3.  Arrests of Students off School Grounds During Operating School Hours

When a student is arrested off school grounds during operating school hours, or under
circumstances that would lead the arresting officer to believe that a school official was responsible for
the care and custody of the student at the time of the arrest, or where the arresting officer reasonably
believes that the student was in transit between school and his home at the time of arrest, the arresting
officer shall, as soon as practicable, notify the building principal of the school in which the student is
enrolled. Allinformation concerning the basis and circumstances of the arrest shall be provided to the
building principal on a confidential basis and in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60, as
summarized in Article 8.4 of this Agreement.

5.4. Parental Notification

When the building principal is advised of a student’s arrest, pursuant to the provisions of this
Agreement, the principal or his or her designee will, as soon as practicable, and in accordance with
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)3 and 11 and the associated board of education policies and procedures regarding
parental notification, contact a parent or guardian of the student. It is understood that the law
enforcement agency making the arrest also is required to attempt to contact the student’s parent or
guardian pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-33.

it is agreed that the (school official) shall at the request of the (law enforcement agency) and/or
the County Prosecutor’s Office provide information concerning the efforts by the principal or school
staff to contact and notify the student’s parent(s) or guardian.

Article 6. Arrest Protocols

For the purpose of this Agreement, the term “arrest” shall include the taking into custody of a
juvenile for any offense which if committed by an adult would constitute a crime or disorderly persons
offense.

6.1. Requests by School Officials

All requests by any school official to summon a law enforcement officer for the purpose of
making an arrest on school grounds, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)2 and 9, whether for a suspected
violation of the Comprehensive Drug Reform Act or for a suspected violation of any other criminal
statute, should be directed to the (designated police liaison or to the chief of the department having
patrol jurisdiction). Nothing herein shall be construed in any way to preclude or discourage any person
from dialing “9-1-1" to report an emergency.
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6.2. Minimizing Disruption of the Educational Process

It shall be the general policy of (law enforcement agency) when making any arrest on school
grounds to minimize the disruption of the school environment to the greatest extent possible,
consistent with the requirements of public safety. Accordingly, substantial weight shall be given by the
law enforcement officer assigned to make the arrest to the specific recommendations of the building
principal or local chief school administrator as to the time, place, and manner for effecting the arrest.

6.2.1. Arrests to be Conducted in Private

So as to minimize any disruption of the educational environment, every reasonable effort should
be made to effect the arrest in the building principal's office, or in some other designated area away
from the general student population.

6.2.2. Preferred Use of Plainclothes Officers to Effect Arrest

Where feasible, the responding law enforcement officer(s) should be in plainclothes, use
unmarked police vehicle(s) and refrain from using a siren or flashing overhead lights. In addition, the
number of responding officers should be kept to a minimum, consistent with the requirements of public
safety.

6.2.3. Cooperation with Arrests on School Property

It is understood and agreed that school officials shall cooperate with law enforcement officials
and shall not provide sanctuary from arrest to any person, and that school officials shall not interfere
with or impede any law enforcement officer in the performance of his or her duties.

6.3. Other Spontaneous Arrests

6.3.1. Notice to Building Principal

In cases in which a law enforcement agency responds during operating school hours to a
suspected offense reported by someone other than the building principal or local chief school
administrator, or where a law enforcement officer observes the occurrence of an offense on school
grounds during operating school hours which would justify a warrantless arrest, or where a person
subject to arrest retreats onto school grounds during operating school hours, the arresting law
enforcement officer shall notify the building principal as soon as it is practical to do so. Where the arrest
involves a student enrolled in the school, the building principal shall, wherever feasible, be notified
before the student is taken from school grounds.

6.3.2. Minimizing Disruption

When effecting any spontaneous arrest on school grounds during operating school hours, every
reasonable precaution shall be taken to minimize the disruption of the schoo! environment to the
greatest extent possible, consistent with the requirements of public safety.
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6.4. Planned Arrests

Whenever a planned arrest is to occur on school grounds, the building principal or local chief
school administrator shall be advised and consulted before the arrest occurs.

Article 7. Law Enforcement Operations

7.1. Inquiries Regarding Law Enforcement Operations

All inquiries or complaints received by school personnel regarding interviews, investigations,
arrests or other operations conducted by sworn law enforcement officers shall be directed to the
appropriate law enforcement agency. This shall apply to inquiries from parents, guardians, the press or
any other sources. A school official receiving such an inquiry or complaint shall also notify the
appropriate law enforcement agency of the nature of the inquiry or complaint (N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3).

7.2. Interrogations and Interviews

No law enforcement officer shall direct, solicit, encourage, attend or otherwise participate in the
questioning of any juvenile by school officials unless such questioning could be lawfully conducted by
the law enforcement officer acting on his or her own authority in accordance with the rules and
procedures governing law enforcement interrogations and interviews. All information obtained by
school employees concerning the commission of an offense, whether obtained as a result of the
questioning of a student or otherwise, shall be referred to the appropriate law enforcement agency,
provided however, that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to authorize or require a schoo!
employee to divulge information or records in violation of the confidentiality requirements of 42 C.F.R.
Part 2, or any other applicable state or federal regulation, law or rule of evidence concerning
confidential and privileged communications. The procedures for and responsibilities of staff, with regard
to interviews of students suspected of possessing or distributing a controlled dangerous substance,
including anabolic steroids, drug paraphernalia or a firearm or other deadly weapon shall be in
accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.1 et seq. and the associated board policies and procedures.
Notification of parents in instances of law enforcement interviews involving their children will be made
by school staff in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b) and the associated board policies and
procedures. It is understood that law enforcement officials need not contact parents to interview a
minor student when the student is not the target of an investigation. However, law enforcement
officials must contact parents to interview a minor student when the student is a target of an
investigation.

7.3. Undercover School Operations

Undercover school operations are designed to disrupt ongoing drug-distribution activities.
These operations are difficult to implement and require extensive planning, cooperation, and secrecy.
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Attorney General Executive Directive 1988-1 imposes strict limitations on the use of this investigative
tactic. The Attorney General Directive is designed to protect the educational environment of a school
and to minimize the risk of injury to students and undercover officers. Rules and regulations
promulgated by the State Board of Education and codified at N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)7 require local district
boards of education to adopt and implement policies and procedures to ensure cooperation between
school staff and law enforcement authorities in all matters relating to undercover school operations.

7.3.1. Requests to Conduct Operations

a. All requests by school officials to undertake an undercover school operation in a particular
school or school district will be directed to the local chief of police or, where appropriate, to the
Superintendent of State Police. However, it is understood that the ultimate approval of all
undercover school operations can only be granted by (designated school official) and (the county
prosecutor) or, where appropriate, the Attorney General or his or her designee. When the
school official designated as the liaison for law enforcement is the person under investigation,
school districts are encouraged to have a plan in place on who should report to law enforcement
(e.g., the liaison’s supervisor or the chief school administrator).

b. Arequest to undertake an undercover school operation will not be made public by either the
requesting school official or the law enforcement agency receiving the request.

c. The county prosecutor or the Attorney General or his or her designee will make a good faith
effort to comply with all reasonable requests to initiate an undercover operation, considering
the scope and nature of the substance abuse or weapons-related problem in the school or
district and the availability of law enforcement resources.

d. Where the county prosecutor or the Statewide Narcotics Task Force is for any reason unable to
comply with a request to undertake an undercover school operation, the county prosecutor or
the Attorney General or his or her designee will promptly notify the requesting school officials.

e. The decision to decline a request to undertake an undercover school operation shall not be
made public by either the requesting school officials or the law enforcement agency receiving
the request.

f. Nothing herein shall be construed to preclude law enforcement officials from initiating a request
to conduct an undercover school operation pursuant to Section 2 of this Addendum.

7.3.2. Consultation and Cooperation

a. Asa practical matter, a successful undercover school operation cannot take place without the
assent and continuing cooperation of the building principal and local chief school administrator
and, except as may be expressly provided herein, none shall be attempted without such assent
and continuing cooperation. Accordingly, prior to the placement of any undercover officer in a
school, the school building principal and the local chief school administrator will be consulted
unless there are compelling reasons not to consult with either of these officials. Where the
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Attorney General determines that compelling reasons, exist, an alternative school official or
officials will be designated who will be consulted in lieu of the building principal or local chief
school administrator prior to the placement of an undercover officer in a school and throughout
the course of the operation.

In any case where the undercover school operation has not been requested by an appropriate
school official, the law enforcement agency proposing the operation will advise the building
principal and local chief school administrator of the nature of the proposed operation and will,
to the greatest extent possible, explain the reasons why the operation is necessary and
appropriate. This explanation should include a description of the extent and nature of the
suspected drug trafficking or weapons-related activities occurring within the school
environment that would justify the operation. Itis understood and agreed that law
enforcement officials will not be required or permitted to divulge any information received in
confidence, whether from an informant or otherwise, or that would violate the laws or court
rules governing the disclosure of juvenile offender information, grand jury information, or
information derived from electronic surveillance.

It is understood and agreed that undercover school operations should not necessarily be limited
to schools falling within any particular region or demographic setting e.g., rural, suburban, urban
center, or any particular district factoring group (i.e., a composite measure of socioeconomic
status within a geographic area). Rather, subject to the availability of resources, undercover
school operations should be proposed and conducted in any district or school where the
designated law enforcement and school officials determine that such operations would be
beneficial.

Information provided by law enforcement to the building principal or local chief school
administrator will be kept strictly confidential and will not be divulged by the building principal
or local chief school administrator to any other person without the express approval of the
county prosecutor or, where appropriate, the Attorney General or his or her designee.

No law enforcement officer will disclose the fact that an undercover school operation has been
proposed, requested, or is being or has been considered with respect to any particular school or
school district.

The building principal and the local chief school administrator will be afforded the opportunity
to offer specific concerns regarding the conduct of any proposed undercover school operation,
and will also be given the opportunity to make general or specific recommendations as to how
to minimize the impact of the proposed operation on the educational environment, existing
substance abuse counseling programs, and the relationship between school authorities, the law
enforcement community, and the student population. In developing an undercover school
operation plan, and throughout the course of the operation, the law enforcement agency
conducting the operation will give due consideration to the concerns and recommendations
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offered by the building principal and local chief school administrator. Furthermore, these school
officials will be advised whenever the law enforcement agency conducting the undercover
school operation is for any reason unable or unwilling to follow any proposed recommendation.
However, it is understood that the law enforcement agency responsible for conducting the
undercover operation shall maintain control of the logistics of any operation once begun.

The law enforcement agency conducting the undercover school operation will provide to the
building principal and local chief school administrator a detailed briefing concerning the
logistical and record keeping requirements associated with successfully placing an officer
undercover. The building principal and local chief school administrator may contact the
designated liaison who will be available on a 24-hour basis to respond to any problems or
inquiries.

7.3.3. Security; Limited Disclosure Agreements; Early Termination

The building principal and local chief school administrator will be informed as to the identity of
any person assigned to an undercover investigation unless there are compelling reasons, as shall
be determined by the Attorney General, not to inform either of these officials. The building
principal and local chief school administrator, and any other school officials or employees who
may be informed as to the identity of the undercover officer, will safeguard the identity of that
officer and will not disclose the existence of a contemplated or ongoing undercover school
operation to any person.

In the event that the building principal, local chief school administrator or any other school
official or employee who may have been informed as to the existence of the operation
subsequently learns of any information that suggests that the true identity of the undercover
officer has been revealed, or that any person has questioned the identity or status of the
undercover officer as a bona fide member of the school community, or that the integrity of the
operation has been in any other way compromised, such information will be immediately
communicated to the law enforcement agency conducting the operation or to the county
prosecutor.

The school principal and local chief school administrator will be advised whenever an
undercover school operation has been suspended or terminated or whenever the undercover
officer is permanently removed from the school environment.

7.3.4. Use of Undercover Officers as School Employees

It is understood that no undercover school operation may be conducted that entails the

placement of an undercover officer as a certified member of the school community without prior

written approval of the Attorney General with notice given to the Commissioner of Education, or in the

case of non-public schools, the chief school officer. It is understood that the Attorney General will base

his approval upon a finding that 1) other law enforcement methods would not be effective, and 2) there
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is a reasonable articulable suspicion that adult school employees or other non-student member(s) of the
school community are engaged in drug trafficking or unlawful weapons-related activities. In that event,
and upon such findings, the underlying purpose of the operation would not be to identify or to
apprehend student offenders, but rather to identify and to apprehend suspected adult or non-student
offenders. Furthermore, the law enforcement agency involved will develop, in consultation with the
building principal and local chief school administrator, those steps that will be taken to minimize the
undercover officer's contact with, and impact upon, the student population. It is understood that no
undercover officer will be permitted to teach a formal class of instruction without the approval of the
Attorney General and local chief school administrator, and that in no event will an undercover officer
posing as a non-student member of the school community be permitted to establish or to simulate any
confidential, trust or counselor relationship with any student.

7.3.5. Limitations on Undercover Officer Conduct

a. Code of Student Conduct Infractions. It is understood that an undercover officer cannot be
expected to pose as a model student. Nonetheless, no undercover officer will engage in any
activities that unduly disrupt the educational environment, or that amount to code of student
conduct infractions of such a nature and magnitude so as to prevent other students from
enjoying the full benefits of that educational environment. An undercover officer will at all
times respect the rights of teachers and other students.

b. Confidentiality of Treatment Records. Federal regulations and state policies concerning the
confidentiality of treatment and substance abuse counseling program records and information
will be strictly safeguarded. No law enforcement activity will be permitted in any way to
interfere with, intrude upon, or compromise the integrity of any substance abuse counseling or
treatment program.

c. Entrapment. No undercover officer will encourage or counsel any student to purchase or use
alcohol or any controlled dangerous substance.

d. Firearms Policy. It is understood that undercover work concerning drug trafficking activities is
inherently dangerous. Accordingly, it is understood and agreed that law enforcement will take
all measures that are necessary and appropriate to protect the undercover officer, as well as to
protect all students with whom the undercover officer may come in contact, and to avoid
potentially violent confrontations whenever possible. In general, an undercover officer will not
carry a firearm or otherwise bring onto, or maintain, a firearm on school grounds. An
exemption from the general rule prohibiting the carrying or bringing onto school grounds of a
firearm will only be granted with the express approval of the officer's immediate superior,
unless otherwise specified in the plan approval process for good cause shown. Any firearm
brought onto schoo! grounds will ordinarily be contained in a closed and fastened case locked in
the trunk of an automobile operated by the undercover officer. It is assumed, moreover, that
any exemption from the general weapons carrying policy agreed to herein will only be rarely
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sought, and approval to carry a firearm onto school grounds will only be granted where
alternative means of providing adequate security or support are not feasible.

e. Non-Participation in Treatment. No undercover officer will in any way participate in or attend
any drug or alcohol abuse treatment or counseling program. In the event that an undercover
officer is referred to, or recommended to participate in, a counseling or treatment program by a
teacher or school staff member, the undercover officer will report the circumstances of that
referral or recommendation to his superiors and will decline such referral or recommendation.

f.  Preservation of Teacher Trust Relationships. No undercover officer will engage in any activity or
conversation that would require any teacher or schoo! official to violate or compromise a trust
relationship with any student.

g. Romantic Involvement. No undercover officer will encourage or participate in any romantic
relationship with any student during the course of an undercover operation.

h. Treatment. No undercover officer will discourage any student from seeking drug or alcohol
abuse treatment or counseling, or from reporting his or her own alcohol or substance abuse
problem or dependency.

i.  Use and Distribution Prohibition. No undercover officer will ingest or inhale (other than passive
inhalation) any controlled dangerous substance; nor will any undercover officer be permitted to
distribute or dispense any controlled dangerous substance without the express approval of the
county prosecutor or, where appropriate, the Attorney General or his or her designee. Under no
circumstances will an undercover officer sell or transfer a firearm on school grounds or to a
student without the express prior approval of the county prosecutor, or, where appropriate, the
Attorney General or his or her designee.

7.3.6. Post-Operation Report

Itis understood that following the termination of every undercover school operation, the county
prosecutor or the Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Statewide Narcotics Task Force will
prepare a post-operation report that will be transmitted to the Attorney General. The report will discuss
the results and impact of the operation and any logistical or policy problems which were encountered.
The report will also include recommendations for improved procedures in dealing with potentially
recurring problems. The county prosecutor or the Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Statewide
Narcotics Task Force will solicit the comments and recommendations of the building principal and local
chief school administrator, and these comments and recommendations will be included in the post-
operation report. The contents of a post-operation report will be publicly disclosed, and a copy will be
provided to the building principal, the local chief school administrator, the executive county
superintendent and the Commissioner of Education.

52



7.3.7. Post-Operation Seminars

To maximize the deterrent impact of an undercover school operation, the law enforcement
agency conducting the operation will make available officers to participate in seminars which, upon the
invitation of appropriate school officials, may be held in the school in which the operation was
conducted. The purpose of these seminars will be to discuss with teachers, parents and/or students the
nature of the completed operation, the steps taken to minimize the intrusion into the educational
environment, and to discuss the substance abuse or weapons-related problem from a law enforcement
perspective. Itis the agreed upon policy of the parties to the attached Agreement to promote the frank
and open discussion of issues concerning the need for such operations, and to solicit opinions and
recommendations from teachers, parents, students and members of the community-at-large.

7.4. Planned Surveillance

7.4.1. Live Streaming Video

Pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:41-9, if at least one school building of a school district is
equipped with video surveillance equipment that is capable of streaming live video wirelessly to
a remote location, the board of education and local law enforcement shall enter into a
memorandum of understanding which provides the authorities with the capacity to activate the
equipment and view the live streaming video during an emergency situation. The memorandum
of understanding, at a minimum, shall include:

1. Alist of designated persons, including contact information, position, rank, and
supervisor’s contact information, of those who are authorized to activate the equipment
to view the live streaming video. The list may be executed as a confidential attachment
to the memorandum of understanding.

2. Description of the emergency circumstances under which the designated individuals
could activate and view the live streaming video.

3. Adetailed plan for preventing and detecting unauthorized access to live streaming
video.

In the case of a school building that is located in a municipality in which there is no municipal
police department, the board shall enter into a memorandum of understanding with an entity
designated by the Superintendent of State Police.

In the event that the parties to the memorandum of understanding are unable to reach an
agreement regarding any provision required [(1)-(3) above)], the County Prosecutor shall make the final
determination regarding that provision.

Nothing in this section shall be construed as requiring installation of video surveillance
equipment capable of streaming live video wirelessly to a remote site.
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7.4.2. Notice and Consultation

In the absence of compelling or exigent circumstances, as shall be determined by the county
prosecutor or the Attorney General or his or her designee, no planned narcotics surveillance operation
as defined in this Agreement will be conducted during operating school hours without first consulting
with the building principal or local chief school administrator of the school involved.

7.4.3. Limitations; Targeted Subjects

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any law enforcement officer from
making any observations from any place or property not owned or used by a school or school board,
except that a planned narcotics surveillance or any other form of observation should, wherever possible,
be limited to observing 1) those specific individuals or groups of individuals who are believed to be
involved in drug trafficking or weapons-related activities, or 2) those specific areas or places on school
grounds, where drug use or trafficking or weapons-related activity is believed to occur frequently.

7.5. School Searches
7.5.1. Searches Conducted Independently by School Officials

No law enforcement officer shall direct, solicit, encourage or otherwise actively participate in
any specific search conducted by a school official unless such search could be lawfully conducted by the
law enforcement officer acting on his or her own authority in accordance with the rules and procedures
governing law enforcement searches. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to preclude a law
enforcement officer from taking custody of any item or substance seized by any school employee,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)5iv.

7.5.2. Notice to Law Enforcement of Seizure of Contraband

School officials shall immediately notify law enforcement officers whenever a school employee
comes into possession, whether as a result of a search or otherwise, of any substance or item believed
to be a controlled dangerous substance, cannabis, drug paraphernalia, firearm, or non-firearm weapon
used or threatened to be used in committing an offense.

7.5.3. Law Enforcement Assumption of Responsibility

School officials shall permit law enfarcement officers upon their arrival to the scene to assume
responsibility for conducting any search, in which event the standards governing searches conducted by
law enforcement officers shall prospectively apply.
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7.5.4. Llegal Questions during Conduct of Law Enforcement Search

Any questions by school officials concerning the legality of any contemplated or ongoing arrest,
search or seizure conducted by a law enforcement officer on school grounds should be directed to the
(appropriate county prosecutor), pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)5ii, or in the case of an arrest, search
or seizure undertaken by a member of the State Police, Division of Criminal Justice, or federal law
enforcement officer to the Director of Criminal Justice.

7.5.5. Agreement Does Not Constitute a Request to Conduct Searches

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed in any way to require any school official to actively
participate in any search or seizure conducted or supervised by a law enforcement officer; nor shall this
Agreement be construed to direct, solicit or encourage any school official to conduct any search or
seizure on behalf of law enforcement, or for the sole purpose of ultimately turning evidence of a crime
over to a law enforcement agency. Rather, it is understood that any search or seizure conducted by
school officials shall be based on the school officials' independent authority to conduct reasonable
investigations as provided in New Jersey v. T.L.O and, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)5.

7.5.6. Search and Seizure Legal Advice to School Officials

Any question by a school official concerning the law governing searches conducted by school
officials may be addressed to the (county prosecutor or his or her designee).

7.5.7. Requests to Use Drug-Detection Canines

It is understood and agreed that all inspections of lockers, desks, or other objects or personal
property on school grounds involving the use of law enforcement drug-detection canines shall be
conducted in accordance with the policies and procedures established in the New Jersey School Search
Policy Manual; shall comply with the “Special Rules and Procedures Governing the Use of Law
Enforcement Canines to Conduct Suspicionless Examinations” set forth in Chapter 4.5 F of that manual;
and shall conform to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)5vi. No such operation shall be undertaken without the
express permission of the county prosecutor or the Director of the Division of Criminal Justice or his or
her designee in the New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety. It is further understood and
agreed that the (designated school official) shall not invite or approve the use of a privately-owned
drug-detection canine without first providing notice of the intention to use any such private service to
the (law enforcement agency) and the county prosecutor, and it is further understood and agreed that if
any such private drug-detection canine alerts to the presence of a controlled dangerous substance, any
substance, paraphernalia, or other evidence of an offense seized by any person pursuant to such alert
shall be turned over to (law enforcement agency) or the County Prosecutor’s Office in accordance with
the provisions of Articles 3.2 and 3.4 of this Agreement.
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7.6. Routine Patrols

7.6.1. Visible Enforcement Plans

The (police department) shall maintain at appropriate times a visible police presence within all
drug-free school zones, and shall file and periodically update a confidential report with the (prosecutor)
detailing how these zones are to be patrolled.

7.6.2. Notice to School Officials

Where a patrol plan requires an officer periodically to enter onto school grounds, the (police
department) shall advise the appropriate (school building principal and local chief school administrator).
It is understood and agreed that any portion of a patrol plan disclosed to school officials in accordance
with this subsection shall be kept strictly confidential.

7.6.3. On-Site Reporting

Except when responding to an emergency, no on-duty police officer will enter any school
building without first complying with the procedures established by the school for the reporting of
visitors. It shall be the responsibility of each police department or agency with patrol responsibilities to
make certain that all officers are familiar and comply with the reporting policies established by each
school within the law enforcement agency's jurisdiction.

7.7. Police Presence at Extra-Curricular Events

It is our agreed upon policy that (police department with patrol responsibilities), working in
conjunction with appropriate school officials, should, whenever possible, provide for the presence of
uniformed police officer(s) at any event at which the chief school administrator believes it would be in
the interest of public safety. In the absence of compelling reasons as may be determined by the (county
prosecutor or chief executive officer of the law enforcement agency_having patrol jurisdiction) it is
understood and agreed that uniformed police officers shall not be assigned to school functions, and
especially those functions occurring within school buildings, except with the approval of the building
principal or local chief school administrator. All requests by school officials for law enforcement
agencies to provide for a uniformed presence at any school event should be made in accordance with
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)10 and directed to (local police or liaison, local chief executive officer of the law
enforcement department or agency having patrol jurisdiction).

7.8. Body Worn Cameras by Law Enforcement

This article addresses body worn camera (BWC) use in schools by law enforcement and the
recorded footage obtained from BWCs.
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To comply with P.L.2020, ¢.1295, while in a school or youth facility (or on school or youth facility
property under circumstances where minor children would be in view of the body worn camera), an
officer must deactivate their body worn camera, unless they are actively engaging in an investigation of
a criminal offense, responding to an emergency call, or if the officer reasonably believes they would be
required to use constructive authority or force.

“Constructive authority” shall have the same meaning as defined in the Attorney General’s Use
of Force Policy, except that the term shall apply only to the use of the officer’s authority to exert control
over a subject when directed against a person who is subject to an investigative detention or arrest
(e.g., “show me your hands,” “get out of the vehicle,” etc.), or directed against a person if the officer has
un-holstered a firearm or a conducted energy device (e.g., “move out of the way,” “get down,” etc.).

Attorney General Directive No. 2022-17 contains a “Body Worn Camera Policy” (the “Policy”) to
guide law enforcement. The Policy defines a BWC as a device worn by a law enforcement officer that
makes an electronic audio and video recording of activities that take place during any law enforcement
action.

Pursuant to section 3.3 (f) of the Policy, “officers assigned to duties within schools or youth
facilities as part of the normal daily educational environment, such as School Resource Officers (SROs)
and Class |ll Special Law Enforcement Officers (SLEO lils), are not required to wear a BWC. Officers
assigned to duties at schools or youth facilities working security or crowd-control functions at special
events such as athletic competitions, graduations or similar public events shall be equipped with BWCs
but are not required to wear a BWC.”

Pursuant to section 5.4 of the Policy, an officer equipped with a BWC must activate their BWC
when responding to or investigating N.J.S.A. 2C:33-15a(4), “possessing or consuming an alcoholic
beverage, marijuana, hashish, or a cannabis item.” Additionally, the BWC must remain activated until
the encounter has fully concluded and the officer leaves the scene and shall not be deactivated based
on a request by a person who is the subject of the suspected violation of N.J.5.A. 2C:33-15, or for any
other reason.

Pursuant to section 7.1.1 of the Policy, “If an officer is required to de-activate the BWC in
accordance with the provisions of this Section, the officer shall narrate the reason for de-activation (e.g.,
“l am entering a school building where children are present.”). The BWC shall be re-activated as soon as
it is safe and practicable to do so if and when the circumstances requiring de-activation no longer exist

¢ The New lersey Legislature mandated universal body worn camera {“BWC”) implementation pursuant to
P.L.2020, c.128 and 129. These two laws require all “uniformed State, county, and municipal patrol law
enforcement officers” wear a BWC that electronically records audio and video while acting in the course
of their duties, and provide the parameters for the operation of BWCs, including the handling of BWC
footage.

7 https://www.nj.gov/oag/dcj/agguide/directives/ag-Directive-2022-1.pdf This Policy updated the 2021-5
Attorney General Directive.
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(e.g., the officer is conversing with an adult as part of a criminal investigation while in a place within the
school where children would not be in view of the BWC).”

7.8.1 Body Worn Camera Footage and FERPA

Under the Family Education Rights Privacy Act (FERPA), a parent has the right to access, amend,
and consent to the release of their child’s education records. The “education records” are records
directly related to a student and maintained by an educational agency or institution or by a party acting
for the agency or institution. FERPA prohibits the improper disclosure of personally identifiable
information derived from education records. In most cases, footage from BWC is not an educational
record under the purview of FERPA, because BWC footage is normally maintained by police departments
and not school administration.

FERPA applies to BWC images and video in two scenarios: 1) if a school uses BWC images or
video of a student or students and relies upon that as part of a disciplinary action; 2) when a school
maintains a BWC video image that is directly related to a particular student or students.

7.8.2 Other Records Considerations

Pursuant to N.J.5.A. 2A:4A-60, any images obtained from a law enforcement officers BWC, both
audio and video, “. .. pertaining to juveniles charged as a delinquent or found to be part of a juvenile
family-crisis, shall be strictly safeguarded from public inspection” and shall not be disclosed to any
person, including school personnel, without an order from the court.

Nothing in this provision restricts access of any records, including records of a law enforcement
BWC, subject to redaction, to those persons and entities identified in N.J.5.A. 2A:4A-60a. In addition,
nothing in this provision restricts access to information permitted to be shared with school personnel in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60c, N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60d, or N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60e.

For questions or concerns on BWC use in schools or record requests of BWC footage, school
districts and chiefs of police should be guided by their county prosecutor and schoo! counsel. It is
recommended that individual schools and their law enforcement partners discuss whether the BWC
should be employed by SROs or SLEO llls, the parameters of their use should they be employed, and
how the images and footage should be shared between the agencies.

7.9. Truancy; Assistance Provided to Attendance Officers

The sheriff and his officers and all police officers and constables are required to assist school
attendance officers in the performance of their duties (N.J.S.A. 18A:38-30). Assistance shall, when
practicable, include accompanying attendance officers to the homes of students in circumstances where
attendance officers may have concerns for their safety. However, attendance officers are not law
enforcement officers and law enforcement officers should not provide assistance of a type that would
not be available to other civilian investigators. For example, law enforcement officers should not use
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law enforcement computer systems to run motor vehicle checks or criminal background checks for
attendance officers. Law enforcement officers should also keep in mind that when accompanying an
attendance officer to a home, they have no additional authority to demand entry to the home if the
occupants do not consent and there is no emergency that would justify entry into the home.

7.10. Dispute Resolution Procedures

It is understood and agreed that any dispute or objection to any proposed or ongoing law
enforcement operation or activity on school grounds will be consistent with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)15, and
shall be directed by the appropriate school official to the chief executive officer of the law enforcement
agency involved. Where the chief executive officer of the agency is for any reason unable to
satisfactorily resolve the dispute or objection, the matter shall be referred to the (county prosecutor),
who is hereby authorized to work in conjunction with the (executive county superintendent of schools)
and, where appropriate, the Division of Criminal Justice, to take appropriate steps to resolve the matter.
Any dispute that cannot be resolved at the county level shall be resolved by the Attorney General whose
decision shall be binding.

Article 8. Confidentiality and School Access to Law Enforcement Information

8.1. Substance Abuse Confidentiality Laws

The New Jersey Legislature on January 12, 1998 adopted P.L. 1997, c. 362, in accordance with
the Governor’s conditional veto recommendations. The law, codified at N.J.S.A.18A:40A-7.1 et seq., and
the supportive regulations at N.J.A.C. 6A:16-3.2(a)2 and 6.5, afford confidentiality protections to a public
or private secondary school pupil whao is participating in a school-based drug or alcohol abuse counseling
program where that pupil provides information during the course of the counseling session that
indicates that the pupil’s parent or guardian or other person residing in the pupil’s household is
dependent upon or illegally using a controlled dangerous substance. The New Jersey confidentiality
statute is broader than the federal confidentiality statute and regulations (42 C.F.R. Part 2) in that it
applies to any student who is participating in a school-based alcohol or drug abuse counseling program,
even if the student is not personally abusing substances, but rather is seeking counseling to deal with
the problems related to the substance abuse of another. The federal law, in contrast, only provides
confidentiality protections to persons who are “patients,” that is, persons who are receiving counseling
for their own substance abuse problem. The state confidentiality law nonetheless features an important
exception to the general rule of preserving confidentiality. Specifically, the State law is expressly subject
to the provisions of N.J.5.A. 9:6-8.10, and thus does not prevent school officials from disclosing
information to Child Protection and Permanency (CP&P) or to a law enforcement agency “if the
information would cause a person to reasonably suspect that the secondary school pupil or another
child may be an abused or neglected child.” Accordingly, it is understood and agreed that the
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confidentiality statute in no way relieves the duty established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 9:6-8.10, which
requires any citizen, including school district employees, volunteers or interns, to inform both CP&P and
a law enforcement agency immediately when there is reasonable cause to believe that a child is or has
been abused or neglected.

8.2. Clarification Regarding Confidentiality of Contents of Student Records

It is understood and agreed that federal and state laws pertaining to the confidentiality of
student records, pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 2, N.J.S.A. 18A:40A-7.1 and 7.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7, only
prohibit the disclosure of the contents of such records; these laws do not extend to other sources of
information concerning the same events or transactions that happen to be memorialized in the student
records. Thus, for example, a teacher, counselor, administrator, or other school staff member who is a
witness to criminal activity may be required to testify in a court or grand jury or may be required to
report information to law enforcement authorities pursuant to this Agreement based upon personal
knowledge and memory notwithstanding that the criminal activity reported or testified about has been
recorded in a student record that is subject to state or federal confidentiality laws. In other words, the
act by a school official of memorializing an incident, event, or observation in a student record in no way
precludes that school official or any other material witness from reporting or testifying from personal
knowledge as to the documented incident, event, or observation, provided, however, that nothing in
this Agreement must be construed to authorize or require a school employee to divulge information or
records in violation of the confidentiality requirements of 42 C.F.R. Part 2, or any other applicable state
or federal regulation, law or rule of evidence concerning confidential and privileged communications.
Furthermore, the records of a designated “law enforcement unit” do not constitute student records (20
U.S.C. 1232g(a)(4)(ii)).

8.3. Records of Law Enforcement Units

Records of a “law enforcement unit” designated pursuant to Article 2.4 of this Agreement do
not constitute student records. This comports with the requirements of the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act (FERPA), which was amended in 1992 to exempt such records from the definition of
“education records” (20 U.S.C. 1232g(a)(4)(ii)). Law enforcement records are records, files, documents
and other materials created by a law enforcement unit for a law enforcement purpose and maintained
by the law enforcement unit (34 C.F.R. 99.8(b)(1)). In the preamble to the FERPA regulations published
in the Federal Register on January 17, 1995, the United States Department of Education stated:
“...where a law enforcement unit also performs non-law enforcement functions, the records created and
maintained by that unit are considered law enforcement unit records, even when those records were
created for dual purposes (e.g., for both law enforcement and student conduct purposes). Only records
that were created and maintained by the unit exclusively for a non-law enforcement purpose will not be
considered records of a law enforcement unit” (60 F.R. 3467). When one or more law enforcement units
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have been established by the school district, the schoo! district agrees to disclose to the appropriate law
enforcement agency, or the Department of Children and Families, as appropriate, any records, files,
documents and other materials of the law enforcement unit pertaining to the investigation of a violation
of the law. The disclosure of these records to a law enforcement agency does not prohibit the use of
these records for educational purposes, such as violations of the code of student conduct.

8.4.  Statutory Authority to Disclose Information

New Jersey’s juvenile confidentiality laws were amended by P.L. 1994, c. 56 to make it easier for
law enforcement agencies to share information with schools. The revised law provides for three
categories of disclosure to schools as follows: (1) permissive disclosure during an investigation (N.J.S.A.
2A:4A-60e); (2) disclosure following a charge at the principal’s request (N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60c(3)); and (3)
required disclosure following a charge in certain circumstances (N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60d). In addition, a law
enforcement agency is authorized to disclose certain information to the victim of an offense committed
by a juvenile. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.4, the board of education confirms its obligation to adopt and
implement policies and procedures protecting the access to information related to juvenile justice
proceedings, according to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60.

The revised law permits law enforcement or prosecuting agencies to disclose information
regarding juveniles who are under investigation when that information may be useful in maintaining
order, safety, or discipline in the school or in planning programs relevant to the juvenile’s educational
and social development. This information may then be shared by the principal with appropriate school
staff, provided, however, that where the information relates only to an investigation, and where no
formal charges have been filed against the student, the statute prohibits this pre-charge information
from being maintained by school officials. Accordingly, this information should be provided orally by
law enforcement officers, rather than in writing, so as to avoid inadvertent retention or disclosure of
such information.

The revised law further contains a provision that authorizes a principal to request information
concerning juvenile delinquency charges that have been filed against a student enrolled in the school.
These requests may either be made on a case-by-case basis or in accordance with procedures that could
be agreed to as part of this Agreement.

[Optional: Pursuant to Article 5.2 of this Agreement, the (law enforcement agency) hereby agrees

automatically to disclose to the principal this information regarding any juvenile delinquency charge
filed against any student enrolled in the school.®]

8This provision is optional. The parties to the Agreement may delete this sentence or may modify it to
limit the “blanket” request to specified delinquency charges.
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Law enforcement and prosecuting agencies are required to advise the principal of the school
where the student is enrolled when:

¢ the offense occurred on school grounds or was committed against an employee or official of the
school;
e thejuvenile was taken into custody as a result of information or evidence provided by school
officials, whether or not on school grounds;
e the offense, if committed by an adult, would constitute a crime, and the offense:
a. resulted in death or serious bodily injury, or involved an attempt or conspiracy to cause
death or serious bodily injury;
b. involved the unlawful use or possession of a firearm or other weapon;
involved the unlawful manufacture, distribution, or possession with intent to distribute a
controlled dangerous substance or controlled substance analog;
d. was committed by a juvenile who acted with a purpose to intimidate an individual or group
of individuals because of race, color, religion, sexual orientation, or ethnicity; or
e. constitutes a crime of the first, second, or third degree.
f. NJS.A 2A:4A-60d

8.5. Agreement to Disclose Information Following a Charge

Where a juvenile has been charged with an act of delinquency that if committed by an adult
would constitute a crime or offense, it is requested and agreed, pursuant to the authority of N.J.S.A.
2A:4A-60c(1) and (3) that the (law enforcement agency) or County Prosecutor’s Office shall promptly
provide information as to the identity of the juvenile, the offense charged, the adjudication and the
disposition to (1) the principal of any school that is the victim of the offense; (2) the principal of any
school that employs the victim of the offense; and (3) the principal of any schoo! where the juvenile is
enrolled.

8.6. Agreement to Disclose Information During an Investigation

Pursuant to the authority of N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60e, the (law enforcement agency) and/or the
County Prosecutor’s Office agree(s) to notify verbally the principal of the schoo! at which the juvenile is
enrolled where the juvenile is under investigation or has been taken into custody but has not been
formally charged with the commission of any act that would constitute an offense if committed by an
adult, provided that the (law enforcement agency) or the County Prosecutor’s Office determines that
the information may be useful in maintaining order, safety, or discipline in the school or in planning
programs relevant to the juvenile’s educational and social development, and further provided that the
sharing of information will not interfere with or jeopardize an ongoing investigation or prosecution of
any person. It is understood and agreed that the information provided pursuant to this paragraph shall
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be provided orally rather than in writing, will be kept confidential, shall not be maintained by the school
as part of the juvenile’s student records, and shall be used only in accordance with the provisions of
N.J.5.A. 2A:4A-60e to maintain order, safety, or discipline in the school or in planning programs relevant
to the juvenile’s educational and social development. Nothing herein shall be construed to preclude
school officials from using such information in a suspension, expulsion, or other school conduct
proceeding, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1, whether occurring on or away from school grounds,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.5.

8.7.  Specificity of Disclosed Information

It is understood and agreed that where the (law enforcement agency) and/or County
Prosecutor’s Office is authorized, pursuant to law and the provisions of this Agreement to disclose
information concerning charged or suspected acts of delinquency, the law enforcement agency may
provide the principal with specific information concerning the offense or investigation, as appropriate,
that may be useful in maintaining order, safety, or discipline in the school or in planning programs
relevant to the juvenile’s educational and social development. Such information may include but need
not be limited to: (1) the specific type of drug found as determined by field tests and/or laboratory
analysis; (2) the amount, purity, and value of the drug found; (3) how the drug was packaged; (4)
whether cash was found or whether there were indications that the drug was intended to be sold or
distributed; (5) where precisely the drug or other contraband was found; (6) what type of weapon was
found; (7) whether a seized firearm was operable or loaded; or 8) whether the suspected offense
involved or was directed at another enrolled student. It is understood and agreed that it is especially
important for law enforcement agencies to promptly share information as may be authorized by law
concerning the identity of a victim who is enrolled at the same school as the juvenile charged with or
suspected of committing the offense so that school officials can take appropriate steps to protect the
victim from further attack, to enforce a restraining order or condition of probation or pre-trial release
that the juvenile have no contact with the victim, or to prevent retaliation or an escalation of violence.
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8.8. Disclosure of Adult Student Information

Where a student who has been arrested or is under investigation is 18 years old or older, or
otherwise is being treated as an adult by the criminal justice system, the (law enforcement agency)
and/or the County Prosecutor’s Office agrees to provide to the principal of the school at which the
student is enrolled all information that would otherwise be provided pursuant to the provisions of
Article 8 of this Agreement.

8.9. Law Enforcement Testimony at School Student Conduct Hearings; Required Notice to
the County Prosecutor

The (law enforcement agency) agrees, upon the request of (school official), to make available
officer(s) to testify as appropriate in any suspension or expulsion hearing before the board of education,
pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:37.1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1 et seq., or other appropriate school
authority as may be necessary to satisfy the due process rights of a student subject to school discipline,
provided, however, that it is understood and agreed that any information provided by means of such
testimony shall not be made public but rather shall be kept confidential in accordance with the
requirements of N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-60, and further provided that the County Prosecutor’s Office shall be
given prior notification and a right to preclude the giving of such testimony where the testimony may
interfere with or jeopardize any ongoing investigation or prosecution of any person.

8.10. Parallel School Student Conduct Proceedings

Itis understood and agreed that school officials have an independent right and responsibility to
initiate and pursue student conduct proceedings, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37.1 et seq. and N.J.A.C.
6A:16-7.1 et seq., or to remove a student from school under certain circumstances including, but not
limited to, those specified in the “Zero Tolerance for Guns Act,” N.J.S.A. 18A:37-7 through 12 and
N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.5, 5.6, 5.7 and N.J.A.C. 6A:7. Itis further understood and agreed that all school-based
student conduct proceedings are separate and distinct from any juvenile or adult criminal prosecution;
that law enforcement agencies shall not require or request school officials to undertake a student
conduct action against a student; and that the imposition of sanctions by both schools and by the
juvenile justice system based upon a single infraction or event in no way constitutes “double jeopardy.”

8.11. Notification of Arrests or Charges Filed Against School Personnel

The parties acknowledge that procedures already are in place that require prosecutors to
provide notifications of indictments or convictions of public employees to the Division of Criminal
Justice, which are then transmitted to the appropriate public agency. However, no notifications are
required during the period between the filing of a complaint and an indictment, creating a period of
time during which school administrators may be unaware of charges pending against school personnel,
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which may have an impact on their fitness for carrying out official duties. Therefore, it is agreed that
whenever a law enforcement agency files a complaint or summons for one of the offenses listed in
Article 8.11.3 below against a person that they know to be employed by a school district, or who works
as a school bus driver or other outside employee in a school district, the law enforcement agency shall
provide notice and a copy of the complaint to the school district no later than the next business day.

8.11.1. Applicability Not Limited to Local Jurisdiction

The requirement to notify a school district of such complaints is not limited to the school district
in which the law enforcement agency is located. Notice shall be given to any school district or nonpublic
school within the state of New Jersey where the accused is employed.

8.11.2. Employment Information

This requirement does not create an obligation to investigate or verify the employment of every
person arrested or charged with an offense. It is intended only to require the notification in
circumstances where the accused admits to employment in a school district or nonpublic school, or such
information is otherwise available to the law enforcement agency.

8.11.3. Offenses Requiring Notification

Notification is required for all indictable offenses, all driving while intoxicated (DWI) offenses
and any disorderly persons offenses or petty disorderly persons offenses.

8.11.4. Notification of Emergencies

Whenever local law enforcement is aware of an emergency affecting the safety of children
during school hours, the Chief of Police or Station Commander or designee shall notify the principal of
the school affected as soon as practicable. Law enforcement will provide all appropriate non-
confidential information so that the principal can take necessary steps for the protection of students,
staff and notification to parents. The Chief of Police or Station Commander shall attempt to provide, as
practicable, the school principal and executive county superintendent, or his or her designee, with
updated information throughout the duration of the emergency, and will provide notification when the
emergency is over.

8.12. Notification to Executive County Superintendent

The Chief of Police or Station Commander will, at his or her discretion, notify the executive
county superintendent of schools, or his or her designee. This notification will contain a
recommendation on which additional schools should be notified by the executive county
superintendent’s office. The executive county superintendent shall decide which, if any, additional
schools to notify, and shall make the appropriate notifications.
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8.13. Notification of Handle with Care

Attorney General Directive 2020-9, the “Statewide Handle With Care (HWC) Directive,” took
effect December 31, 2020. The HWC Directive’s goal is to promote communication and partnerships

between law enforcement and schools to help provide a safe and supportive academic environment for
children who were recently exposed to an adverse childhood experience (ACE) or other traumatic event.

The Directive identifies traumatic events as broadly to include, but not limited to, the following
incidents where a child is a victim or witness:

e ahouse fire or forced displacement from the residence.

* community violence (i.e., fights among gangs or other groups, bullying, shootings).

* the sudden death of an immediate family member or guardian of the child, which the police are
made aware.

¢ Asuicide or attempted suicide of an individual who resides in the child’s home where the child is
present.

e Adrug or alcohol overdose of an individual who resides in the child’s home where the child is
present.

¢ Anincident of domestic violence or abuse (physical or sexual).

¢ Involvement with the Department of Child Protection & Permanency.

e Asearch warrant executed at the residence.

e The arrest of an individual who resides in the home.

Pursuant to the HWC Directive, law enforcement official must promptly complete a HWC Notice
after responding to an incident where the child witnesses or is the victim of a traumatic event. A HWC
Notice must be completed for each child that is present, regardless of the age of the child and whether
the child attends a public or private school.

To protect the privacy of affected children and families, the HWC Notice shall only include the
following information: the child’s name, age, grade, school of enroliment, and date and time of the
incident. The HWC Notice shall be sent immediately to the appropriate point of contact at the child’s
school of enroliment (prior to the next school day or prior to the child arriving at school, whichever is
sooner).

A point of contact identified by the school district or head of the school shall serve as a point of
contact (i.e. a School Safety Specialist or other school employee). This individual will be responsible for
receiving all HWC Notices for children enrolled in that school(s) and for disseminating the HWC Notices
to the appropriate school staff. School officials agree to receive the HWC notice and assess whether the
school should take any actions (i.e., postponing assignments, providing breaks, referring to a school
counselor) to best provide for the well-being of the student(s). School officials should not inquire with
the child about the traumatic event.
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If a notice must be sent to a school outside of a law enforcement agency’s area of responsibility,
the responding officer completes the HWC Notice and sends it immediately to the local law
enforcement agency where an affected child’s school is located. The receiving local law enforcement
agency shall be responsible for sending the completed HWC Notice to the school’s appropriate point of
contact. If a HWC Notice is returned because the child is not enrolled at the school it was delivered to,
the law enforcement agency must make a good faith effort to identify the child’s correct school of
enroliment.

Article 9. School Safety and Security

9.1. Development of School Safety and Security Plans (SSSPs)

Recent tragic events in the nation’s schools highlight the need for developing and maintaining
up-to-date school-based safety and security plans for responding to crisis situations involving all-
hazards, such as natural, technological, manmade, and biological, and student culture and climate. The
district’s school safety and security plans (SSSPs) should include protocols and procedures for quickly
communicating to staff, students, parents, and emergency responders that a crisis situation exists. In
addition, procedures for minimizing the risk of physical harm to students and staff should be initiated to
reduce their exposure to any hazards. Just as it is necessary to establish protocols for responding to
emergencies that require prompt and orderly actions, such as fires (see N.J.5.A. 18A:41-1), so too it is
required to conduct monthly security drills, such as non-fire evacuations, bomb threats, lockdown, and
active shooter (see N.J.5.A. 18A:41-6), to exercise plans that test the procedures and minimize exposure
to hazardous situations, both from within and outside school facilities.

School officials shall consult with law enforcement officials, as appropriate, in planning the
required school safety and security in-service training program for school staff, pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:16-5.1(d). Examples of school safety and security training that could involve law enforcement officials
include providing guidance on the approved model policies of the Governor’s K-12 School Security Task
Force; reviewing scenarios for school safety and security drills; addressing internet safety, cyber-bullying
and gangs; and guidance from the New Jersey Department of Education. Law enforcement officials shall
identify school safety and security issues and concerns and advise the county prosecutor and chief
school administrator, as appropriate.

Itis understood and agreed that, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(b), the conferees, including the
chief of police and other representatives of law enforcement agencies, emergency management
planners, fire officials, local chief school administrator, all school building principals, representatives of
health and social services provider agencies and other school staff (e.g., counselors, psychologists, social
workers, nurses, security, maintenance, facilities, grounds, school resource officers, food services) and
community resources, as appropriate, shall provide consultation to school officials, at a minimum
annually, in the development of the school district’s plans, procedures and mechanisms for school safety
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and security to fulfill the requirements of N.L.A.C. 6A:16-5, School Safety and Security. There is nothing
in the Agreement or New Jersey Administrative Code that precludes students from contributing to the
school safety and security planning in a manner prescribed by the school district that would not divulge
confidential information.

It is further understood and agreed that law enforcement officials shall review and, where
necessary, provide written comments to the chief school administrator concerning the required SSSPs,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1. It is understood and agreed that the chief school administrator shall
annually submit a copy of the school district’s SSSPs and promptly submit any important revisions to the
plan or school grounds to law enforcement officials. The chief school administrator agrees to supply law
enforcement officials with current copies of blueprints and maps of all schools and school grounds. If at
any time there are changes to the blueprints or maps of any school or school grounds, the chief school
administrator shall forward revised copies to law enforcement officials as soon as practicable. It also is
understood and agreed that, pursuant to Article 7.1 the conferees shall discuss the feasibility and
desirability of implementing a Safe Schools Resource Officer program.

9.1.1. Critical Incident Planning

The parties to this Agreement understand that it is important for school officials and local police
departments and county prosecutors to work together to adopt and implement policies for dealing with
disruptive and potentially catastrophic crisis situations for all hazards, recognizing that it is essential to
consider the most appropriate response to these kinds of situations before a crisis develops. The
comprehensive SSSPs, procedures and mechanisms established by school officials, pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:16-5.1 and Article 2.2 of this Agreement, shall be developed in consultation with law enforcement
agencies, emergency management planners, health and social services provider agencies and school and
other community resources, as appropriate. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(b), the plans, procedures and
mechanisms shall be consistent with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1 and the format and content
established by the Domestic Security Preparedness Task Force, pursuant to N.J.S.A. App. A:9-64 et seq.,
and the Commissioner of Education, and shall be reviewed annually and updated, as appropriate.

Additionally, procedures for school lockdown, active shooter, emergency evacuation, bomb
threat, risk and violence assessments, and public information sharing shall be based on the standard
operating procedures (SOPs) developed by the School Security Task Force and issued by the Attorney
General. The model SOPs follow other nationally-recognized standards.

9.1.2. Consultation in Development of SSSPs

It is understood and agreed that, pursuant to Article 9 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(b), the chief school
administrator shall consult with law enforcement agencies, health and social services provider agencies,
emergency management planners, and school and other community resources, as appropriate in the
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development and maintenance of the school district’s plans, procedures and mechanisms for school
safety and security to fulfill the requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5, School Safety and Security.

9.1.3. Format and Contents of SSSPs

The SSSPs, procedures and mechanisms shall be consistent with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-
5.1. The parties agree that all SSSPs shall include defined communication and decision-making protocols
(e.g., Incident Command System) and the minimum requirements for the format and contents of the
plans, as determined by the Commissioner of Education and the Domestic Security Preparedness Task
Force.

9.1.4. Annual Review of SSSPs

The chief school administrator shall consult with law enforcement agencies, health and social
service provider agencies, emergency management planners and school and other community
resources, as appropriate, in the review and updating of the school district’s SSSPs, procedures and
mechanisms, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1. It is understood and agreed that law enforcement officials
shall, at a minimum, annually review and, where necessary, provide written comments to the chief
school administrator concerning the required SSSPs, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1. It is understood and
agreed that the chief school administrator shall, at a minimum, annually submit a copy of the school
district’s SSSPs or any important revisions to the plans to law enforcement officials. The chief school
administrator agrees to supply law enforcement officials with current copies of blueprints and maps of
all schools and school grounds. If at any time there are changes to the blueprints or maps, the chief
school administrator agrees to forward revised copies to law enforcement officials as soon as
practicable.

9.1.5. School Staff In-service Training on SSSPs

District board of education employees must participate in an annual in-service training on school
safety and security to enable them to recognize and appropriately respond to safety and security
concerns, including emergencies and crises, consistent with the school district’s plans, procedures and
mechanisms for school safety and security and the provisions of N.J.A.C, 6A:16-5 and N.J.S.A. 18A:41.
School officials shall annually consult with law enforcement personnel regarding training. The
instruction must include school security drills and be conducted collaboratively by the school district and
law enforcement, fire and emergency medical services personnel in order to identify weaknesses in
school safety and security policies and procedures and increase the effectiveness of emergency
responders. The training shall utilize various formats such as drills, functional exercises, and tabletop
exercises. Joint training exercises may include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, bomb threats,
lockdown procedures and active shooters. A law enforcement officer must be present at a minimum of
one school security drill in each school year in order to make recommendations on any improvements or
changes to school security drill procedures, pursuant to N./.S.A.18A:41-1.
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9.1.6. Other Training on SSSPs

It is recommended that school districts train students on school safety procedures prior to a drill
or lockdown, taking into consideration students’ developmental levels, disabilities, ability to understand
the English language and any additional awareness or capacity issues.

Additionally, it is further recommended that substitute teachers, college students fulfilling
practicum or other student teaching requirements, and any person with regular student contact,
including volunteers and contractors, be trained on the non-confidential elements of the SSSPs.

9.2. Implementation of Approved School Security Task Force Recommendations

The parties agree to work together to implement the approved recommendations of the
Governor’s K-12 School Security Task Force. The parties recognize that joint planning, training and
consultation are needed to effectively implement these recommendations. Any Executive Orders or
Directives that are issued as a result of these approved recommendations are hereby incorporated into
this Agreement.

9.2.1. Sharing of Model School Security Policies (MSSP)

The Model School Security Policies for law enforcement agencies issued pursuant to the
Attorney General's Law Enforcement Directive No. 2007-1 on the topics of bomb threats, active shooter
response, school lockdowns, school evacuations and public information policies shall serve as templates
for the development of local law enforcement policies. Local law enforcement officials shall discuss the
policies which they adopt on these topics with school administrators from the school district or districts
within their jurisdiction. It is further understood that school administrators shall share their procedures
for critical incidents, developed in accordance with the policies issued by the Commissioner of
Education, with local law enforcement officials. These procedures shall remain confidential and shall not
be shared with the public.

9.3. Gang Threat and Recruiting Information

Law enforcement and school officials agree to engage in ongoing discussions and training in
gang prevention and intervention, as appropriate, regarding gangs that are thought to be active in the
area, gang recruiting and signs of gang activity or recruiting. School officials shall inform law
enforcement officials of any signs of gang activity or recruiting observed on school grounds

9.4. Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying Policies

It also is understood that, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7(a)1, the harassment, intimidation or
bullying policies required pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7, shall be
developed by school officials in consultation with law enforcement officials, in addition to parents and
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other community members, including appropriate community-based social and health provider agencies
and other school employees. It is agreed that law enforcement officials shall consult with school officials
in the development of the policies and the annual review of the policies, the training needs of school
employees and the extent and characteristics of harassment, intimidation and bullying behavior in the
school buildings of the school district, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7(e). It also is understood that the
executive county superintendent shall maintain a current file copy of the harassment, intimidation or
bullying policies, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7(e)5, for review by both education and law enforcement
officials, upon request.

9.5. law Enforcement Testimony at School Student Conduct Hearings; Required Notices to
the County Prosecutor

The law enforcement agency agrees, upon the request of designated schoo! officials, to make
available officer(s) to testify, as appropriate, in any suspension or expulsion hearing before the board of
education, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37.1 et seq., or a hearing regarding harassment, intimidation or
bullying, pursuant to N.J.5.A. 18A:37.15d, or other appropriate school autharity as may be necessary to
satisfy the due process rights of a student subject to school discipline, provided, however, that it is
understood and agreed that any information provided by means of such testimony must not be made
public, but rather must be kept confidential in accordance with the requirements of N.J.5.A. 2A:4A-60,
and further provided that the County Prosecutor’s Office must be given prior notification and a right to
preclude the giving of such testimony where the testimony may interfere with or jeopardize any ongoing
investigation or prosecution of any person. See also Article 9.5 of this Agreement.

For any school hearing pursuant to the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act, if the principal has been
notified by law enforcement officials that juvenile delinquency or criminal charges are pending against
one or more of the alleged offenders, the school district must notify the county prosecutor of the
proposed list of witnesses at least 5 days prior to the hearing.

9.6. “Tiplines” and Crime Prevention Programs

Any school who wishes to establish “tiplines” for the reporting of suspicious activity occurring
on school grounds, or within Drug-Free School Zones, or for the reporting of any other crimes or
planned or threatened acts of violence, shall coordinate with the appropriate law enforcement agency
and the county prosecutor’s office on the creation and implementation of the tiplines. The (schoo/
official) hereby agrees to post notice of any such tiplines on bulletin boards and/or other appropriate
places to alert students to the existence of this means of reporting suspected or future crimes on an
anonymous and confidential basis.

The County Prosecutor’s Office and the (law enforcement agency) will assist school officials who
wish to develop and implement student-oriented crime prevention and awareness programs.
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9.7. Unsafe School Choice Option Policy: Victims of Violent Criminal Offenses

The Unsafe School Choice Option (USCO) provision (Section 9532 of Title IX) under the No Child
Left Behind Act (NCLB) of 2001 sets forth, in part, the following which applies to all school buildings that
are a part of a local education agency (LEA):

"... a student... who becomes a victim of a violent criminal offense, as determined by State law,
while in or on the grounds of a public elementary school or secondary school that the student attends,
be allowed to attend a safe public elementary school or secondary school within the local educational
agency, including a public charter school." (italics added)

The individual victim provision of the USCO policy attempts to fulfill the requirement for LEAs to
provide relief to students who have been victimized, while providing schools with a practical means for
making determinations on incidents of victimization that are within the purview of LEAs. The individual
victim policy has been crafted to enable school staff to make reasonable determinations and actions
regarding the policy. LEAs are strongly encouraged, however, to consult with their school board
attorneys and communicate with designated local and/or county law enforcement authorities, per the
provisions of the Uniform State Memorandum of Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement
Officials and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)13, on questions and issues that arise in the implementation of the
individual victims of violent criminal offenses policy.

The following criteria must be used to determine when an enrolled student has become a victim
of a violent criminal offense while in or on the grounds of a public elementary or secondary school that
the student attends. These criteria only apply to a student who has become a victim of one or more of
the violent criminal offenses enumerated in the Unsafe School Choice Option Policy. A student is
considered a victim of a violent criminal offense when:

1) Areport has been made to law enforcement officials for suspicion that one of the
violent criminal offenses enumerated below has occurred; and
2) One or more of the following applies:
¢ Law enforcement officials have filed formal charges against the perpetrator(s) for
commission of the violent crime; or
e The perpetrator(s) of the violent crime has received sanctions in accordance with
the district board of education's code of student conduct, pursuant
to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1; or
e The perpetrator(s) of the violent crime either has not been identified or is not an
enrolled student(s), but it is clear that the student (victim) has become a victim of a
violent criminal offense based on objective indicators such as physical evidence,
eyewitness testimony, and/or circumstantial evidence; or
* The pre-existence of a restraining order against the perpetrator(s) of the violent
crime.
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Article 10. Law Enforcement Participation in Educational Programs

10.1. Law Enforcement's Contribution to Substance Abuse Education and Demand
Reduction

The parties to this Agreement understand and accept that the only viable, long-term solution to
the nation's drug epidemic is to reduce the public's demand for illicit substances, and that education
emerges as one of the most promising means available by which to provide a generation of students
with information, skills and incentives to resist the temptation to experiment with and use chemical
substances. The parties further understand that the contributions of the law enforcement community
to the goal of a drug-free New Jersey need not and should not be limited merely to disrupting the supply
of illicit drugs; rather the law enforcement community can help to reduce the demand for drugs, not
only by holding drug users accountable for their unlawful conduct, but also by actively participating in
public awareness and prevention programs and educational initiatives. To this end, a number of
programs have been developed by numerous organizations in which specially trained police officers
participate directly in school-based educational programs. These programs are designed to teach
students about the nature and dangers of substance abuse, methods to enhance students' self-esteem,
and proven techniques and skills for resisting peer pressure to experiment with drugs or engage in other
dangerous activities and should support the Core Curriculum Content Standards, pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:8-2.

10.2. School Violence Awareness Week

School officials shall invite law enforcement officials to join school staff in the student
discussions organized to observe School Violence Awareness Week, which occurs the week beginning
with the third Monday in October of each year, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-5.1 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.2.
Upon invitation and as appropriate to the district’s plans, law enforcement officials may assist with the
student discussions required during School Violence Awareness Week.

10.3. Approval and Supervision of Educational Curricula

Itis understood and agreed that education officials are at all times ultimately responsible for
approving, supervising, monitoring, evaluating and otherwise ensuring the consistent high quality of all
educational curricula and instructional programs provided to students, whether the instruction is
provided by certified school employees or by specially trained law enforcement officers invited into the
schools pursuant to Article 10.1 of this Agreement. It also is understood and agreed that local school
officials remain ultimately responsible for making certain that all substance awareness instructional
programs are developed and provided in a manner which is consistent with the requirements of N.J.S.A.
18A:40A-1 et seq., N.J.A.C.6A:16-3, Comprehensive Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Abuse Programs,
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the New Jersey Department of Education's Core Curriculum Content Standards in Comprehensive Health
and Physical Education, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:8, specifically, the indicators under Standards 2.1
(Wellness — health promotion concepts and skills), 2.2 (Integrated Skills — health enhancing personal and
interpersonal skills), 2.3 (Drugs and Medicines —alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs and medicines), 2.4
(Human Relationships and Sexuality - physical, emotional and social aspects of human relationships and
sexuality) and Standard 9 (21* Century Life and Careers— addressing significant related areas, such as
critical thinking, self-management, interpersonal communication, character development, ethics and
safety) and the subjects of conflict management, problem solving, personal responsibility and
cooperation under each of these strands, and any and all applicable rules, regulations and policies
adopted by the State Board of Education or the Commissioner of Education concerning the
development, review, monitoring, approval and implementation of K-12 alcohol, tobacco and other drug
prevention education curricula and related courses of instruction.

10.4. Procedures for Inviting, Soliciting or Promoting Police Participation in Educational
Programs

It is understood and agreed that no law enforcement officer shall be permitted to provide a
course of instruction to students unless the officer has been invited or requested to provide such course
of instruction by the appropriate school official. In order to enhance cooperation between law
enforcement and education authorities, it is agreed that all requests by school officials for information
concerning the nature and availability of law enforcement instructional programs should be directed to
(designated law enforcement ligison) with notice of the request provided to the county prosecutor. All
requests by a law enforcement agency seeking an invitation to provide an instructional program, or
seeking to demonstrate the desirability of providing such an instructional program, should be directed
to (designated school official), with notice given to the county prosecutor working in cooperation with
the executive county superintendent, who will be responsible for coordinating all such invitations or
requests for invitations to participate in law enforcement instructional programs. The county
prosecutor further agrees to serve on an ongoing basis as an information clearinghouse to provide
school officials with information concerning the availability and benefits of such law enforcement
instructional programs.

Article 11. Maintenance of the Agreement

11.1. Agreement to Remain in Effect

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as it may be modified.
Modification of this Agreement shall be effected only with the mutual consent of the (school district),
the (executive county superintendent), the (police department), and the (county prosecutor). Pursuant
to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)14ii, all revisions shall be only in addition to, and shall not conflict with, the
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format and content established by the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Education and shall
be in addition to and shall not conflict with the policies and procedures established pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:16-6. Modifications required by a change in state or federal law, rules or regulations or applicable
guidelines or executive directives shall be made on the effective date of such revisions of law,
regulations, guidelines or directives. All parties to this Agreement shall notify the other parties
immediately regarding any such legal or regulatory changes.

11.2. Distribution

Copies of this agreement shall be provided to the County Prosecutor’s Office, the executive
county superintendent, the chief school administrator, the law enforcement chief executive of the
Police Department or State Police Unit, the president of the district board of education, and each
principal in the school district.

Article 12.  Annual Review and Revisions of Agreement

Itis understood that (county prosecutor), working in conjunction with the (executive county
superintendent), pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)14, shall not less than once each calendar year,
organize and conduct a meeting of representatives from the law enforcement and educational
communities to discuss the implementation of and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.2(b)13, throughout the county, to discuss any other matters of mutual
concern, and to recommend revisions to this Agreement, insofar as, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-
6.2(b)14ii, the revisions are in addition to and do not conflict with the format and content established by
the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Education and that are in addition to and do not conflict
with the policies and procedures established pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.

It is understood that every chief of police, school building principal and local chief school
administrator shall be invited to attend, along with any other persons or representatives of organization
who could contribute to or benefit from the proceedings. Following each conference, the (county
prosecutor) shall provide a copy of the revised Agreement, or the revised section of the Agreement, to
all participants.

During this meeting, schools and law enforcement shall discuss the content of the Agreement,
with a special focus on:

*  Which acts are mandatory reports to law enforcement and which acts are non-mandatory
reports to law enforcement.

* The process by which schools may consult with law enforcement to discuss an incident, report
an act in school, and obtain informal guidance about concerns.

e How law enforcement will respond to such calls.

* The process by which law enforcement may call schools to report an act outside of school.
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e How schools will respond to such calls.

Appendix B details the Annual Review Guidelines.
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12.1 Affirmation

As an expression of our mutual concern and commitment to students, and to the level of
cooperation and understanding described in this Agreement, the undersigned parties do hereby affirm
and agree to abide by the standards, procedures, principles and policies set forth in this document.

On this day and month of in the Year of

Chief School Administrator

Chief, Police Department or Station Commander

President, District Board of Education

Executive County Superintendent of Schools

County Prosecutor

***School districts and law enforcement are encouraged to attach a list of potential contact names
and information to support communication between all parties (e.g., school district liaison, principal,
law enforcement officers assigned to schools).
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Appendix A: Definitions

As used in this Agreement:

“Controlled Dangerous Substance” means a drug, substance, or immediate precursor in Schedules |
through V of article 2 of P.L.1970, ¢.226 (C.24:21-1 et seq.), per N.J.S.A. 24:21-2. The term shall not
include distilled spirits, wine, malt beverages, as those terms are defined or used in R.5.33:1-1 et seq., or
tobacco and tobacco products, and cannabis and cannabis items as those terms are defined in section 3
of P.L. 2021, .16 (C.24:61-33). Included in Schedules |-V are: opiates and opium derivatives,
hallucinogenic substances, cannabinoids, coca leaf derivatives (cocaine), methamphetamine,
barbiturates (and other sedative drugs), narcotics (codeine), nalorphine, anabolic steroids.

“Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa L., whether growing or not, the seeds thereof,
and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its seeds,
except those containing resin extracted from the plant, which are cultivated and, when applicable,
manufactured in accordance with P.L.2021, ¢.16 (C.24:61-31 et al.) for use in cannabis products, but shall
not include the weight of any other ingredient combined with cannabis to prepare topical or oral
administrations, food, drink, or other product. N.J. Stat. § 24:61-33. Cannabis does not include medical
cannabis dispensed to registered qualifying patients pursuant to the “Jake Honig Compassionate Use
Medical Cannabis Act,” P.L. 2009, ¢.307.

“Deadly weapon” means any firearm or other weapon, device, instrument, material, or substance,
whether animate or inanimate, which in the manner it is used or is intended to be used, is known to be
capable of producing death or seriously bodily injury or which in the manner it is fashioned would lead
the victim reasonably to believe it to be capable of producing death or serious bodily injury. N.J. Stat. §
2C:11-1

“Firearm” means any handgun, rifle, shotgun, machine gun, automatic or semi-automatic rifle, or any
gun, device or instrument in the nature of a weapon from which may be fired or ejected any solid
projectable ball, slug, pellet, missile or bullet, or any gas, vapor or other noxious thing, by means of a
cartridge or shell or by the action of an explosive or the igniting of flammable or explosive substances. It
shall also include, without limitation, any firearm which is in the nature of an air gun, spring gun or pistol
or other weapon of a similar nature in which the propelling force is a spring, elastic band, carbon
dioxide, compressed or other gas or vapor, air or compressed air, or is ignited by compressed air, and
ejecting a bullet or missile smaller than three-eighths of an inch in diameter, with sufficient force to
injure a person.

N.). Stat. § 2C:39-1
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“Medical cannabis” means cannabis dispensed to registered qualifying patients pursuant to the “Jake
Honig Compassionate Use Medical Cannabis Act,” P.L.2009, ¢.307 (C.24:6l-1 et al.) and P.L.2015, ¢.158
(C.18A:40-12.22 et al.). “Medical cannabis” does not include any cannabis or cannabis item which is
cultivated, produced, processed, and consumed in accordance with P.L.2021, ¢.16 (C.24:61-31 et al.). N.J.
Stat. § 24:61-33.

“Operating School Hours” shall include the time in which a school is in session or when students are
engaged in school related activities under the supervision of professional school staff.

“Planned Arrest” shall mean an arrest or taking into custody based upon probable cause which was
known to a law enforcement officer sufficiently in advance of the time of the actual arrest, whether as a
result of an undercover school operation, planned surveillance, or otherwise, so that there was
sufficient opportunity for the arresting officer or any other law enforcement officer to apply for and
obtain an arrest warrant, even though an arrest warrant may not have been sought or issued. The term
shall also include arrests made pursuant to a “clean sweep” (e.g., multiple arrest) operation.

“Planned Surveillance” shall mean a planned operation wherein a law enforcement officer(s) enters
onto school grounds, including school buildings and school buses, in plainclothes during operating
school hours for the purpose of observing or participating in activities associated with the use,
possession or distribution of any controlled dangerous substance, alcoholic beverages or firearms or
dangerous weapons. This term shall not include observations made by a law enforcement officer,
whether in uniform or in plainclothes, from any place or property not owned or used by a school or
school board.

“Routine Patrol” shall mean activities undertaken by a law enforcement officer whether in uniform or in
plainclothes and whether on foot or in a marked or unmarked vehicle, to patrol areas within a drug-free
school zone (N.J.5.A. 2C:35-7) for the purposes of observing or deterring any criminal violation or civil
disturbance.

“Serious Bodily Injury” means bodily injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes
serious, permanent disfigurement, or the protracted loss or impairment of the function of any bodily
member or organ N.J.S.A. 2C:11-1b.

“Significant bodily injury” means bodily injury which creates a temporary loss of the function of any
bodily member or organ or temporary loss of any one of the five senses. N.J.S.A. 2C:11-1d

“Spontaneous Arrest,” in distinction to a planned arrest, shall mean an arrest or taking into custody
based upon probable cause to believe that an offense is being committed in the arresting officer's
presence under circumstances where the officer could not have foreseen with certainty that the specific
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offense would occur and thus where the arresting officer had no reasonable opportunity to apply for an
arrest warrant. The term shall also include any arrest or taking into custody in response to a request by
a school official pursuant to Article 6.1 of this Agreement.

“Undercover School Operation” shall mean a planned operation undertaken by a law enforcement
agency wherein a law enforcement officer(s) is placed in a school community and poses as a member of
the school community for the purpose of identifying and eventually apprehending persons engaged in
the illegal distribution of controlled dangerous substances, alcoholic beverages or the unlawful use,
possession or distribution of firearms or dangerous weapons. The procedures for planning and
approving an undercover school operation are set forth in Article 6.3. of this Agreement.

“Weapon” means anything readily capable of lethal use or of inflicting serious bodily injury. The term
includes, but is not limited to, all (1) firearms, even though not loaded or lacking a clip or other
component to render them immediately operable; (2) components which can be readily assembled into
a weapon; (3) gravity knives, switchblade knives, daggers, dirks, stilettos, or other dangerous knives,
billies, blackjacks, bludgeons, metal knuckles, sandclubs, slingshots, cesti or similar leather bands
studded with metal filings or razor blades imbedded in wood; and (4) stun guns; and any weapon or
other device which projects, releases, or emits tear gas or any other substance intended to produce
temporary physical discomfort or permanent injury through being vaporized or otherwise dispensed in
the air. N.J. Stat. § 2C:39-1
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CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

October 25, 2023

Honorable President and Members
Beverly City Board of Education
County of Burlington, New Jersey

Dear Board Members and Citizens:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Beverly City Board of Education
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is hereby submitted. Responsibility
for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Beverly City Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position
and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the
District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section
includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart and a list
of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditors report thereon. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo
an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit
Act and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the NJOMB Circular Letter 15-08, “Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of
this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Beverly City School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as
established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds and account groups of the
District are included in this report. The District provides a full range of
educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre~K-8.

Educational services are provided for regular and special education programs
for handicapped youngsters. The Beverly City School District (Pre-K through
Grade 8) completed the 2023 fiscal year with an enrollment of 339 students.

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010 T (609) 387-2200 F (609) 387-4447  beverlycityschool.org




The following details the changes in the Pre-K-8 student enrollment over the
last ten years:

Enrollment, Pre-~K-8

Fiscal Student

Year Enrxollment Change Percent
2022-23 339 1.5%
2021-22 334 3.1%
2020-21 324 2.1%
2019-20 317 0.0%
2018-19 304 4.8%
2017-18 305 3.4%
2016-17 295 1.4%
2015-16 291 (0.3%)
2014-15 295 0.0%
2013-14 295 0.0%

2. ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK: The Beverly City area is not

experiencing much growth or expansion due to the limited space available for
development. The general area surrounding the district provides most of the
opportunities for employment for residents. Some new small businesses have
opened in Beverly through the restoration of vacant properties. There is some
speculation about re-development to the downtown area.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The District engaged in the following initiatives
during the 2022-2023 school year:

Technology Improvements - Hardware & Software
Curriculum Development

Community Outreach Program

Summer Student Services

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible
for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse,
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

4, INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS (Continued): The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also
responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal contrel structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District management.




As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made by the
District auditor to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure,
including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable
laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the
District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund,
and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget
amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either
canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent
year.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect
generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is

organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account
groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.

7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END: As demonstrated by the various
statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.
Readers should refer to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis for a summary
of the financial statements in relation to the prior year.

8. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: On January 22, 2015, $1,031,000 of School Bonds was
issued for the purpose of constructing and renovating the roof, HVAC system,
boiler and windows. The balance of the outstanding debt at June 30, 2023 was
$545,000.

9k CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is quided in large
part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements®, Note
6. The District has adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to

deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was
enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit
with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental
units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey
where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including
but not limited to: general liability, comprehensive/collision, student and
volunteer accident, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents,
earthquake, flood and fidelity bonds. Annual reviews of the entire program are
done in order to evaluate potential insurance changes.

11. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual
audit by independent certified public accountants or registered municipal
accountants. The accounting firm of Jump, Perry & Company, LLP, was selected




by the Board to provide this service. 1In addition to meeting the requirements
set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements
of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the related Uniform Guidance and State
Treasury Circular Letter 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial
statements and combined and individual fund statements and schedules is included
in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports specifically
related to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

12. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS : We would like to express our appreciation to the
members of the Beverly City Board of Education for their continued concern in
providing fiscal accountability to the taxpayers and citizens of the District,
thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of
the District's financial operation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Beverly City School District:

County of Burlington

Beverly, New Jersey

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Beverly City School District in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, present fairly in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Beverly City School District in the
County of Burlington, State of New Jersey as of June 30, 2023 and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Audiiting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Beverly City
School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Beverly
City School District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial
doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Beverly City School District's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Beverly City School District's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedules
related to accounting and reporting for pensions and the schedules related to accounting and
reporting for postemployment benefits other than pensions, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise of Beverly City School District's basic financial statements. The
accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 25, 2023 on our consideration of Beverly City School District's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Beverly
City School District internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Beverly City School District's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jump, Perry and Company L.L.P.
Toms River, New Jersey

Kathry':iPer , Partner

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS 20CS00226400
Toms River, New Jersey
October 25, 2023
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Beverly City School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Unaudited

The discussion and analysis of Beverly City School District's financial performance provides an overall
review of the School Board's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The intent of this
discussion and analysis is to look at the School Board's financial performance as a whole; readers should
also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their
understanding of the School Board's financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for June 30, 2023 are as follows:
Net position totaled $6,269,989, which represents a 17.50 percent increase from June 30, 2022.

General revenues accounted for $8,638,218 in revenue or 72.06 percent of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital
grants and contributions accounted for $3,348,611 or 27.94 percent of total revenues of $11,986,829.

Total assets increased by $749,991 as current assets increased by $253,915 and capital assets, net
decreased by $496,076.

The School Board had $11,052,931 in expenses; only $3,348,611 of these expenses were offset by
program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily property
taxes) of $8,638,218 were adequate to provide for these programs.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $9,544,088 in revenues and $10,012,952 in expenditures
and transfers. The General Fund's balance decreased $468,864 over June 30, 2022. The General Fund's
balance is $3,042,122.

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Beverly City School District as a financial whole,
an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at
specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
School Board, presenting both an aggregate view of the School Board's finances and longer-term view of
those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For government funds, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.
The fund financial statements also look at the School Board's most significant funds with all other non-
major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of Beverly City School District, the General
Fund is by far the most significant.



Reporting the School Board as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
entire School District and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances,
in a manner similar to private-sector business.

These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
businesses. This basis of accounting takes into consideration all of the current year's revenues and
expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in net position. The change in net
position is important because it informs the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial
position of the School District has improved or worsened. The causes of the change may be the result of
many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include, but are not limited to, the
District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, and
required educational programs. In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the
School Board is divided into two kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities - All of the School Board's programs and services are reported here including
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and
extracurricular activities.

Business-Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover all
the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Funds are reported as a business
activity.

Reporting the School Board's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statement

The Analysis of the School Board's major funds begins with Exhibit B-1. Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the School Board's major funds. The School Board's major governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School Board's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of the funds and balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds
are reported using a modified accrual accounting method which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-
term view of the School Board's general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities.
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The School Board as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position provides the financial perspective of the School Board as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary comparison of the School Board's net position for June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Table 1

Net Position as of June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 3,807,071 $ 229,096 $ 4,036,167 $ 3,539,306 $ 242,946 $ 3,782,252
Capital assets, net 4,010,564 3913 4,014,477 3.513.403 4,998 3,518,401
Total assets 7,817,635 233,009 8,050,644 7,052,709 247,944 7,300,653
Deferred outflow of
resources 437,902 - 437,902 453,503 - 453,503
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 34,067 131,605 165,672 30,820 141,206 172,026
Long-term liabilities
outstanding 1,864,900 - 1,864,900 1,673,120 - 1,673,120
Total liabilities 1,898,967 131,605 2,030,572 1,703,940 141,206 1,845,146
Deferred inflow of
resources 187,985 - 187,985 572,919 - 572,919
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets 3,465,564 3,913 3,469,477 2,898,403 4,998 2,903,401
Restricted 3,787,014 - 3,787,014 3,347,244 - 3,347,244
Unrestricted (1,083,993) 97.491 (986,502) (1.016,294) 101,740 (914,554)
Total Net Position $_6,168585 $ 101,404 $_6,269989 $_ 5229353 §$ 106,738 $_ 5,336,091

The unrestricted net position is a negative balance due to the unfunded liabilities for compensated
absences and PERS pension. The District expects to be able to fund these liabilities as they come due
yearly.

The School Board's combined net position was $6,269,989 on June 30, 2023. This is a change of
17.50% from the previous year.
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Table 2 provides a comparison analysis of School Board's changes in net position from fiscal years June

30, 2023 and 2022.

Revenues

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating and capital

grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Federal and state aid
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses
Instructional services
Support services
Interest on long-term
liabilities
Total expenses

Change in net position

Net position - beginning
Prior period adjustment
Net position - beginning
Restated
Net position (deficit) -
ending

Table 2

Changes in Net Position

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Governmenta! Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

$ 4,085 $ 1,935 §$ 6,020 $ 8,052 $ 2353 $ 10,405
3,049,409 293,182 3,342,591 2,648,052 324,208 2,972,260
3,185,905 - 3,185,905 3,221,696 - 3,221,696
5,293,198 - 5,293,198 4,517,666 - 4,517,666
28,711 - 28,711 3,200 - 3,200
130,404 - 130,404 92,107 - 92,107
11,691,712 295,117 11,986,829 10,490,773 326,561 10,817,334
3,183,036 - 3,183,036 2,948,048 - 2,948,048
7,553,846 300,451 7,854,297 6,275,059 300,024 6,575,083
15,598 - 15,598 14,462 - 14,462
10,752,480 300,451 11,052,931 9,237,569 300,024 9,537,593
939,232 (5,334) 933,898 1,253,204 26,537 1,279,741
5,229,353 106,738 5,336,091 3,976,149 80,201 4,056,350
5,229,353 106,738 5,336,091 3,976,149 80,201 4,056,350
$ 6,168,585 § 101,404 $ 62690989 $ 5229353 $ 106,738 $ 5,336,091

The tax levy increase was due in general to cover increased costs in salaries and benefits, utilities and
the debt service. The Federal and State aid-restricted increased due to the increase in grants available.

Regular instructional costs increased due to contractual increases in salary and benefits as well as
program maintenance and enhancements.

Other support services increased primarily due to the additional other purchased professional services
from the Special Revenue Fund.
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Expenses for Fiscal Year June 30, 2023

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal and state reimbursements for meals.

Total Enterprise Fund expenses exceeded revenues by $5,334.

Charges for services represent $1,935 of revenue. This represents the amount paid by patrons for daily
food service and catering.

Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including interest, payments for free and reduced lunches
and donated commodities was $293,182.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total costs of services and the net cost of services. The net
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the School District's taxpayers by each of these
functions.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
2023 2022
Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services Services Services
Instruction $ 3,183,036 $ 2,318,017 $ 2,948,048 $ 2,258,420
Support Services:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 6,215,748 4,027,273 5,259,615 3,293,139
General Administration,
School Administration,
Business Operation
and Maintenance
of Facilities 996,161 996,161 654,405 654,405
Pupil Transportation 341,937 341,937 361,039 361,039
Interest and Fiscal Charges 15,598 15,598 14,462 14,462
Total Expenses $ 10,752,480 $ 7698986 $ 9,237,569 $ 6,581,465

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.
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Governmental Activities (cont'd)

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the District which are
designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school and public events for the purpose
of motivation, enjoyment, skill improvement, school spirit and leadership. Approximately 90% of the
student population participates in extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, to
school curricular and athletic activities and field trips as provided by state law.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other
related charges to debt of the District.

The School Board's Funds

The School Board uses funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. The Fund's basic
financial statements allow the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and accountability for
resources received from the Township of Beverly, State of New Jersey and other entities. These
statements also allow the reader to obtain more insight into the financial workings of the School Board,
and assess further the School Board'’s overall financial health.

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, it reported a combined fund
balance of $3,783,699, which is an increase of $263,222. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds, Exhibit B-2, presents the reader with a detailed
explanation of the decrease in fund balance for the fiscal year.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects
Fund and Debt Service Fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Increase/
(Decrease) Percent of
2023 from Increase/
Revenue Amount Percent of Total 2022 (Decrease)
Local Sources $ 3,349,105 2865% $ 24,050 0.72 %
State Sources 6,994,522 59.82 1,299,304 22.81
Federal Sources 1,348,085 11.53 (122.415) (8.32)

Total $ 11,691,712 100.00 % $ 1,200,939 11.45 %
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The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects
Fund and Debt Service Fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Increase/
(Decrease) Percent of
2023 from Increase/
Expenditures Amount Percent of Total 2022 (Decrease)
Current Expenditures:
Instruction $ 3,183,036 2786 % $ 234,988 7.97 %
Undistributed
Expenditures 7,508,233 65.70 1,214,108 19.29
Capital Outlay 650,327 5.69 (265,973) (29.03)
Debt Service:
Principal 70,000 0.61 5,000 7.69
Interest 16,894 0.14 (1,300) (7.15)
Total $ 11,428,490 100.00 % $ 1,186,823 11.59 %

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School Board's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take into consideration
unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board’s original and final budget compared with actual operating results
is provided in Section C of the ACFR, entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The School Board
generally did better than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it practices conservative
budgetary practices in which revenues are forecasted very conservatively and expenditures are
budgeted with worst-case scenarios in mind.

The General Fund finished the fiscal year approximately $1,219,467 better than had been budgeted in
terms of expenditures. Revenue-wise, the General Fund fared about $382,944 better than expected.
Both these amounts have been adjusted for the non-budgeted amounts reflected in the comparison
schedule for reimbursed TPAF social security contributions and on-behalf TPAF post-retirement medical
contributions.

The General Fund has restricted a portion of its Fund Balance. The restricted Fund Balance for General
Fund items are as follows:

Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year

Expenditures $ 194,869
Capital Reserve 2,187,957
Maintenance Reserve 218,981
Tuition Reserve 331,000
Excess Surplus - Current Year 112,630

Total Restricted Fund Balance $__3.045.437
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These restricted reserves are regulated as to their use by the State of New Jersey. Therefore, the Board
places funds in the reserves in combination with the future financial needs of the District.

The expenditures were less due to cost containment by the Board even after the salary and benefit
increases. General supplies were purchased at better prices than expected due to the school board
joining other schools in cooperative bidding. The district also joined a co-op for energy consumption,
which was done after the budget was struck. Through efforts made in finding jointures with other local
districts, and increasing students on district owned vehicles the district transportation costs were lowered
for special needs students.

The excesses will be carried forward into the beginning fund balance from the 2022-2023 fiscal year and
will be used to reduce the local tax levy for the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. At the end of the fiscal year June 30, 2023, the School Board had $4,014,477 invested in
land, buildings, and machinery and equipment.

Table 4

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Construction in Progress 67,142 901,494 - - 67,142 901,494
Building and
Improvements 3,798,648 2,495,370 - - 3,798,648 2,495,370
Machinery and Equipment 144,774 116,539 3,913 4,998 148,687 121,537
Total $ 4010564 $ 3,513,403 § 3913 § 4998 $ 4,014477 $ 3,518,401

During the current fiscal year, $1,425,537 of capital assets were capitalized as additions. Increases in
capital assets were offset by depreciation expense for the year.

Debt Administration. The District's long-term liabilities are as follows for the governmental and business-
type activities:

June 30, 2023  June 30, 2022

Bonds Payable (net) $ 545,000 $ 615,000
Pension Liability-PERS 1,176,939 896,755
Compensated Absences payable 142,961 161,365
Total long-term liabilities $ 1,864,900 $___1.673,120

For more detailed information, please refer to the Capital Assets and Long-term debt notes in the basic
financial statements.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

For the 2022-2023 school year, the School Board was able to sustain its budget through the local tax
levy, state education aid and local revenue sources. Approximately 71.35% of the School Board's
revenue is from federal and state (restricted and not restricted), while 28.65% of total revenue is from
local sources.

The $(1,083,993) in unrestricted net position for all governmental activities represents the accumulated
results of all past years’ operations. It means that if the School Board had to pay off all bills today,
including all of the School Board's non-capital liabilities (compensated absences, etc.), the School Board
would have that much in value.

The 2022-2023 budget was adopted in March 2022 based in part on the state education aid the School
Board anticipated receiving. Any future increases based on the enroliment formula, originally formulated
to allocate state education aid amongst school boards, will be minimal. Future decreases in local revenue
and state education aid will place additional burden on the City of Beverly for increased aid.

The School Board anticipates a slight increase in enrollment for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. If the School
Board were to experience a significant increase in enrollment with no appreciable increase in state aid for
future budgets, the School Board will be faced with the following alternatives: (a) reduce programs and
services, (b) increase local tax levy or (c) seek alternative sources of funding.

Contacting the School Board's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the School Board's finances and to show the School Board's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact the
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Beverly City School District, 601 Bentley Avenue,
Beverly, NJ, 08010.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables - state
Receivables - federal
Receivables - other
Interfund receivable
Inventories

Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable, net

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - PERS

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Interfund payable
Other liabilities
Unearned revenue

Payable to state government

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - PERS

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Other purposes

Unrestricted

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total net position

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 3,358,958 $ 214,835 3,573,793
213,083 - 213,083
105,880 - 105,880
129,150 - 129,150

- 14,261 14,261

67,142 - 67,142
3,943,422 3,913 3,947,335
7,817,635 233,009 8,050,644
437,902 - 437,902
437,902 - 437,902

- 129,150 129,150

34,067 850 34,917

- 1,605 1,605

70,000 - 70,000
1,794,900 - 1,794,900
1,898,967 131,605 2,030,572
187,985 - 187,985
187,985 - 187,985
3,465,564 3,913 3,469,477
2,920,815 - 2,920,815
866,199 - 866,199
(1,083,993) 97,491 (986,502)

$ 6,168,585 $ 101,404 6,269,989
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Exhibit B-1
BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Balance Sheet
Govemnmental Funds
June 30, 2023
Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,662,779 $  (103,821) $ 800,000 $ - $ 3,358,958
Interfund receivable 196,292 - - - 196,292
Receivables from federal - 105,880 - - 105,880
Receivables from State 206,423 6,660 - - 213,083
Other receivables - - - - -
Total assets 3,065,494 8,719 800,000 - 3,874,213
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable - - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - - -
Interfund payable - - 67,142 - 67,142
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 23,372 - - - 23,372
Payable to federal government - - - - -
Payable to state government - - - - -
Total liabilities 23,372 - 67,142 - 90,514
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess surplus - current year 112,630 - - - 112,630
Excess surplus - prior year- designated for
Subsequent year's expenditures 194,869 - - - 194,869
Capital reserve account 2,187,957 - - - 2,187,957
Malntenance reserve account 218,981 - - - 218,981
Tuition reserve account 331,000 - - - 331,000
Debt service fund - - - - -
Capital projects fund - - 732,858 - 732,858
Student Activities 8719 8,719
Committed to:
Other purposes - - - - -
Assigned to:
Other purposes - - - - -
Designated by the BOE for subsequent
year's expenditures 178,859 - - - 178,859
Unassigned:
General fund (182,174) - - - (182,174)
Total fund balances 3,042,122 8,719 732,858 - 3,783,699
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,065,494 $ 8,719 $ 800,000 $ -

Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement of
net position(A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 4,010,564
Deferred outflows related to the PERS pension plan 437,902
Deferred inflows related to the PERS pension plan (187,985)
Bond premium received upon issuance of debt, (5.530)

Accrued interest for the interest due this year but
not paid until next year. (5,165)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as

liabilities in the funds (1,864,900)
Net position of governmental activities $ 6,168,585
See ing notes to ial is. 25




REVENUES
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition charges
Interest on investments
Interest eamned on capital reserve funds

Interest eamed on maintenance reserve funds

Miscellaneous
Total - local sources
State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other special instruction
School sponsored/other instructional
Undistributed - current:
Instruction
Attendance and social work services
Health services
Other support services
Educational media services
Instruction staff training
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services
Admin. info. technology
Allowed maintenance for school facilities
Other operation & maintenance of plant
Student transportation services
Unallocated employee benefits
Non-budgeted expenditures
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds

Capital leases (non-budgeted)

Capital Lease Proceeds

Transfer to Special Revenue Fund - ECPA
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance—July 1

Fund balance—June 30

See

g notes to fi

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Govemmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Govemmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 3,099,011 § - 8 - $ 86894 $ 3,185,905
9,207 - - - 9,207
17,983 - - - 17,983
1,521 - - - 1,521
130,404 4,085 - - 134,488
3,258,126 4,085 - 86,894 3,349,105
6,239,443 755,079 - - 6,994,522
46,519 1,301,566 - - 1,348,085
9,544,088 2,060,730 - 86.894 11,681,712
1,805,300 865,019 - - 2,670,319
362,940 - - - 362,940
135,421 - - - 135,421
14,356 - - - 14,356
3,166,847 - - - 3,166,847
44,403 - - - 44,403
148,892 - - - 148,892
646,685 719,089 - - 1,365,774
19,674 - - - 19,674
229,226 - - - 229,226
27,458 - - - 27,458
122,344 - - - 122,344
24,619 - - - 24,619
97,168 - - - 97,168
481,400 - - - 481,400
341,937 - - - 341,937
(31,667) - . = (31,667)
1,470,158 - - - 1,470,158
- - - 70,000 70,000

- - - 16,894 16,894

105,791 477,394 67,142 - 650,327
9,212,952 2,061,502 67,142 86,894 11,428,480
331,136 (772) (67,142) - 263,222
- - 800,000 - 800,000
(800,000) - - - (800,000)
{800,000) - 800,000 - -
(468,864) (772) 732,858 - 263,222
3,510,986 9,491 - - 3,520,477
$ 3,042,122 § 8719 § 732,858 § - § 3,783,699
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interfund receivable
Receivable from state
Receivable from federal
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Interfund payable
Due to Federal Gov.
Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Exhibit B-4

Food
Service Total

$ 214,835 $ 214,835
14,261 14,261
229,096 229,096
73,226 73,226
(69,313) (69,313)
3,913 3,913
233,009 233,009

850 850

129,150 129,150
1,605 1,605
131,605 131,605
3,913 3,913
97,491 97,491
101,404 101,404

$ 233,009 $ 233,009
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Exhibit B-5

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Food
Service Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs $ - $ -
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 1,935 1,935
Total operating revenues 1,935 1,935
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales - reimbursement programs 147,942 147,942
Cost of sales - non-reimbursement programs - -
Salaries 86,851 86,851
Employee benefits 16,356 16,356
Purchased property service 21,441 21,441
Management fee 20,862 20,862
General supplies 5,914 5,914
Depreciation 1,085 1,085
Total Operating Expenses 300,451 300,451
Operating income (loss) (298,516) (298,516)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:
State school lunch program 3,053 3,053
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 143,622 143,622
National school breakfast program 67,804 67,804
Summer Food Service Program For Children - -
Supply Chain Assistance 31,137 31,137
Emergency Operational Cost Program - Schools - -
Food distribution program 47,566 47,566
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 293,182 293,182
Change in net position (5,334) (5,334)
Total net position—beginning 106,738 106,738
Total net position—ending $ 101,404 $ 101,404

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 29



BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit B-6

Food
Service Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 1,951 $ 1,951
Payments to employees (86,851) (86,851)
Payments for employee benefits (16,356) (16,356)
Payments to suppliers (137.931) (137,931)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (239,187) (239,187)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State sources 3,053 3,053
Federal sources 240,951 240,951
Interest income - -
Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities 244,004 244,004
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,817 4,817
Balances—beginning of year 210,018 210,018
Balances—end of year $ 214,835 $ 214,835
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating aclivities:
Operating income (loss) s (298,516) $ (298,516)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,085 1,085
Federal commodities 47,566 47,566
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable, net - -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net - -
(Increase) decrease in inventories (560) (560)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets - -
Increase (decrease) in Unearned Revenues 16 16
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable 11,222 11,222
Total adjustments 59,329 59,329
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ {239,187) $ (239,187)
30
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Financial statements of the Board of Education ("Board") of the Beverly City School District
("District”) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's
accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Beverly City School District is a Type |l district located in the county of Burlington, State of
New Jersey. As a Type Il district, the School District functions independently through a Board of
Education. The Board is comprised of seven members elected to three-year staggered terms.
The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades PreK-8. The Beverly City School
District had an approximate enroliment of 339 students at June 30, 2023.

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal
control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Cadification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight
responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of
management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters.
The district-wide financial statements include all funds and account groups of the District over
which the Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include an
elementary/junior high school located in Beverly. There were no additional entities required to be
included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such
criteria.

B. Basis of Presentation

The School District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities, and Fund Financial Statements which
provide a more detailed level of financial information. The Statement of Net Position includes the
reporting of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows. Items not meeting that
definition of assets and liabilities have been classified as deferred outflows or deferred inflows.
The deferred outflows are reported under assets and deferred inflows are reported under
liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
B. Basis of Presentation (cont'd):

The School District has Bond Costs which have been classified as a Deferred Outflow and the
Bond Premium has been classified as a Deferred Inflow. The School District has employees
that are enrolied in a defined benefit plan operated by the State of New Jersey which creates
deferred outflows and inflows as described in Note 13.

District-Wide Statements: The district-wide financial statements (A-1 and A-2) inciude the
statement of net position and the statement of activities. These Statements include the financial
activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities. All interfund activity, excluding the
fiduciary funds, has been eliminated in the statement of activities. Individual funds are not
displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally financed in whole or
in part with fees charged to external customers.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activity of the District at fiscal year-end. The Statement of Activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the business-type activity of the
District and for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates transactions related
to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management
and to demonstrate legal compliance. The Fund Financial Statements provide information about
the District's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each Fund category -
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of
Education ("NJDOE") has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental
fund as a major fund. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is
important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting
models.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
B. Basis of Presentation (Cont'd):
The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or
noninstructional equipment, which are classified in the Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this Fund.
Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from
unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, District taxes and appropriated Fund Balance. Expenditures are those that
result in the acquisition of or additions to Capital Assets for land, existing buildings,
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings
and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to
Current Expense by Board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for all proceeds of
specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects,
Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate
question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of

resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
B. Basis of Presentation (Cont'd):
The District reports the following proprietary funds:

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund - The Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to the Board's cafeteria operations. The Food Service Fund is utilized
to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The stated intent is that the costs (i.e., expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing primarily through user charges.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund and School Age
Childcare.

Depreciation of all capital assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense
against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance
sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment 5-20 Years

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds - The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets help by the District
on behalf of others if applicable.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of Accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements.

District-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide

financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds
are accounted for using the "economic resources”" measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting; the Enterprise Fund and Fiduciary Funds are accounted for using the
"economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of unearned
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. Revenue from grants,
entittements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied.
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C. Basis of Accounting (Cont'd)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental Funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal
year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal
and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's
accounting policies are described below.

D. Property Taxes

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the established
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "Accounts Receivable".

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the General, Special
Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. The budgets are submitted to the County Office and are not
voted upon in the annual school election. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, except for Special Revenue Fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.J.A.C 6A:23A-16.2(f). All budget amendments/transfers must be approved by
Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary
information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for
legally-authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpected grant

appropriation, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The Capital Project Fund presents the
remaining project appropriations compared to current-year expenditures.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Cont'd)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception
of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary
purposes only and the Special Revenue Fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund-types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

F. Encumbrances

Under Encumbrance Accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.
Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the Special Revenue Fund are reported
as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances
are reflected in the Balance Sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the
certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year-end.

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at
cost plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are
stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:2037 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Cont'd)

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in
a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public
depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and
savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of
collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay
the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

H. Interfund Transactions

Transfers between Governmental and Business-Type activities on the District-wide statements
are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as Interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in Governmental Funds and after non-operating
revenues/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.

I. Inventories

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods are recorded as an expenditure
during the year of purchase.

Inventories are valued at cost, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventories
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather when purchased..

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
K. Capital Assets
The District has an established formal system of accounting for its Capital Assets. Purchased or
constructed Capital Assets are reported at cost. Donated Capital Assets are valued at their
estimated acquisition value on the date received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.
All reported Capital Assets except for Land and Construction in Progress are depreciated.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Building and improvements 7-60 years
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years
Infrastructure 30 years

L. Compensated Absences

The District accounts for Compensated Absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed
by the Governmental Accounting Board. A liability for Compensated Absences attributable to
services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of
the employer and the employee is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with
the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The
District's Policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full
amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee
unions.

In the District-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are
greater than one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year
and the amount due in more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund-types is recorded within
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2023, no liability existed for
compensated absences in the Food Service Fund.

M. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2023,
but which were levied to finance fiscal year 2023 operations, have been recorded as unearned
revenue. Grants and entitlement received before the eligibility requirements are met are also
recorded as Unearned Revenue.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
N. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All Payables, Accrued Liabilities, and Long-Term Obligations are reported on the District-wide
financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables are accrued liabilities that, once
incurred are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as
obligations of the funds. However, contractually-required pension contributions and
compensated absences that are paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

0. Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Net Position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District's policy is to first
apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted Net Position is available.

P. Fund Balance Reserves

Governmental Accounting Standards established fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints
imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Fund balances in the
governmental funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of
accounting and classified into the following five categories, as defined below:

1. Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Assets included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories,
long-term receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.

2. Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

3. Committed - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making
authority.

4. Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. This intent can be
expressed by the Board of Education or through the Board of Education delegating
this responsibility to the business administrator through the budgetary process.

5. Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
Q. Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from Exchange Transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the actual accrual basis when the Exchange takes place.
On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means the resources will be collected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the
fiscal year-end.

Nonexchange Transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On
the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is
earned. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal
year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis,
revenue from Nonexchange Transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest,
and tuition.

R. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of
the Enterprise Fund. For the School District, these revenues are sales for food service and
intramural. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the
primary activity of the Enterprise Fund.

S. Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all Direct Expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct
Expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect Expenses are allocated
to functions but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee Benefits,
including the employer's share of Social Security, workers compensation, and medical and
dental benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where
practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the Indirect Expense column of
the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributable to a specific
function is considered an Indirect Expense and is reported separately in the Statement of
Activities. Interest on long-term debt is considered an Indirect Expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
T. Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary Items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special ltems are transactions or events that are within the control of management
and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of
transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

U. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

V. Change in Accounting Principles

On June 30, 2023, the District implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Boards
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, This Statement
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). Statement No. 96
is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods
thereafter. These changes were reviewed for the District's June 30, 2023 financial statements
and had no effect on the beginning net position of the District. The District did not have any
subscriptions that rose to an amount that required disclosure. The District will review new
subscriptions annually to determine proper disclosure.

W. GASB Pronouncements
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements to be implemented in future years

Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - An Amendment GASB
Statement No. 62. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting changes
and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent and
comparable information for making decision or assessing accountability. Statement No. 100 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement
guidance for compensated absences. Statement No. 101 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Capital Reserve Account

A Capital Reserve Account was established by the Beverly City School District by inclusion of $1
for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years.
The Capital Reserve Account is maintained in the General Fund and its activity is included in the
General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the Capital Reserve Account are restricted to Capital Projects in the District's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan ("LRFP"). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department,
a District may increase the balance in the Capital Reserve by appropriating funds in the annual
General Fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by Board Resolution at year-end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A District may
also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained
either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the
balance in the Account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted Capital
Projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the Capital Reserve for the July 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance July 01, 2022 $ 2,569,974
Add: Increase per Resolution 400,000
Interest Earned 17,983

Less: Withdrawals (800.000)

Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $ 2,187,957
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Maintenance Reserve Account

A maintenance Reserve Account was established by the Beverly City School District for the
accumulation of funds for use as maintenance of Capital Projects in subsequent fiscal years.
The Maintenance Reserve Account is maintained in the General Fund and its activity is included
in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the Maintenance Reserve Account are restricted to maintenance projects in the
District's approved Comprehensive Maintenance Plan (CMP). Upon submission of the CMP to
the New Jersey Department of Education, the District may increase the balance in the
maintenance reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes
or by transfer by board resolution at year end (June 1 to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue
or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. The District may also appropriate
additional amounts during the school year through a Board Resolution. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:23A-14.2(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed four percent of the
replacement cost of the school district's school facilities for the current year.

The balance in the maintenance reserve does not exceed four percent of the replacement cost
of the school district's school facilities for the current year at June 30, 2023.

The activity of the Maintenance Reserve for the July 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as
follows:

Beginning balance, July 01, 2022 $ 217,460
Add: Increase per Resolution -
Interest Earned 1,521
Less: Withdrawals -
Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $ 218,981

Tuition Reserve Account

A tuition reserve account may be established in accordance with N.J.A.C.6a:23-3.1(f) for tuition
between two Boards of Education that are in a formal sending/receiving relationship. The
maximum amount that may be restricted at year end is 10% of the estimated contract year. Upon
certification of tuition rates in the second year following the contract year, full appropriation of the

applicable year's reserve must be liquidated and any remaining balance related to that year must
be reserved and budgeted for tax relief.

The activity of the Tuition Reserve for the July 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 01, 2022 $ 331,000
Add: Increase per Resolution 140,000
Less: Withdrawal (140.000)

Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $ 331,000
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5. Transfers to Capital Outlay

During the year ending June 30, 2023, the District did not transfer funds to the Capital Outlay
Account.

6. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Board's deposits may not
be recovered. Although the Board does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk,
NJSA 17:9-414 et seq. requires that the governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of GUDPA. Under the ACT, the first
$250,000 of governmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by FDIC. Public
fund owned by the Board in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA.,
However, GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings, student
activity fund or other funds that may pass to the Board relative to the happening of a future
condition. Such funds are shown as Uninsured and Uncollateralized in the schedule below. As
of June 30, 2023, the School District's bank balance of $4,189,485 was exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Insured under FDIC and GUDPA $ 4,112,970
Uninsured and Uncollateralized 76,515
$ 4,189,485

2. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2023, consisted of state aid, accrued interest, interfund,
intergovernmental, and other. All Receivables are considered collectible in full. A summary of
the principal items of intergovernmental receivable follows:

Governmental District-Wide
Fund Financial Financial
Statements Statements
State Aid 213,083 213,083
Federal Aid 105,880 105,880
Interfunds 196,292 129.150
515,255 448,113
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles - -
Total Receivables, Net $ 515,255 $ 448,113



Beverly City School District

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Capital Assets

The following schedule is a summarization of the general fixed assets by source for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2023:

Governmental Activities:
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being

Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Totals at Historical Cost

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Site Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Government Activity Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Building Improvements
Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Enterprise Fund Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
$_ 901494 $ 67.142 $_ (901.494) $ 67,142
901,494 67.142 (901.494) 67,142
$ 84,750 - - $ 84,750
3,780,455 1,378,888 - 5,159,343
490,566 46,649 - 537.215
4,355,771 1.425.537 - 5,781,308
(84,750) - - (84,750)
(1,285,085) (75,610) - (1,360,695)
(374,027) (18.414) - (392.441)
(1,743.862) (94,024) - (1.837.886)
2,611,909 1.331.513 - 3,943,422

$_3.513.403 $_1.398.655 $_(901.494) $_4.010.564

$ - $ - $ - $ -
73,226 - - 73,226
(68,228) (1.085) - (69.313)

$ 4998 $ (1,085) $ - $ 3.913

The NJ State Department of Education has set the capitalization threshold used by school
districts in the State of New Jersey at $2,000.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Other operation and maintenance of plant

Total
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Interfund Balances and Transfers

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2023 consist of the following:

Due to General Fund from Enterprise Fund

$ 129,150 representing cash advance.
67.142 Due to General Fund from Capital Project Fund

representing cash advance.
$ 196,292

Inventory
As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following inventory:

Food $ 10,903
Supplies

3.358

$ 14,261

Long-Term Obligations
A. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Changes in Long-Term Obligations for the year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Amounts
Balance Increases/ Balance Due Within
July 01, 2022 Decreases June 30, 2023 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Compensated
Absences Payable $ 161,365 $ (18,404) $ 142,961 $ -
Bonds Payable 615,000 (70,000) 545,000 70,000
Pension liability -
PERS 896,755 280,184 1,176,939 -
$ 1,673,120 $ 191,780 $ 1,864,900 $ 70,000

For governmental activities, the bonds payable are liquidated from the School District's debt
service fund. Compensated absences payable and pension liability - PERS are liquidated by

the general fund.
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Long-Term Obligations (continued)
B. Unfunded Pension Liability

The School District approved an "Early Retirement Incentive Program" permitted by State
Legislation during 1993 for certain members of the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. The
members had to meet certain age and service requirements and had to apply for retirement
between certain dates in fiscal year 1994 to be eligible. The District selected a thirty-year
payment program and is assessed annually by the State Division of Pensions for their
contribution to fund this program.

C. Debt Service Requirements

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality(ies) through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefuiness.
Bonds issued by the District are general obligation bonds.

2015 School Bonds

On September 30, 2014, the voters approved a referendum authorizing the issuance of
$1,031,000 in bonds for the purpose of constructing and renovating the roof, HVAC system,
boiler and windows. On January 22, 2015, $1,031,000 of School Bonds were issued. The
Bonds mature annually on March 1 of each year from March 2016 and ending 2030. Interest is
payable semi-annually at 2.0%-3.125%.

The Bonds are general obligations of the Board and are secured by a pledge of the full faith and
credit of the Board for the payment of the principal thereof and the interest thereon and, unless
paid from other sources, the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all
taxable real property in the school district, without limitation as to rate or amount. The Bonds are
additionally secured by the provisions of the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act.

The District, in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds, has agreed to undertake and provide
certain information to bondholders on a continuing basis. The Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) "Continuing Disclosure" requirements, which the
District has adopted, requires that various financial information about the District and the
Municipality be provided annually to various information repositories.
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Long-Term Obligations (continued)

C. Debt Service Requirements (continued)

Redemption

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

Debt Service Requirements on serial bonds payable at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal

2024 $ 70,000
2025 70,000
2026 75,000
2027 80,000
2028 80,000
2029-2030 170,000
$ 545,000

D. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2023, the District had no authorized but not issued bonds.

E. Capital Leases

As of June 30, 2023, the District had no capital leases.

Operating Leases

Interest

$ 14,969
13,365

11,506

9,206

6,810

6.124

$ 61.980

As of June 30, 2023, the District had various operating leases.

48

Total

$ 84,969
83,365
86,506
89,206
86,810

176,124

$ 606,980
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Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Pension Plans

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description - The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New
Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about PERS,
please refer to Division's Annual financial statements which can be found at
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement,
death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to
November 2, 2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to
May 22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to
June 28, 2011

5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service
credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age
60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 years or more of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 with 30 years
or more of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each
month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early
retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an
unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred
retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not
reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

Contributions - The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires
contributions by active members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the
amount that is contributed by the State. The State's pension contribution is based on an
actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance
benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2022, the State's pension contribution
was less than the actuarial determined amount.

The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate, which
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an
option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability
contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will
be credited with the full payment and such amounts will not be included in their unfunded
liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by
employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law.
This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15
years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be
adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - At June 30,
2023, the School District reported a liability of $1,176,939 for its proportionate share of the
PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 The
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update
procedure to roll forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021,
to the measurement date of June 30, 2022. The School District's proportion of the net pension
liability was based on the School District's actual contributions to the plan relative to the total of
all participating employers' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022. The School District's
proportion measured as of June 30, 2022, was .0077988514%, which was a increase of
.0002289647% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.
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13. Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the School District recognized full accrual pension expense
of $125,691 in the government-wide financial statements consisting of employer contributions of
$98,346 and non-employer contributions of $27,345. This pension expense was based on the
pension plans June 30, 2022 measurement date. At June 30, 2023, the School District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 8495 $ 7,491
Changes of assumptions 3,647 176,234
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 48,712 -
Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 270,997 4,260
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 106,051 -
Total $ 437902 § 187,985

$106,051 reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from school district contributions
subsequent to the measurement date is estimated based on unadjusted 2022--2023 total
salaries for PERS employees multiplied by an employer contribution rate. The payable is due on
April 1, 2024 and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2023. The other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023 $ 118,205

2024 60,222

2025 29,369

2026 (64,072)
2027 142

Thereafter -

Total $ 143,866

el
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

The amortization of the above other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be over the following number of years:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:
June 30, 2017 5.48 -
June 30, 2018 - 5.63
June 30, 2019 - 5.21
June 30, 2020 5.16 -
June 30, 2021 5.13 -
June 30, 2022 - 5.04
Changes of Assumptions
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:
June 30, 2017 - 5.48
June 30, 2018 - 5.63
June 30, 2019 - 5.63
June 30, 2020 - 5.16
June 30, 2021 5.13 -
June 30, 2022 - 5.04
Net Difference between projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:
June 30, 2017 5.00 5.00
June 30, 2018 5.00 5.00
June 30, 2019 5.00 5.00
June 30, 2020 5.00 5.00
June 30, 2021 5.00 5.00

June 30, 2022 5.00 5.00
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be
recognized (amortized) by each employer over the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all plan members, which is 5.04, 5.13, 5.16, 5.21, 5.63, and 5.48 years for the 2022,
2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively.

Actuarial Assumptions - The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to
June 30, 2022. This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases: 2.75% - 6.55%

Based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-
Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a
generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
(7.00% at June 30, 2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a
building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for
each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are
summarized in the following table.

Long-Term
Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. Equity 27.00 % 8.12 %
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50 % 8.83 %
Emerging Markets Equity 550 % 10.33 %
Private Equity 13.00 % 11.80 %
Real Estate 8.00 % 11.19 %
Real Assets 3.00 % 7.60 %
High Yield 4.00 % 4.95 %
Private Credit 8.00 % 8.10 %
Investment Grade Credit 7.00 % 3.38 %
Cash Equivalents 4.00 % 1.75 %
U.S. Treasuries 4.00 % 1.75 %
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00 % 4.91 %
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (cont'd)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2022.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions
from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be based on 100% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of
June 30, 2022 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the
collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability 1,624,827 1,176,939 899,322

Additional Information - The following is a summary of the collective balances of the local group:

6/30/23 6/30/22
Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,660,772,008 1,164,738,169
Collective Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,236,303,935 8,339,123,762
Collective Net Pension Liability 15,219,184,920 11,972,782,878

School District's Portion .0077987514% .0075697867%
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity (TPAF)

Plan Description - The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a
cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special-funding situation, by which a
State of New Jersey (the State) is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contributions,
excluding any local employer early retirement incentive (ERI) contributions. TPAF is
administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For
additional information about TPAF, please refer to Division's Annual Financial Statements which
can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death,
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. Members are always fully
vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2%
of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members'
beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to
November 2, 2008

Tier Definition
1
2

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to
May 22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to
June 28, 2011

5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final average salary for each year of service
credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60,
tiers 3 and 4 with 25 years or more of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with
30 years or more of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month
that a member retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the
service retirement age for the respective tier
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity (TPAF) (cont'd)

Contributions - The contribution policy for TPAF is set by M.J.S.A. 78A.66 and requires
contributions by active members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the
amount that is contributed by the State. The State's pension contribution is based on an
actuarially determined amount, which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance
benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2022, the State's pension contribution
was less than the actuarial determined amount.

As mentioned previously, the employer contributions for local participating employers are legally
required to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 78A.66-33. Therefore, the
School District is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement
No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the School District
does not contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is
no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the
School District.

Pension Liability and Pension Expense - The State's proportionate share of the TPAF net
pension liability, attributable to the School District as of June 30, 2022 was $11,525,492. The
School District's proportionate share was $0.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. The State's proportionate share of the net pension
liability associated with the District was based on projection of the State's long-term
contributions to the pension plan associated with the District relative to the projected
contributions by the State associated with all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2022, the State proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability
attributable to the School District was .0223386424%, which was an decrease of .0007471170%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the State of New Jersey recognized a pension expense
in the amount of $986,743 for the State's proportionate share of the TPAF pension expense
attributable to the School District. This pension expense was based on the pension plans June
30, 2022 measurement date.
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13. Pension Plans (cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity (TPAF) (cont'd)

Actuarial Assumptions - The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to
June 30, 2022 This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all periods in
the measurement:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases: 2,75-5.65%

based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement, post-retirement were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income
Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-
retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy
Retiree mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a
106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement
from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale
MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return- In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2022) is determined by the State
Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of
return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:
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13. Pension Plans (cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity (TPAF) (cont'd)

Long-Term
Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
U.S. Equity 27.00 % 812 %
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50 % 8.83 %
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50 % 10.33 %
Private Equity 13.00 % 11.80 %
Real Estate 8.00 % 11.19 %
Real Assets 3.00 % 7.60 %
High Yield 4.00 % 495 %
Private Credit 8.00 % 8.10 %
Investment Grade Credit 7.00 % 3.38 %
Cash Equivalents 4.00 % 1.75 %
U.S. Treasuries 4.00 % 1.75 %
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00 % 491 %

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on 100% of the actuarially determined
contributions to the State. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of
June 30, 2022 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the
collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)

State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability 13,535,407 11,525,492 9,866,210
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Pension Plans (cont'd)

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity (TPAF) (cont'd)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Pension and
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Additional Information - The following is a summary of the collective balances of the local group:

6/30/23 6/30/22
Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,004,259,312 6,373,530,834
Collective Deferred Inflows of Resources 19,682,774,794 27,363,797,906
Collective Net Pension Liability 51,676,587,303 48,165,991,182
School District's Portion .0223386424% .0215915254%

C. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
contribution pension plan which was established on July 1, 2007, under the provisions of
Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J.S.A.43:15C-1 et. seq), and expanded
under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 1, P.L. 2010. The Defined
Contribution Retirement Program Board oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the
Divisions of Pensions and Benefits by Prudential Financial. The DCRP provides eligible
members, and their beneficiaries, with tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit,
along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established
by N.J.S.A.43:15C-1 et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance
with Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to
contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. In addition to the employee contributions, the
School District's contribution amounts for each pay period are transmitted to Prudential not later
than the fifth business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.

The District's contributions to the DCRP for June 30, 2023 were $14,385. There was no liability
for unpaid contributions at June 30, 2023.

Related Party Investments - The Division of Pensions and Benefits does not invest in securities
issued by the School District.
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Post-Retirement Benefits
General Information about the OPEB Plan
Plan description and benefits provided

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay
other post- employment (health) benefit for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired
Employees Plan. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a
multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for the
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health Benefit Local Education
Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription drug, and Medicare Part B
reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required
to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. According
to N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire
from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of service credit in, or
retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’ Pension
and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Police and
Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to
Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage
of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of
coverage.

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit
obligations that are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these
benefits are the responsibility of the individual local education employers.

Basis of Presentation

The Schedule presents the State of New Jersey's obligation under NJSA 52:14-17.32f. The
Schedule does not purport to be a complete presentation of the financial position or changes
in financial position of the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan or the
State of New Jersey. The accompanying Schedule was prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Such preparation requires management of the State
of New Jersey to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported
amounts. Due to the inherent nature of these estimates, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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State Health Benefit State Retired Employees Plan
General Information about the OPEB Plan (cont'd)

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obligations in Fiscal Year 2022 the
State funded the various defined benefit pension systems at 108 percent of the full actuarially
determined contributions. Employer contributions to the pension plans are calculated per the
requirements of the governing State statutes using generally accepted actuarial procedures
and practices. The actuarial funding method used to determine the State's contribution is a
matter of State law. Any change to the funding method requires the approval of the State
Legislature and the Governor. The amount the State actually contributes to the pension plans
may differ from the actuarially determined contributions of the pension plans because the
State’s contribution to the pension plans is subject to the appropriation of the State Legislature
and actions by the Governor. GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, requires participating employers to recognize their proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability. Under the new statement, the calculation of the pension liability
was changed to a more conservative methodology and each employer was allocated a
proportional share of the pension plans’ net pension liability. The State’s share of the net
pension liability, based on a measurement date of June 30, 2021, which is required to be
recorded on the financial statements, is $75.1 bilion. The Fiscal Year 2023 projected
aggregate State contribution to the pension plans of $6.8 billion represents 104 percent of the
actuarially determined contribution. The State provides post-retirement medical (PRM)
benefits for certain State and other retired employees meeting the service credit eligibility
requirements. In Fiscal Year 2022, the State paid PRM benefits for 161,238 State and local
retirees. The State funds post-retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which
means that the State does not prefund, or otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of
assets against the PRM expenses that the State may incur in future years. For Fiscal Year
2022, the State contributed $1.9 billion to pay for “pay-as-you-go” PRM benefit costs incurred
by covered populations, a slight increase from $1.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2021. The State has
appropriated $2.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2023 as the State’s contribution to fund increases in
prescription drugs and medical claims costs. In accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, the State is required to quantify and disclose its obligations to pay Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired plan members. This new standard supersedes
the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for Fiscal Year 2018. The 7
State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language names the
State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2022 State OPEB liability to
provide these benefits is $88.9 billion, a decrease of $12.7 billion, or 12.5 percent from the
$101.6 billion liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2021. Additional information on Pensions and
OPEB can be accessed on the Division of Pensions & Benefits Financial Reports webpage:
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.
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14. Post-Retirement Benefits (cont'd)

General Information about the OPEB Plan (cont'd)
Employees covered by benefit terms

At June 30, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 151,669
Active plan members 213,148
Total 364,817

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. The actuarial
assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled
in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

Inflation Rate 3.54%
Salary increases based on years of PERS 2.75%-6.55%
service: PFRS 3.25%-16.25%
TPAF 2.75%-4.25%
Discount Rate 3.54%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 4.5%-6.25%
Retirees' Share of Benefit Related Costs 1.5% of projected health insurance

premiums for retirees
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Post-Retirement Benefits (cont'd)
Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability (cont'd)

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP),
“General” (PERS), and “Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with
fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.
Postretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General”
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021 for current disables retirees.
Future disabled retirees was based on the Pub-2010 “Safety” (PFRS), “General” (PERS), and
“Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of the
TPAF, PERS and PFRS experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey

Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 60,007,650,970
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,770,618,025

Interest on the total OPEB liability 1,342,187,139
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and

actual experiences 1,399,200,736
Changes in assumptions (13,586,368,097)
Gross benefit payments by the state (1,329,476,059)
Contributions from members 42,650,252
Net changes (9.361,188.004)
Balance at June 30, 2022 $__50,646.462.966
Discount rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2022 was 3.54%. This represents the municipal bond return rate
as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index,
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa
or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered
in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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Post-Retirement Benefits (cont'd)
Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the June 30, 2022 total OPEB liability of the State for school board
retirees, as well as the State's total OPEB liability for the school district calculated using a

discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current
discount rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.54%) (3.54%) (4.54%)
Total OPEB Liability of the State for
School Retirees $59,529,589,697 $50,646,462,966 $43,527,080,995
Total OPEB Liability of the State
Associated with the School District
for School Retirees $11,766,142 $10,010,374 $8,450,863

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.25% and decreases to a 4.50%
long-term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO, the trend is initially -
1.99% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 13.44% in fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in
fiscal year 2033. For HMO the trend is initially -3.54% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 15.19% in
fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription drug benefits, the
initial trend rate is 8.00% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after eight years. For
the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the health care cost trend rates

The following presents the June 30, 2022 total OPEB liability of the State for school board
retirees, as well as the State's total OPEB liability for the school district calculated using a health
care cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
Total OPEB Liability of the State for
School Retirees $41,862,397,291 $50,646,462,966 $62,184,866,635

Total OPEB Liability of the State
Associated with the School District
for School Retirees $8,274,186 $10,010,374 $12,290,962
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Post-Retirement Benefits (cont'd)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of
$259,215 determined by the State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a
defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB 75 and in which there is a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB 75, the Beverly City School District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2022, the State reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school
employee's OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $9,042,402,619 $15,462,950,679
Changes of assumptions 8,765,620,577 17,237,289,230

Contributions made in fiscal year ending 2023 after
June 30, 2022 measurement date

Total $17.808,023.196 $_32,700,239,909

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
retired school employee's OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2023 $ (2,517,151,602)
2024 (2,517,151,602)
2025 (2,517,151,602)
2026 (2,175,449,761)
2027 (1,243,951,140)
Thereafter (3.921,361,006)

Total $__(14.892.216.713)
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Deferred Compensation

The Board offers its employees a choice of Deferred Compensation Plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The Plans, which are administered by
the entities listed below, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the Plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency. The Plan administrators are as follows:

Lincoln Investments AXA Equitable
VOYA 403b Teachers Pension/WCC

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance
coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Contingent Liabilities
Grant Programs

The District participates in federally-assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is potentially
liable for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs.
Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures.

The District is also involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Board.

Fund Balances

General Fund - of the $3,042,122 General Fund balance at June 30, 2023, $2,187,957 is
restricted for capital reserve, $218,981 is restricted for maintenance reserve, $331,000 is
restricted for tuition reserve, $112,630 is restricted for excess surplus, $194,869 is restricted for
excess surplus for subsequent year expenditures, $178,859 has been classified as assigned
fund balance designated for subsequent year expenditures, and $(182,174) is unassigned.

Special Revenue Fund - of the $8,719 Special Revenue Fund balance at June 30, 2023, $8,719
is restricted for the use of student activities.
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Calculation of Excess Surplus

The Designation for Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General
Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The excess fund
balance at June 30, 2023 is $112,630. The excess surplus at June 30, 2022 was $194,869.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The school district had no unrecognized tax benefits at June 30, 2023. The school district files
tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and New Jersey. The school district has no open years
prior to June 30, 2020.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 25, 2023, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Tax Abatement

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises
to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action
that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens.
School districts are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement
agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may
have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these
financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those
agreements will not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-
75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from
other taxpayers and remitted to the school district.

Economic Dependency
Economic Dependency - The School District receives a substantial amount of its support from

federal and state governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to
occur, could have an effect on the School District's programs and activities.
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Deficit Fund Balance

The District has a deficit fund balance of $182,174 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2023 as
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in
the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts
must record the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes
only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to
recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB
Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in
symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a
liability. Since the State is recording the June state aid payment(s) in the subsequent fiscal June
30, 2024 year, the school district cannot recognize the June state aid payment(s) (on the GAAP
financial statements) until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of
recording the June state aid payment(s), the General Fund balance deficit does not alone
indicate that the district is facing financial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance
that is reported as a direct result from a delay in the June payment(s) of state aid until the
following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in
need of corrective action. The District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $182,174 is less
than the last state aid payment.
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REVENUES:

Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition - residents
Interest
Interest earned on maintenance reserve
Interest earned on capital reserve funds
Miscellaneous

Total - local sources

State sources:

Transportation aid

Special education aid

Equalization aid

Categorical secunty

Adjustment aid

Extraordinary aid

Non-public transportation
TPAF - LTDI (on-behalf - Non-budgeted)
TPAF - post retirement medical (on-behalf - Non-budgeted)
Teacher's pension and annuity fund (on-behalf - Non-budgeted)
TPAF social ity ( d - Non-budgeted)
Total state sources

Federal Sources

impact Ald

Medicaid reimbursement
Total Federal Sources

Tota! revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expenditures:
Regular Programs - Instruction
Preschoollt g - ies of h
Local Contrib. - Trans to Special Rev- Inclusion
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of teachers
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of teachers
Regular Programs - Home Instruction:
Salaries of teachers
Purchased professional-educational services
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other salaries for instruction
Purchased professional-educational services
Purchased technical services
Other purchased services (400-500 series)
General supplies
Textbooks
Other objecls - misc. exp.
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Leaming and/or Language Disabllites:
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction
General supplies
Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities
Resource Room/Resource Center:
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction
General supplies
Total Resource Room/Resource Center
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION

Baslc Skills/Remedial - Instruction
Salaries of teachers

Total Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction

Bilingual Education - Instruction
Salaries of teachers

Total Bllingual Education - Instruction

Exhibit C-1

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Genersl Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actua| Fina) to Actuat

$ 2996899 § - 2,996,899 3,099,011 $ 102,112
- - - 9,207 9,207

100 (100) - 1,521 1,521

100 (100) - 17,983 17,983

12,674 200 12874 130,404 117,530
3.009,773 - 3.009.773 3.258,126 248,353
193,173 - 193,173 193,173 -
182,606 - 182,606 182,606 -
4,452,104 - 4,452,104 4,452,104 -
105,269 - 105,269 105,269 -
758,309 - 758,309 758,309 -
65,000 - 65,000 189,349 124,349

- - - 5,928 5928

- - - 622 622

- - - 259,215 269,215

- - - 986,743 986,743

- - - 223,578 223,578

5,756,461 - 5,756,461 7,356,896 1.600,435
22,220 - 22,220 10,006 (12,214)
19,985 - 19,985 36,513 16,528
42,205 - 42,205 46,519 4,314
8.808.439 - 8,808,439 10,661,541 1.853,102
146,649 {17,700) 128,949 122,971 5,978

53,812 (53.812) -

549,883 111,900 661,783 649,165 12,618
542,634 (101,500} 441134 432,052 9,082
3.000 4,250 7.250 7,213 37

3,000 {3,000) - - -
277,355 57,820 335175 328,305 6,870
40,000 (36,450} 3,550 3,500 50
60,000 5,450 65,450 65,389 61
40,000 (2,100} 37,900 36,780 1,120
70,000 74,700 144,700 138,083 6,617
35,000 (12,700} 22,300 21,842 458

6,000 (6.000) - - -
1,827,333 20,858 1,848,191 1,805,300 42,891
127,202 25,000 152,202 151,647 555

- 6,901 6,901 6,900 1

1,000 (1,000 - - -
128,202 30,901 159.103 158,547 556
195,529 5,489 201,018 198,229 2,789

- 5,944 5,944 5,944 -

3.800 - 3.800 220 ,580
199,329 11,433 210.762 204,393 369
327,531 42,334 369.865 362,940 ,925
39,921 41,869 81,790 81,782 8
39.921 41,869 81,790 81,782 8
99,200 (45,000) 54.200 53,639 561
99,200 (45,000) 54.200 53,639 561




School Sp d C 1 |
Salaries
Purchased Services (300-500) Series
Supplies and Materials

Other Objects
Total School Sp d Co |
School-Spon. Athletics - Instruction
Salaries

Supplies and materials
Total S8chool-Spon. Athlstics - Instruction

Total Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures - instruction:
Tuition to other LEAs within the state-regular
Tuition to other LEAs within the state - special
Tuition to County Voc. School Dist-regular
Tuition to CSSD & Reg. Day Schools
Tuition to private schools for the disabled - Within stata
Tuition - State Facilities
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:
Undist. Expand. - Attand & Social Work
Salaries

! and ical services
Toial Undistributed Expenditures - Attend & Soclal Work
Undist. Expend. - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased professional and technical services
Supplies and materials
Other objects
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services
Undist. Expend. - Speech Sarvices
Salaries
Purchased pi ional - educational services
Supplies and materials
Total Undist. Expend.-Speech Srvs

Undist. Expand. - Other Support Services - Students - Extraordinary Services

Salaries

P d profe | - educational services
Total Undist. Expend ~Othr Sprt Srvcs Students-Extrsordinary Srves
Undist. Expend.- Other Support Services Students-Regular

Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants

Purchased professional - educational services
Total Undist. Expsnd - Other Support Services - Students-Regular
Undist. Expend. - Other Support Services - Students-Specia)

Salaries of other professional staff

Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants

Purchased 13l - educati services

Other purchased professional services

Supplies and materials

Other objects
Total Undist. Expend. Other Support sgrvlen 8mdanh~8poclnl
Undist. E: d of l

Salanes of superwsnr of instruction

Salaries of other professional staff

Salaries of secretarial and clerical assist.

Other salaries

Other purchased professional and technical services

Supplies and materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Improvement of Instruction Services
Undist. Expend. - Educational Media Services/School Library

Purchased professional and technical services

Other purchased services (400-500 series)

Supplies and materials

Other objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Educations) Media Services/School Library
Undlc!. Expend. - Instruction Staff Trnlnlng Services

hased profi al and ical services

Olher purchased services (400-500 series)

Total Undist. Expend. - Instruction Staff Training Services

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit C-1

Original Budget Finat Varlance

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 10,000 - 10,000 $ 4,398 5,602
3,000 - 3,000 2972 28
13,000 - 13,000 7,370 5,630
5,000 - 5,000 4,852 148
4,000 - 4,000 2,134 1,866
9,000 - 9,000 6,986 2,014
2,315,985 60,061 2,376,046 2,318,017 58,029
1,078,120 16,000 1,094,120 1,084,088 10,032
549,437 (162,722} 386,715 386,705 10
190,111 11,200 201,311 201,245 66
1,220,568 206,423 1,426,991 1,363,598 63,393
139,496 610 140,106 131,211 8,895
14,227 {11,200) 3,027 - 3,027
3.191,959 60,311 3.252.270 3,166,847 85,423
33,443 6,555 39,998 39,995 3
2,000 2410 4.410 4.408 2
35,443 8,965 44,408 44,403 5
93,384 1,532 94,916 94,914 2
6,500 43,081 49,581 49,581 -
2,500 1,450 3,950 3,897 53
500 - 500 500 -
102,884 46,063 148,947 148,892 55
70,498 500 70,998 70,978 20
110,000 1,003 111,003 111,002 1
2,000 (1,503) 497 212 285
182,498 - 182.498 182,192 306
21,323 - 21,323 20,316 1,007
8,000 - 8,000 - 8.000
29,323 - 29,323 20,316 9,007
16,013 150 16,163 16,154 9
7,500 220 7.720 5,774 1,946
23,513 370 23,883 21,928 1,955
188,100 (15,911) 172,189 171,402 787
25,916 - 25,916 25,916 -
40,000 (32,955) 7,045 254 6,791
47,587 (38,110) 9,477 149 9,328
2,800 2,500 5,300 5274 26
1,780 720 2,500 2,500 -
306,183 (83,756) 222,427 205,495 16,932
195,402 (605) 194,797 194,796 1
8,000 60 8,060 7,943 117
2,500 125 2,625 2476 149
6,000 - 6,000 5,932 68
- 5,500 5,500 5,496 4
2,600 (2,480) 120 i A 9
214,502 2,600 217,102 216,754 348
1,420 {1,400) 20 - 20
1,500 (856) 644 - 644
1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
4,920 (2,256) 2,664 - 2,664
1,000 (150) 850 - 850
18,000 1,750 19,750 19,674 76
19.000 1,600 20,600 19,674 926
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Undist Expend. - Support Service - General Administration
Salaries
Legal services
Audit fees
Other purchased professional services
Purchased technical services
Communications/Telephone - Bus
Trave! - All Other
BOE other purchased prof. svc,
Other purchased services (400-500 series)
General supplies
BOE membership dues and fees
Miscellaneous expenditures
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Service - General Administration
Undist. Expend. - Support Service - School Administration
faries of and clerical assi
Supplies and materials
Other objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Service - School Administration
Undist. Expend. - Cantral Services
Salaries
Purchased technical services
Misc. Pur Serv (400-500 series)
Supplies and matenals
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Tata) Undist. Expend. - Central Servicas
Undist. Expend. - Admin. Info. Technology
Purchased technical services
Total Undist. Expend - Admin. Info. Technology
Undist. Expand. - Required Maintenance for School Facllities
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services
General supplies
Total Undist. Expend. - Allowed Malntenance for School Facilities
Undist. Expend. - Other Operation & Malntenance of Plant
Salaries - Custodians
Salanes of Non-Instructional Aides
P d professional and technical services
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services - up keep
Rental of land and building other than lease
Other purchased property services
Insurance
Miscellaneous purchased services
General supplles
Energy (Heat and Electricity}
Other objects
Energy (Natural Gas}
Total Undist. Expend., - Other Operation & Maintenance Of Plant
Undist. Expend. - Security
Salaries
Tatal Undist. Expend. - Security
Undist. Expsnd. - Student Transportation Services
ies for pupil P { home and school)-Special
Salaries for pupil trans. (other than between home and school}
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services
Lease purchase payments - School buses
Contract services -{between home and school)}-Vendor
Contract services (other than between home & school) - Vendors
Contract services -(between home and school)-Joint
Contract services - (special education students) - Vendors

Contract servi {special education students)-Joint

Contract services-(regular students)ESC's & CTSA’s

Contract servi ial education students)-ESC's & CTSA's
Ald in lieu of payments

Other Objects

Miscellaneous expenditures
Total Undist, Expend. - Student Transportation Services

UNALLOCATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Group Insurance
Social security contributions
Other retirement contributions - PERS
Other retirement contributions - ERIP
Other retirement contributions - Regular
Ui | C i
Workmen's compensation
Health benefits
Tuition reimbursement
Other employee benefits

TOTAL UNALLOCATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Exhibit C-1

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Original Budget Final Variance
Budpget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 176,588 § - 176,588 172,822 $ 3,766
27,000 (235) 26,765 11,705 15,060
20,000 - 20,000 18,200 1,800
4,000 835 4,835 4,835 -
2,000 - 2,000 700 1,300
6,000 - 6,000 5,978 22
2,100 2,100 2,048 52
1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
5,000 - 5,000 1127 3.873
4,000 - 4,000 3,384 616
3,000 5.200 8,200 8177 23
7,000 (4,000) 3.000 250 2.750
255,588 3,900 259,488 229,226 30,262
29,441 (944) 28,497 26,173 2,324
3,500 (2,400) 1,100 785 315
500 - 500 500 -
33,441 (3.344) 30.097 27,458 2,639
110,438 3,900 114,338 114,037 301
9,000 (3,350) 5,650 5,627 23
4,000 {(4,000) - - -
4,000 {1,350) 2,650 2,613 37
3,200 {3,000) 200 67 133
130,638 {(7.800) 122 838 122,344 494
12,000 13,200 25.200 24,619 581
12,000 13,200 25,200 24.619 581
120,000 (52,850) 67,150 61,891 5,259
35,000 4,500 39,500 35,277 4,223
155,000 (48.350) 106,650 97,168 9,482
121,159 43,650 164,809 160,726 4,083
25,000 19,475 44,475 41,837 2,638
46,000 24,100 70,100 70,021 79
18,000 (17,375) 625 625 -
4,000 (2,000) 2,000 1,687 313
56,701 {55,800) 901 - 901
7.000 40,900 47,900 45719 2,181
6,000 {2,000) 4,000 1,598 2,402
81,250 (3,400) 77.850 73,593 4,257
5,000 (3,000) 2,000 214 1,786
76,250 (42,310) 33,940 29.515 4,425
446,360 2,240 448.600 425,535 23,065
55,896 - 55,896 55,865 31
55,896 - 55,896 55,865 3
37,642 {150) 37,492 30,595 6,897
25,286 150 25436 25,412 24
- 10,000 10,000 9,846 154
40,499 - 40,498 33,708 6,791
10,000 {9,500) 500 - 500
10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000
18,492 64,900 83,392 83,358 34
77,922 {45,326) 32,596 - 32,596
220,000 {49,604) 170,396 133,570 36,826
40,000 (8,900) 31,100 25,236 5,864
6,000 - 6,000 212 5,788
485,841 (38,430) 447411 341,937 105.474
46,268 (37.000) 9,268 8,994 274
84,000 6,405 90,405 90,403 2
80,000 26,100 106,100 106,051 49
1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
25,000 (8,600) 16,400 16,398 2
51,425 {12,900) 38,525 38,504 21
815,463 (13,480) 801,983 641,449 160,534
30,000 {29,025) 975 - 975
- 54,500 54,500 53,277 1,223
1.133.156 (14.000) 1,119,156 955,076 164,080
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ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS
On-behalf TPAF LTDI {(non-budgeted}
On-behalf TPAF OPEB (post retirement med) (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-budgeted)
TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES

INTEREST EARNED ON MAINTENANCE RESERVE
Interest eared on maintenance reserve
TOTAL INTEREST EARNED ON MAINTENANCE RESERVE

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Interest
Equipment
Undistributed:
Undistributed expenditures - Non-Instructional equip.
Undistributed expenditures - Operation & maint. of plant services
‘Tatal Equipment
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Architectural/Engineering Services
Land and improvements
Construction services
Other Purchases Prof. & Tech Services
Totat Facllities Acquisition and Construction Services
Capital reserve - Transfer to
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

Transfer of funds to charter schools
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Transfer out- capital projects
Total Other Financing Sources:

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balancs, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Capital reserve
Maintenance reserve
Tuition reserve
Excess surplus - Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Excess surplus - Current year
Assigned Fund Balance:
Year-end encumbrances
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconcillation to governmental funds stateaments (QAAP)
Fund balance per govemmental funds (Budgetary)
Last state ald payment not recognized on GAAP basis
Fund balance per governmental funds (GAAP) - B-1

Fund balance per governmental funds (QAAP) - B-1

Exhibit C-1

BEVERLY CITY 8CHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Original Budpet Final Varlance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ - - -3 622 (622)
- - - 259,215 {259,215)
- - - 986,743 (986,743)
- - - 223 578 (223,578)
. - - 1,470,158 (1.470,158)
1,133,156 {14,000} 1,119,156 2425234 (1,306.,078)
6,818,145 (58,687) 6,759,458 7,775,887 (1,016,429)
100 (100). - - .
100 {100) - - N
9,134,230 1.274 9,135,504 10.093,904 {958,400)
4,000 9,500 13,500 13,403 97
4,000 9,500 13,500 13.403 97
- 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
764,000 (110,500) 653,500 45,888 607,612
36,000 10,500 46,500 46,500 -
800,000 - 800.000 92,388 707,612
100 (100) - - -
804,100 9,400 813,500 105,791 707,709
10,674 (10,674) - - -
9.949,004 - 9,949,004 10,199,695 (250,691)
{1,140,565) - (1.140,565) 461,846 1,602.411
- - - (800,000) 800,000
- - - (800,000) 800,000
{1.140,565) - (1,140,565) (338,154) 2,402,411
3,942,727 - 3,942,727 3,942,727 -
$ 2,802,162 _$ - 2!802.162 $ 3.604,573 2'4025‘” 1
2,187,957
218,981
331,000
194,869
112,630
178,859
380,277
3,604,573
(562,451)
3.042,122
$ 3,042,122
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REVENUES
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Instruction:
Salaries of teachers
Other salaries for instruction
Purchased professional services
General supplies
Tuition
Other Objects

Total Instruction
Support services:

Salaries of program director
Personal services

Purchased professional - educational services

Other purchased professional services
Purchased technical services
Employee Benefits

Miscellaneous purchased services (400-500 series)

Miscellaneous expenditures
Student activities
Supplies & materials

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
Instructional equipment

Total facllities acquisition and const. serv.

Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in from general fund
Contribution to whole school reform

Total outflows

Excess (deficlency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures

Fund Batance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation:
Restricted:
Student Activities
Total Fund Balance

Note 1 - Not required to budget for these funds.

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit C-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ - $ - - 4,085 $ 4,085
- - - 755,079 755,079
970,446 1,095.877 2,066,323 1,301,566 (764,757)
970,446 1,095,877 2,066,323 2,060,730 {5.593)
359,490 265,192 624,682 624,682 -
87,410 - 87,410 87,410 -
14,669 3,840 18,509 18,509 -
3,271 3,023 6,294 6,294 -
100,784 27,340 128,124 128,124 -
- 4,678 4,678 - 4,678
565,624 304,073 869,697 865,019 4,678
252,025 127,305 379,330 379,330 -
8,571 48,144 56,715 56,715 -
144,226 138,961 283,187 278,187 5,000
- - - 4,857 (4,857) Note 1
404,822 314,410 719,232 719,089 143
- 477,394 477,394 477,394 -
- 477,394 477,394 477,394 -
970,446 1,095,877 2,066,323 2,061,502 4,821
970,446 1,095,877 2,066,323 2,061,502 4,821
$ - $ - - (772) % (772)
9,491
8,719
8,719
8,719
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation
Note to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General
Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-1] $ 10,661,541 [C-2]
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized. -

TPAF pension payments completely funded by the State of New Jersey
are not included on the GAAP statements. (986,743)

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized
for GAAP statements until the subsequent year (562,451)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current
year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes 431,741

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2] $ 9,544,088 [B-2]

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the [C-1] $ 10,199,695 [C-2)
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP

TPAF pension payments completely funded by the State of New Jersey
are not included on the GAAP statements. (986,743)

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes. -

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds [B-2] $ 9212952 [B-2]
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Exhibit C-3

Special
Revenue
Fund

$ 2,060,730

5206070

$ 2,061,502

$ 2,061,502



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Il
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State's proportion of the OPEB liability associated with the District

Service cost
Interest cost
Changes of benefit terms
Di b and actual

Changes in assumptions
Member contributiens
Gross benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB Hability
State’s Total OPEB liability - beginning
State’s Total OPEB liability - ending

District’s covered employee payroll

Total State's OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payro!l

* The is p to lllustrate the

Exhibit M-1

to show

However, untit a full 10-year trend Is complled governments should present information

for those years for which information is available.
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schadule of Changes In the Total OPEB Liablilty and Related Ratios
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
(Unaudited)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*®
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
536,262 $ 441276 $ 394,562 $ 414,455 $ 809,613 $ 657,872
352,885 406,465 380,572 299,729 307.679 265,286
- - - - (12.624) -
- (977.141) (1.942,385) 3.160.228 (3.580,332) 166.238
1.576.050) [1.097.215) 123,322 2,659,458 11,701 (2.685.373)
941 8,836 7,526 7.682 7,866 8.430
{255.590) {255.668) (253.897) (253.463) (242,365) (262.774)
(933,082) (1.473.447) (1,290,300) 6,288,089 {2.698,462) {1.850.321)
11,967,897 11,034,815 9.561,368 8.271.068 14.559.157 11.861,695
11,034,815 3 9,561,368 $ 8,271,068 $ 14,559,157 $ 11,860.695 $ 10,010,374
3177000 § 3,379,568 - 3654480 § 3720150 $ 3702150 § 4,382,839
347% 283% 226% IN% 320% 228%
for 10 years,



Beverly City School District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Part |l

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Changes in Benefit Terms - None.

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 7.00% as of June 30, 2021, to
7.00% as of June 30, 2022.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Changes in Benefit Terms - None.

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 7.00% as of June 30, 2021, to
7.00% as of June 30, 2022.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan (OPEB)

Changes in Benefit Terms - None.

Changes in Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 2.16% as of June 30, 2021, to
3.54% as of June 30, 2022,
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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D. School Based Budget Schedules
Not Applicable
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E. Special Revenue Fund
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Revenues:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Instruction:

Salaries of teachers
Other salaries/instruction
Purchased professional services
General supplies
Tuition
Textbooks
Miscellaneous expenses

Total instruction

Support services:
Other support services -
students - special:
Other professional
staff salaries

Personal Services
Purchased professional services
Other purchased professional
services
Purchased technical services
Employee benefits
Travel
General supplies
Student activities
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other suppont services -
students - speclal
Total support services
Equipment:
Regular programs instruction
Non-instructional equipment

Total equipment

Total expenditures

Excess {deficlency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Revenus Fund

Combining Schedules of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basls
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit E-1

SDA Student IDEA IDEA
Emergent Activitles TITLE Il PRESCHOOL Basic TITLE I
22123 22/23 22/23 22/23 22/23 22123

$ 4085 §$ - $ - 8 - -

8,079 - - - - -
- - 11,715 3,848 128,124 125,106
8,079 4,085 11,715 3,848 128,124 125,106
- - - 3,848 - 82,850

8,079 - - - - -
- - - 3 - 1

- - 128,124 -
8,079 - - 3,848 128,124 82,851

- 11,715 - %
- - - - - 42,255

- 4,857 - - - -
- 4,857 11,715 - - 42,255
- 4,857 11,715 - - 42,255
8,079 4,857 11,715 3,848 128,124 125,106

- (772} - - - -

- 9,491 - - - -

$ - $ 8719 § - $ - $ - -
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BEVERLY CIiTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedules of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ESSER It ESSER Il
ARP Learning ESSER I Mental
ESSER Il Accsleration Summer leaming Health
22/23 22/23 22/23 22123

Exhibit E-1

ARP
ESSER Il
School Day
22/23

Revenues:
Local sources $ - % - 8 - 8 -
State sources - - - -
Federal sources 826,156 45,000 25,096 88,501

36,500

Total revenues 826,156 45,000 25,096 88,501

36,500

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries of teachers 243,974 - 21,000 -
Other salaries/instruction - - - =
Purchased professional services - - -
General supplies - - 1,792 =
Tuition - - - 5
Textbooks - - -
Miscellaneous expenses - - - -

Total instruction 243,974 - 22,792 -

Support services:
Other support services -
students - special:
Other professional
staff salaries - - 2,304 88,501

Personal Services - -
Purchased professional services - 45,000 - -
Other purchased professional
services - - - -
Purchased technical services -
Employee benefits 104,788 - - -
Travel - - - -
General supplies - - - -
Student activities - - - -
Miscellaneous expenses - - - -

36,500

Total other support services -
students - special 104,788 45,000 2,304 88,501

36,500

Total support services 104,788 45,000 2,304 88,501

36,500

Equipment:
Regular programs instruction -
Non-instructional equipment 477,394 - - -

Total equipment 477,394 - - -

Total expenditures 826,156 45,000 25,096 88,501

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures iz = 2 i

Fund Balance, July 1 . - - -

Fund Balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ -
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis

{Continued from prior page)

Revenues:
Local sources
State sources
Federa! sources

Total revenues

Expenditures;
Instruction:

Salaries of teachers
Other salaries/instruction
Purchased professional services
General supplies
Tuition
Textbooks
Miscellaneous expenses

Total Instruction

Support services:
Other support services -
students - special:

Other professional
staff salaries
Personal Services
Purchased professional services
Other purchased professional
services
Purchased technical services
Employee benefits
Travel
General supplies
Student activities
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other support services -
students - special
Total support services
Equipment:
Regular programs instruction
Non-instructional equipment
Total equipment
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit E-1

Preschool Climate
Edu. Aid TITLE IV Change Total
22/23 22123 22/23 2023

$ - 3 - 8 - 8 4,085
740,340 - 6,660 755,079

- 11,520 - 1,301,566
740,340 11,520 6,660 2,060,730
261,490 11,520 - 624,682
87,410 - - 87,410
5,000 - 5,430 18,509

3,271 - 1,230 6,294

- - - 128,124

357,171 11,520 6,660 865,019
252,025 - - 379,330

- - - 56,715

131,144 - - 278,187

- - = 4,857
383,169 - - 719,089
383,169 - - 719,089

- - - 477,394

- - - 477,394

740,340 11,520 6,660 2,061,502
5 - - (772)

- - - 9,491

$ - $ - $ - $ 8,719

a8



Exhibit E-2

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid Expenditures
Preschool - All Programs
Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers $ 261,490 $ 261,490 $ -
Other Salaries for Instruction 87,410 87,410 -
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 5,000 5,000 -
General Supplies 3,271 3,271 -
Total instruction 357,171 357,171 -
Support services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 252,025 252,025 -
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 131,144 131,144 -
Rentals - - -
Other Objects - - -
Total support services 383,169 383,169 -
Facilities acquisition and cont. serv:
Instructional equipment - B E
Noninstructional Equipment - - -
Total Facilities acquisition and cont. serv. - - -
Total Expenditures $ 740,340 $ 740,340 $ -

CALCULATION OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total 2022-23 PreK/ECPA Aid Allocation $ 740,340
Add: Actual PreK/ECPA Aid Carryover June 30, 2021 -
Add: Budgeted Transfer From General Fund

Total Funds Available for 2022-23 Budget 740,340

Less: 2020-21 Budgeted PreK/ECPA (Including
prior year budgeted carryover) 740,340

Available & Unbudgeted Funds as of June 30, 2023 -

Add: June 30, 2022 Unexpended PreK Aid -

2023 - Actual Carryover - PreK Aid $ -

2022-23 PreK Aid Carryover Budgeted in 2024-FY  § -
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F. Capital Projects Fund
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Project Title/Issue

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revised
Budgetary
Approval Date Appropriations

HVAC Replacement

Totals

04/22/22 $ 1,460,750

S 150750,

91

Exhibit F-1

GAAP
Expenditures to Date Unexpended
Prior Current Appropriations
Years Year June 30, 2023
- s 67,142 $ 1,393,608
- $ 67,142 $ 1,393,608




Exhibit F-2

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - Grant $ -
Bond proceeds and transfers -
Capital lease proceeds -
Transfer from General Fund 800,000

Total revenues 800,000

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services -
Construction services 67,142

Supplies -
Total expenditures 67,142
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 732,858

Fund balance - beginning -

Fund balance - ending $ 732,858
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Exhibit F-2a

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
HVAC REPLACEMENT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SSB-VEEVR Grant $ - $ 67,142 $ 67,142 $ 660,750

Bond proceeds and transfers - - - -

Transfer from capital reserve - 800,000 800,000 800,000

Total revenues - 867,142 867,142 1,460,750

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased prof. and technical services - - -
Construction services - 67,142 67,142 660,750
Supplies - - - -
Total expenditures - 67,142 67,142 660,750

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 800,000 - § 800,000 $ 800,000

Additional project information:

Project Number SP 0380-025-14-1003-G04
Grant Date 4/22/2022

Bond Authorization Date N/A

Bonds Authorized $ -

Bonds Issued -

Original Authorized Cost 1,460,750

Additional Authorized Cost -

Revised Authorized Cost 1,460,750

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage Completion 10%
Original target completion date 2024
Revised target completion date 2024
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G. Proprietary Funds
See B-4 through B-6
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H. Fiduciary Funds
Not Applicable
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I. Long-Term Debt
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REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Interest income
State Sources:
Debt Service Aid Type i
Debt Service Aid Type |

Total - State Sources
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Regular Debt Service:

Interest
Redemption of Principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit I-3

Variance
Original Budget Final Positive (Negative)
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 86,894 $ - 86,894 $ 86,894 -
86,894 - 86,894 86,894 -
16,894 - 16,894 16,894 -
70,000 - 70,000 70,000 -
86,894 - 86,894 86,894 -
86,894 - 86,894 86,894 -
3 — 3 - - 3 - -
$ - 8 - - 8 - -

a8
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Beverly City School District
Statistical Section

Contents
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help
the reader understand how the district's financial

performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the
reader assess the district's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the
reader assess the affordability of the district's
current levels of outstanding debt and the district's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the district's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure
data to help the reader understand how the
information in the district's financial report relates to

the services the district provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these

schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive financial

reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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Exhibit J-6
BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
UNAUDITED
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Special
Interest on Transportation Revenue Annual
Investments Tuition Fees Interfund Refunds Miscellaneous Totals
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,
2014 1,889 - - - 3,17 37,486 42,546
2015 1,686 - - - 3,17 22,418 27,275
2016 2,485 - - - - 15,209 17,694
2017 2,494 - - - - 149,475 151,969
2018 2,687 - - - - 141,824 144,511
2019 4,052 - - - - 108,337 112,389
2020 18,430 - - - - 67,544 85,974
2021 6,538 - - - - 19,796 26,334
2022 3,200 - - - - 92,107 95,307
2023 28,711 - - - - 130,404 159,115

Source: District records
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Beverly City

School District Direct Rate

Local School
Fiscal Year
Ended June 30,
2014 2.288
2015 2.425
2016 2.430
2017 2.445
2018 2.470
2019 2470
2020 2.618
2021 2.723
2022 2.864
2023 0.000

Source: Municipal Tax Collector

R = Reevaluation

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED

(rate per $100 of assessed value)

Overlapping Rates

Exhibit J-7

Total Direct and

City Of Burlington County Overlapping Tax

Beverly County Open Space Fire District Rate
1.406 0.356 0.015 0.119 4.184
1.445 0.354 0.038 0.127 4.389
1.472 0.360 0.039 0.138 4.439
1.507 0.371 0.041 0.138 4.502
1.531 0.358 0.026 0.141 4.526
1.531 0.358 0.058 0.141 4.558
1.608 0.359 0.021 0.156 4.762
1.645 0.379 0.021 0.161 4.929
1.777 0.382 0.027 0.182 5.232
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
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Exhibit J-9

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of

the Levy Collections in
Year Ended Taxes Levied for Current Tax Percentage of Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal Year Collections Levy Years

2014 2,719,959 2,719,959 100.00% -
2015 2,768,851 2,768,851 100.00% -
2016 2,909,868 2,909,868 100.00% -
2017 2,925,115 2,925,115 100.00% -
2018 2,929,015 2,956,274 100.00% -
2019 2,956,274 3,035,626 100.00% -
2020 3,035,626 3,125,946 100.00% -
2021 3,125,946 3,221,696 100.00% -
2022 3,221,696 3,221,696 100.00% -
2023 3,185,905 3,185,905 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School
Taxes (A4F form)

109



Exhibit J-10

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED
Business-
Governmental Activities Type Activities
Fiscal Year General Percentage of
Ended June Obligation Certificates of Personal
30, Bonds Participation Capital Leases  Total District income Per Capita

2014 $ - $ - $ - $ - n/a -
2015 1,031,000 - - 1,031,000 1844% 407.19
2016 980,000 - - 980,000 1702% 389.51
2017 925,000 - - 925,000 1561% 370.15
2018 865,000 - - 865,000 1415% 347.67
2019 805,000 - - 805,000 1267% 323.81
2020 745,000 - - 745,000 1109% 299.80
2021 680,000 - - 680,000 978% 27419
2022 615,000 - - 615,000 N/A 246.89

2023 545,000 - - 545,000 N/A 218.79
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Percentage of

Exhibit J-11

Fiscal Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended June Obligation Bonded Debt Value ® of
30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita :
2014 - - - 0.0000% -
2015 1,031,000 - 1,031,000 0.8740% 407.19
2016 980,000 - 980,000 0.8635% 389.51
2017 925,000 - 925,000 0.7856% 370.15
2018 865,000 - 865,000 0.7109% 347.67
2019 805,000 - 805,000 0.6480% 323.81
2020 745,000 - 745,000 0.5896% 299.80
2021 680,000 - 680,000 0.5464% 274.19
2022 615,000 - 615,000 0.4941% 246.89
2023 545,000 - 545,000 0.4379% 218.79
Notes: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

2 See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2023

Exhibit J-12

UNAUDITED

Estimated

Percentage  Estimated Share of
Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable ® Overlapping Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

County of Burlington 5 - 0.000% $ -

Subtotal, overlapping debt -
Total direct and overlapping debt $ -

Sources: Burlington County 2008 Abstract of Ratables, Beverly City, County of Burlington
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
UNAUDITED

Burlington County Per
Capita Personal

Year Population ® Income © Unemployment Rate °
2014 2,532 53,572 9.7%
2015 2,516 55,925 7.8%
2016 2,499 57,583 6.6%
2017 2,488 59,271 6.1%
2018 2,486 61,140 5.7%
2019 2,485 63,528 4.7%
2020 2,480 67,154 11.1%
2021 2,491 69,496 6.0%
2022 2,507 - 3.9%
2023 - - 0.0%

Source:

* 2010 Census

Exhibit J-14

? Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

® Personal income estimated
©Per capita information provided by the US Department of Commerce, Bureau of

Economic Analysis.

d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Employers,

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Exhibit J-15

UNAUDITED
2023 2014
Percentage
of Total Percentage of

Rank Municipal Rank Total Municipal
Employer Employees [Optional] Employment Employees [Optional] Employment
Information

not
available
- 0.00% - 0.00%

Source:
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Fulk-time

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit J-18

District Employeea by F lon/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
UNAUDITED
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Functior/Program
Instruction
Regular 19.0 18.0 18.0 20.0 200 20.0 200 200 23.0 23.0
Special education 5.0 5.0 5.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 7.0 7.0
Other special education 5.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
Support Services:
Student & instruction related services 1.5 12.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 22.0 22,0
School Administrative Services 1.5 1.5 1.5 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
General administration 45 4.5 45 4.5 45 5.0 5.0 5.0 2.0 2.0
Plant operations and maintenance 25 25 25 25 25 20 2.0 20 20 20
Pupil transportation - - - - - 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5
Business & Other support services 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 6.2 6.2 6.2 1.5 1.5
Total 54.0 54.5 54.5 58.0 58.0 £3.2 63.2 63.2 64.0 64.0
_— ———— e

Source: District Personnef Records

* GASB requires that ten years of data be pi
in current year only the years above need to be presented. Each year

hereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years of
data is presented.

116




'(sys) Aewiwng JajsiBay [00UDS 8y} WoJ) pauleiqo ale sauepuane Aiep abeseae pue juswijolua Ajlep ebelaay
"Jels pejedliliad Jo syusjeainba awg-jing Ajuo sapnpoul yes Buiyoes)
-Aepino [endea pue aoines jqap ss9| sainypuadxs |ejo) |lenbs sainypuadxe Bunesado

Spl10J21 PUISI]  :§82IN0S

%8E'68 %16C 0'€0e 0'6€E 1:6'6 00°'v€ %L6°ELL 8€S'LE 692'169°0L 6€€E €202
%G 1'88 %LEE £°062 y'62¢ L:L'6 00°vE %19°0C 1L9'L2 £LL'eve's vee 2202
%L6°'L6 %vv0 [A 14 8'8LE €901 00°'0¢ %V6°6L 6l1S'L2 550'916'8 vee Leog
%S6°'€6 %SL'E 2'86¢ VLLE 1:9°0L 00°0€ %20’ L1 oLv'se LPL'vL0'8 LLE 0coz
%09'v6 %18y 8'06¢C P'LOE [RYA] 00°0¢ %L8'8 6L6'vC 225'e65'L voe 6102
%6156 %9p'€- c'6Le £'€62 156 00°LE %6€°L £96'22 859'£66'9 S0e 8102
%EL V6 %92°€ 8°/8¢C 8'€0E 1:8°6 00'LE %S8°L- pog’Le 059'€9¥'9 G6¢ L102
%V1'S6 %8L°2- 6'6LC Z'v62 [R]8 00'81 %01 955°22 96L'€9S'9 162 9102
%20'v6 %ey' ¥ S'v8C 920¢ [R=N1]1 0062 %90°S 086°22 622'6LL'9 S6¢ SLo2
%8S €6 %16°G- (A Y24 8'68¢ 166 00'6C %90°S £vL'Ce €62'60L'9 S6¢ yioz
abejuadsag juswijoiuly 5 (vav) , (3av) Aeyuaws|3 TS abueyn ndngd & S2anypuadx3y juauljosuy JeaA [eoasi4
aduepuayy uepnls Ajeq abesany aouepusily juawyjjouy oney Jayoea | /idng Buiyoeat abejuadsag 13d 1s0Q Bunesado
ur abueyd 9% Aleq ebelany Aeq abessay
a3LianvynNn
SIBOA |B3S|4 US) 158
sayispels Bupesedo

L1-r yquxg

10141810 TOOHIS ALID ATH3A3E



8Ll

9210 oMo 1oUISI] (enog

| = Aieyuswsig
¢¢0¢ 0€ 3unf 1e SjooydS Jo JequinN

6€€ pee vee LLE Y0€E S0€ S6¢ 162 S6¢ S6¢ uswijoiug
98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 98¢ 982 98¢ 98¢ (swwapmis) Aioede)
ZL1'se [49%:1 [44%: ZLL'8E ZLL'8E FARR: ;> CLL'8E (4981 (4% > TLL'8E 1994 alenbg
Aieyuswsz ALID ATHIAIE
[SEUETEE]
BupiIng WMmsia
€202 [£4174 X414 0202 6102 8102 L102 9L02 S102 144174
a3alianvnn

8L- ¥awx3

SJBOA [BIS]4 UB] 1587
uoeuuoju; Buipiing jooyos
1OIHLS1A TOOHIS ALID ATH3A3E



BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Required Maintenance

Last Ten Fiscal Years

UNAUDITED

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-xxx

Exhibit J-19

Beverly City
Elementary
* School Facilities School Total
Project # (s)

2014 70,171 70,171
2015 66,132 66,132
2016 69,084 69,084
2017 68,733 68,733
2018 89,143 89,143
2019 73,577 73,577
2020 49,757 49,757
2021 101,287 101,287
2022 85,098 85,098
2023 97,168 97,168
Total School Facilities $ 770,150 $ 770,150

School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-1.3)

Source: District records
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Commercial package policy - NJSIG
Building, Contents

Extra expense
Valuable papers

Liability (General & Auto )
Automobile Liability
Crime

Student Accident - Bollinger

School board legal liability - NJSIG

Worker's compensation - NJSIG

BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2023
UNAUDITED

(Blanket Aggregate)

Statutory Plus Supplement

Public Official Bonds - Selective Insurance Company:

Treasurer of School Monies
Board Secretary/Business Administration

Cyber Insurnace - NJSIG
Pollution Liability - NJSIG

Pollution (Mold)
Source: District Records
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Exhibit J-20

Coverage Deductible
8,541,428 $ 5,000
50,000,000 5,000
10,000,000 5,000
31,000,000 -
31,000,000 -
250,000 1,000
1,000,000 -
31,000,000 5,000
3,000,000 -
250,000
175,000
2,000,000 Variuos
1,000,000 50,000
1,000,000 10,000



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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12 Lexington Avenue 21 Jennings Road

r A NN Toms River, NJ 08753 M hawkin, NJ 08050
JUMP, PERRY AND COMPANY, LLP g 0803
Certified Public Accountants F:(732) 505-8307 F: (609) 978-9515

wwwjumpcepa.com

K-1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Beverly City School District

County of Burlington

Beverly, New Jersey 08010

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Beverly City School
District in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise of
the Beverly City School District basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 25, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Beverly City
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Beverly City School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Beverly City School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the School District's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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K-1

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Beverly City School District's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey in
considering the School District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jump, Perry and Company, L.L.P.
Toms River, New Jersey

Kam‘%yJ:)Perry, Partner

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS 20CS00226400

Toms River, New Jersey
October 25, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Beverly City School District

County of Burlington

Beverly, New Jersey 08010

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Beverly City School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 that could have a direct and material effect on each of Beverly City School District's major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Beverly City School District's
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Beverly City School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and
the audit requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and the New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Beverly City School District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Beverly City School District's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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K-2
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Beverly City School District's federal and state programs.

Audiitor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Beverly City School District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Beverly City School
District's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Beverly City School District's,
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Beverly City School District's internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Beverly
City School District's, internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that were not identified

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08,. Accordingly, this
report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

Jump, Perry and Company, L.L.P.
Toms River, New Jersey

Kathryr’Perry, Partner
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS 20CS00226400

Toms River, New Jersey
October 25, 2023
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Beverly City School District
Notes to the Schedules of Awards and Financial Assistance

June 30, 2023

1. General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of award present the activity of all federal and
state awards of the Beverly City School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A)
to the Board's general purpose financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards passed through
other government agencies are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal and state
awards.

2. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund,
which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements.

3. Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements
Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP
basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RS1) are presented for the general fund
and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain
revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for
GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures
have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis
with the exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid
payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For
GAAP purposes payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state
deferral and recording of the one or more June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The
special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes
the one or more state aid June payments in the current budget year, consistent with M.J S.A.
18A:22-4.2.
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Beverly City School District
Notes to Schedules of Awards and Financial Assistance (continued)

June 30, 2023

3. Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(1,117,453) for
the general fund and $- for the special revenue fund. See Exhibit C-3 for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general and special revenue fund.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements
on a GAAP basis as presented below:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 46519 $ 6,239,443 $ 6,285,962
Special Revenue Fund 1,301,566 755,079 2,056,645
Capital Projects Fund - - -
Food Service Fund 242 563 3.053 245.616
Total awards and
financial assistance $__1590,648 $__6.997.575 $__ 8,588,223

4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

5. Other

TPAF Social Security and Post Retirement/Medical Benefits Contributions represent the
amounts reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social security contributions and
Post Retirement/Medical Benefits for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The TPAF post retirement/medical benefits expenditures are not subject to New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08.

6. Indirect Costs

The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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Beverly City School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2023

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? ____yes _X no
2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to general-purpose
financial statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards Section
Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X_no
2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? yes X__none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified opinion
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR section .516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? yes X_no

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Elementary and Secondary Education Cluster:
84.425U American Rescue Plan - Elementary and
Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ARP ESSER)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X _no



Beverly City School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)
June 30, 2023

Section | - Summary of Auditor’'s Results (continued)

State Awards Section
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified Opinion
Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _ no
2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? yes X__none reported
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with NJ OMB
Circular Letter 15-087? yes X _ no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
State Aid-Public Cluster
495-034-5020-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5020-085 Adjustment Aid
495-034-5020-089 Special Education Aid
495-034-5020-084 Security Aid

Section Il - Financial Statements Findings - N/A

Section Il - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs -
N/A
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Beverly City School District
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

June 30, 2023

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings - N/A
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12 Lexington Avenue 21 Jennings Road

JUMP, PERRY AND COMPANY, LLP "Gl Mg oo
Certified Public Accountants I':(732) 505-8307 I':(609) 978 9515

www.jumpcpa.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Beverly City School District

County of Burlington, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted audit standards and Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the
Board of Education of the Beverly City School District in the County of Burlington for the year ended
June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2023.

As part of our audit, we performed procedures required by the New Jersey Department of Education, and
the finding and results thereof are disclosed on the following pages, as listed in the accompanying table
of contents.

This report is intended for the information of the Beverly City School District Board of Education’s
management and the New Jersey Department of Education. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

Jump, Perry and Company, L.L.P.
Toms River, New Jersey

Koty foy

Kathryn Perry, Partner
Public School Accountant
No. CS 20CS00226400

October 25, 2023



ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE

Scope of Audit

The audit covered the financial transactions of the Board Secretary/School Business Administrator and
the Treasurer of School Moneys, the activities of the Board of Education, and the records of the various
funds under the auspices of the Board of Education.

Administrative Practices and Procedures

Insurance

Fire insurance coverage was carried in the amounts as detailed on Exhibit J-20, Insurance Schedule
contained in the school district ACFR.

Official Bonds (N.J/.S.A 18A:17-26, 18A:17-32, 18A:13-13)

Name Position Amount
Brian F. Savage School Accountant $ 175,000
George M. Gahles Business Administrator $ 175,000

There is a Public Employees’ Faithful Performance Blanket Position Bond covering all other employees
with multiple coverage of $175,000.

Our audit procedures included an inquiry and subsequent review of health benefit data required per
N.J.S.A/18A:16-13.3 (Chapter 44) submitted for the year on audit. The Chapter 44 summary report was
reviewed for reasonableness and timeliness.

The data submitted did include all health benefit plans offered by the school district.

The school district data certification was completed by the chief school administrator. The school district
Chapter 44 data was submitted timely.

If the data certification date reflects submission date later than 60 days after the end of the enroliment
period: The original data submission did not require significant revision due to errors or omissions on the
part of the district.

Tuition Charges

A comparison of tentative tuition charges and actual certified tuition charges was made. Our comparison
revealed that tuition appeared to be charged correctly.

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting

Examination of Claims

An examination of claims paid during the period under review did not indicate any discrepancies with
respect to signatures, certification or supporting documentation.



Payroll Account

The net salaries of all employees of the Board were deposited in the Payroll Account. Employees' payroll
deductions and employer's share of fringe benefits were deposited in the Payroll Agency Account.

All payrolls were approved by the Superintendent and were certified by the President of the Board, the
Business Administrator/Board Secretary, and the Chief School Administrator.

Salary withholdings were promptly remitted to the proper agencies, including health benefits withholding
due to the general fund.

Payrolls were delivered to the treasurer of school moneys with a warrant made to his order for the full
amount of each payroll.

Employee Position Control Roster

A review of the Position Control Roster was made and found that proper and consistent financial
reporting, and that employee benefits are offered only to current employees and their eligible relations.

Reserve for Encumbrances and Accounts Payable

A review of outstanding issued purchase orders was made as of June 30, 2023 for proper classification
of orders as reserve for encumbrances and accounts payable.

Travel
No findings.

Classification of Expenditures

The coding of expenditures was tested for proper classification in accordance with A.J.A.C. 6A:23A-
16.2(f) as part of our test of transactions of randomly selected expenditure items. We also reviewed the
coding of all expenditures included in our compliance and single audit testing procedures. In addition to
randomly selecting a test sample, our sample selection specifically targeted administrative coding
classifications to determine overall reliability and compliance with N.J.A.C.6A:23A-8.3. As a result of the
procedures performed, a transaction error rate of 0.00 percent overall was noted and no additional
procedures were deemed necessary to test the propriety of expenditure classification.

Board Secretary's Records

Our review of the financial and accounting records maintained by the board secretary disclosed the
following items.

No findings.
Treasurer's Records
The following items were noted during our review of the records of the Treasurer.

No findings.



Elementary and Secondary Education Act (E.S.E.A.) as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act
(ESSA)

The E.S.E.A. financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the ACFR. This
section of the ACFR documents the financial position pertaining to projects under the Titles | and VI of
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended and reauthorized.

Other Special Federal and/or State Projects

The district's Special Projects were approved as listed on Schedule K-3 and Schedule K-4 located in the
ACFR.

Our audit of the Federal and State funds on a test basis indicated that obligations and expenditures were
incurred during the fiscal year or project period for which the project was approved.

The financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the ACFR. This section of the
ACFR documents the financial position pertaining to the aforementioned special projects.

T.P.A.F. Reimbursement

Our audit procedures included a test of quarterly reimbursements filed with the Department of Education
for district employees who are members of the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. No exceptions were
noted.

TPAF Reimbursement to the State for Federal Salary Expenditures

The amount of the expenditure charged to the current year's Final Report(s) for all federal awards for the
schoo! district to reimburse the State for the TPAF/FICA payments made by the State on-behalf of the
school district for those employees whose salaries are identified as being paid from federal funds was
made subsequent to the end of the 60 day grant liquidation period required by the Office of Grants
Management. The expenditure was reviewed subsequent to the reimbursement and no exceptions were
noted.

School Purchasing Programs

Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids

N.JS.A. 18A:18A-3 states:

1. When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in the aggregate, does not
exceed in a contract year the total sum of $17,500, the contract may be awarded by a purchasing
agent when so authorized by resolution of the board of education without public advertising for bids
and bidding therefore, except that the board of education may adopt a resolution to set a lower
threshold for the receipt of public bids or the solicitation of competitive quotations. If the purchasing
agent possesses a qualified purchasing agent certificate pursuant to subsection b. of section 9 of
P.L.1971, ¢.198 (C.40A:11-9) the board of education may establish that the bid threshold may be up
to $25,000. Such authorization may be granted for each contract or by a general delegation of the
power to negotiate and award such contracts pursuant to this section.



School Purchasing Programs (Cont'd)
Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids (cont'd)

2. Commencing in the fifth year after the year in which P.L.1999, c.440 takes effect, and every five years
thereafter, the Governor, in consultation with the Department of the Treasury, shall adjust the
threshold amount and the higher threshold amount which the board of education is permitted to
establish as set forth in subsection a. of this section or the threshold amount resulting from any
adjustment under this subsection, in direct proportion to the rise or fall of the index rate as that term is
defined in N.J.S.18A:18A-2, and shall round the adjustment to the nearest $1,000. The Governor
shall notify all local school districts of the adjustment no later than June 1 of every fifth year. The
adjustment shall become effective on July 1 of the year in which it is made.

Any contract made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months,
except that contracts for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection a. of N.J.S.A
18A:18A-5 may be awarded for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months.

N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-4 states, “Every contract for the provision or performance of any goods or services,
the cost of which in the aggregate exceeds the bid threshold, shall be awarded only by resolution of
the board of education to the lowest responsible bidder after public advertising for bids and bidding
therefore, except as is provided otherwise in this chapter or specifically by any other law.”

The bid thresholds in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-2 and 18A:18A-3(a) are $44,000 (with a
Qualified Purchasing Agent) and $32,000 (without a Qualified Purchasing Agent), respectively. The law
regulating bidding for public school student transportation contracts under N.J.S.A. 18A:39-3 is $20,200
for 2022-2023.

The Board of Education has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any category
will exceed the statutory thresholds within the contract year. Where question arises as to whether any
contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the solicitor's opinion should be sought
before a commitment is made.

The results of our examination indicated that no individual payments, contracts, or agreements were
made for the performance of any work or goods or services, in excess of the statutory thresholds where
there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-4.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for "Professional
Services" per N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-5.

The system of records did not provide for an accumulation of purchases for which the school board used
contracts entered into by the State Department of Purchase and Property pursuant to Ch. 114, P.L. 1977,
therefore, the extent of such purchases could not reasonably be ascertained. Our examination did reveal
however, that the following purchases were made through the use of State contracts:

School Supplies
Computers



School Food Service

SFAs were authorized to solicit and award emergency noncompetitive procurements and contracts with
Food Service Management Companies in accordance with 2 CFR 200.320 and N.J.S.A.18A:18A-7. The
SFAs were also authorized to submit contract modifications to their existing Cost Reimbursable or Fixed
Price contracts as necessary to ensure the feeding of all children throughout the age of 18, as well as
persons over 18 with disabilities as defined in the regulations.

SFAs were notified of the requirement to maintain and report separate meal count records and financial
records of all applicable costs incurred in providing meals to all students during the emergency.

The school food service program was not selected as a major federal program. The program
expenditures also exceeded $100,000 in State support. Accordingly, we inquired of school management,
or appropriate school food service personnel, as to whether the SFA had any Child Nutrition Program
reimbursement overclaims or underclaims. No exceptions were noted.

The district utilizes a food service management company (FSMC) and is depositing and expending
program monies in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:17-34, and 19-1 through 19-4.1. Provisions of the
FSMC Cost Reimbursable Fixed Price or NonCompetitive Emergency Procurement contract/addendum
were reviewed and audited. The FSMC contract did not include an operating results provision which
guarantees that the food service program will break even or return a profit.

We also inquired of school management, or appropriate school food service personnel, as to whether the
SFA's expenditures of school food service revenues were limited to allowable direct and indirect costs.
No exceptions were noted.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position (ACFR Schedule B-5) does
separate program and non-program revenue and program and non-program costs of goods sold.

We also inquired of management about the public health emergency procedures/practices that the SFA
instituted to provide meals to all students, maintenance of all applicable production records; meal counts;
noncompetitive procurements; modification of existing contracts and applicable financial records to
document the specific costs applicable to the emergency operations.

Student Body Activities

During our review of the student activity funds, no items were noted.
No findings.

Application for State School Aid (ASSA)

Our audit procedures included a test of information reported on the October 15, 2022 Application for
State School Aid (A.S.S.A.) for on-roll, private schools for the handicapped, low-income and bilingual.
We also performed a review of the district procedures related to its completion. The information on the
A.S.S.A. was compared to the district workpapers with exception. The information that was included on
the workpapers was verified with exceptions. The results of our procedures are presented in the
Schedule of Audited Enroliments.

The district maintained workpapers on the prescribed state forms or their equivalent.

The district has adequate written procedures for the recording of student enroliment data.



Pupil Transportation

Our audit procedures included a test of on roll status reported in the 2021-2022 District Report of
Transported Resident Students (DRTRS). The information that was included on the DRTRS was verified
to the DRTRS Eligibility Summary Report without exception. The results of our procedures are presented
in the Schedule of Audited Enroliments.

Our procedures also included a review of transportation related contracts and purchases. Based on our
review, the district complied with proper bidding procedures and award of contracts. The bid

specifications for the purchase of buses were in compliance with applicable statutes. No exceptions were
noted in our review of transportation related purchases of goods and services.

Facilities and Capital Assets

Our procedure included a review of any transfer of local funds from the general fund or from the capital
reserve account, and awarding of contracts for eligible facilities construction.

Miscellaneous

Testing For Lead Of All Drinking Water In Educational Facilities

The school district adhered to all the requirements of N.J.A.C. 26-1.2 and 12.4 related to the testing for
lead of all drinking water in educational facilities.

The school district submitted the annual Statement of Assurance to the Department of Education,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(g).

Follow-up on Prior Year Findings

N/A

Acknowledgment

We received the complete cooperation of all the officials of the school district and we greatly appreciate
the courtesies extended to the members of the audit team.



NOLLYONQ3 30

QuV0E ALID ATH3A3!

%00°0 %000 %000 %00'0 %000 Jou3 abeiuadsag
- [4 [ € = = - o6l - 061 - - - EVE - £PE s|eoL
- A - - - B < B - - - - - - - - "398 150d 14 "90A 0D
- - - - - N - - - - - - - - - - JenBay - "30A "0D
g 4 [4 € - - N 9¢ 2 9¢ = N : 134 - Ly |eloiang
g 1 I [3 - B - - = B - " - E - S 1ooy2s yBiH - p3 leeds
- - - - - - - v - 148 = - - 8l = 8t 100425 |pPIN - p3 eads
» 1 I l - = - [44 = [£4 - 5 = 62 - 62 Arequawel3 - p3 |epeds
- - - - - - - ¥St - vSl - - - 962 - 962 leogng
. . = - - - - - - - - - - - - - (HO ¥L-L) 'S'H UnPY
- - - 8 2 & = = = - - + A - - - (HD+61) 'S'H Unpy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ajenpern-isod
- " - - " . - » = - - - - - - - anPm]
- - E N - - - N B - . N - - - - usa23
- - - - - = = - - - - - - - - - ual
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - BUIN
- - . . - - - st - st = - - 82 - 8z w613
& & = = = - = oL = oL = = = 0z = 0z usAeg
- - ¥ = 2 : = 9 . 9 - . . 1€ £ 1€ XIS
= = = = = - = Ly = Ll = = o €€ = €€ 8Ald
2 x - - = - = vl : vl - m : 9z = 9 nogy
= = = = = = = [1]8 = oL = . = 61 = 61 say|
. . - . : - - n - m - - - 33 - £ oML
) - - - * ’ ’ SL - st - E - 8z - 14 )
- ; - - - - - Sl = st = - - 62 . 62 uayeBiepury Aeq in4
t; = = . 5 H 3 & i & = - - - - - uaueBiapury Keq jiey
. = - " * = - 14 - 14 - = = (14 - 6% 100ydsasd Aeq find
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - looyasald Aeq jleH
SOUF pByusA  uoued  sjooyss pateys 4 pajeys ing paseyg lind paseyg 3 paleyg lind paieysg Iind
sidwes sidwes -yusA  @eAld oy o noy uo stadedyiop sioug oy uo oY U0
0} se'vsSSvY sisibay sssibay w0y pa1dRAs ssadedyiop V'S'SY
ajdwes Jo pauoday Jad sioug 19d payuap d uo pauoday uo pauoday
PoIqES|Q 10§ SI00YSS SBAId UoRBopiieN, 10} eiduies PIV (000G @i 10} UORsSjddy ¥Z0Z-€202
“Z20¢ v 9360150 30 SV INGWTIOHNNS
S OV TOGHSS SIVIS Bo3 NOILVaTIav “SINSRTYOUNT qIIanY 30 TTaSA0S



S8 S8 SPaaN [epads Yim p3) [epads = ‘BAY deds %000 Jau3 sbessed
69 6'9 € Ued) siuapnis Yd apes) Buipnjox3 JeinBay = (ebeayyy) Bay Bay
— —
69 69 (v weq) siwapms yd apess Buipnpu) senBey = (ebeapn) bay Bay - 201 2oL - 991 991 siejoy
erenojeaey  pewodey - St Sl - (33 3 9 '102 '26dg p3 |epeds
- 4} 48 - 6L 61 £ 10D ‘aHang-uoN
2109 ") - pauodsues |
- 141 1 - x4 €2 v '02 'p3ds- Bey
- 19 19 - 001 ool . "I03 'sjooyas Mang - ‘Boy
013 PAYUAA patsaL soLg pusia Awunod30q
Aasulda 4G SHI¥A
uo pauodey uo pauodey
Uopmodsudil
%00°0 %00" %00°0 %00°0 Jou3 efieysdiad
- 1z 3 - 3 & - I I} - otz oz siei0)
- - - - - - - - - - - ‘38§ 150d 14 ‘90 0D
- - = - - - - - - Jejnbay - 207 *00
- - - - - - - - 8J80 AINJBSMIS Ufes|
- 1 1 - 1 1 - [44 a2 - 65 65 leloang
- - - - - . - st St - 0z 0z ubiH - p3 tepeds
- - - - - - - L 1! - St st SIPPIN - P3 (epsds
- 3 1 - L 3 - 81 8l = 124 (24 Aieeweig - p3 eeds
- 0z 124 - 44 4 - €01 £0L - 151 151 leoans
- - - - - - - - - - - - (U pI-1) 'SHUNPY
- . - - . - - - . - - - (¥O+51) 'S'HUNPY
- - - - - - - - - - ejenpesy-1sod
- 4 z - z z £ € - [4 14 anamL
- - - - - - - - - :0>G_N
L L - L 3 - £ £ S [ uay
L 1 . L 1 - £ £ [ S SUN
- L 1 L 3 - 9 9 6 6 wei3
- 3 1 - L 3 - oL o - sk 5L [T
- € £ - 4 [4 - 4 z - o on xis
- 3 1 - 1 1 - £l €1 - 6L [ anly
- - - - - - - oL o - i [ nogy
- 1 3 - L 1 L L oL oL sauyL
- v [ - S S st SL 4 44 om)
- € € - £ £ oL ol st SL aup
- [4 z z z - 18 1L - ]} oL usyebiepupy Aeq |ing
- - - - - - B - - - - - uayebiapuny Aeq fleH
- - . - - . - : - - tooyasaid Aeq (ind
- - - - - - - - - - . tooyasaid Aeg sleH
SI0U3  Josibay pue si AWooU| WO} T Song  Jesibey pue  siededyopm [ERTE] EIT=T] SWoaU|
eidwes  @00gisal Woy peldes M0f 931 Mo g3 eidwes  uopeanddy wo) patdejes Moy Mo
opayuen  epdwes se siodedyiom se ¥'S'SY opayuap  epdueg se s;adedyiopm S 'V'S'S'Y
Uo pajioday o papoday uo pauodey uo papoday
UORSSBHOA 10§ SUIOOU[ MO dT 1 Wepisey T uopsyep ojeidums GLUOOU) MO WWepISeH
2202 ¥ Y3G0100 30 SV INGWTIOENT

SINIWTIOENT 03LaNV 40 3 NA3HOS



ok

%000 %000 sou3 sbeaniayg

143 rlL ! St St sieoL

- - = - "398 1504 ‘1d 307 0D
R _ = - senBay - "90A ‘0D

[ | . L 1 |e0Nang
= = = - - Y6iH - p3 |eads
. - - - - elppIN - P3 feeds
} b a 1 1 Aiewawa(3 - p3 [erads
£l £l - 48 i eans

v = . - t (HO p1-1) ‘S'HUnpY
= : = - . ('4O+61) "S'H Unpv
1 5 = - - sienpesn-isod

- - - - - ANam),
1 l ¥ L L uaAs3
L L b L 3 uaj
I I 2 9 L BuIN
z z . 4 4 w3
L 3 . L L uansg
1 1 - L 1 s
- - - - - anty
1 1 - 1 L nog
4 [4 - 4 [4 3R
1 L = L L oML
z z - T z sugQ
L 1 - L L ueypebiepuny Aeq 4
- - = = - uapebsapury Aeq jleq
% * + + = looydsald Aeq Iind
- - - - - |ooyasaid Aeq jleH
siou3 JasiBay pue sladedylop s1013 0| EOLET]
ajdwes uopeayddy  woyj papajes M0 LON M07 LON
0} paylapn ojdweg se sjodedhiopy SR YS'SY
uo payoday  uo pauoday
UORRILHOA 10f SRS G1Wo0U| M1 LON d1 uepIsey]
SININTIOUNI G0NV 30 TTNA3HIS

1S
DA



June 30, 2023

Excess Surplus Calculation- Regular Districts N/A to Charter School/Renaissance School Project

Section 1

A. 2% Calculation of Excess Surplus
2022-23 Total General Fund Expenditures per the
ACFR, Ex. C-1
Increased by:
Transfer from Capital Outlay to Capital Projects
Fund
Transfer from Capital Reserve to Capital Projects
Fund
Transfer from General Fund to SRF for PreK-
Regular
Transfer from General Fund to SRF for PreK-
Inclusion
Decreased by:
On-Behalf TPAF Pension & Social Security
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases

Adjusted 2022-23General Fund Expenditures
[(B)+(B1s)-(B2s)]

2% of Adjusted 2022-23General Fund Expenditures
[(B3) times .02]

Enter Greater of (B4) or $250,000

Increased by:  Allowable Adjustment *

Maximum Unassigned/Undesignated-Unreserved
Fund Balance [(B5)+(K)]

Section 2

Total General Fund - Fund Balances @ 6/30/2023

(Per ACFR Budgetary Comparison Schedule C-1)

Decreased by:

Year-end Encumbrances

Legally Restricted — Designated for Subsequent

Year’s Expenditures

Legally Restricted - Excess Surplus — Designated for

Subsequent Year’s Expenditures **

Other Restricted Fund Balances ****

Assigned Fund Balance — Unreserved- Designated
for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures

Total Unassigned Fund Balance

[(C)-(CDH-C2)-(C3)-(CH-(C5)]

Section 3

Restricted Fund Balance — Excess Surplus***
[(U1)—~(M)] If Negative Enter -0

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus as of June 30, 2023
Reserved Excess Surplus — Designated for
Subsequent Year’s Expenditures **

Amount

$ 1470158 (B2a)
$ - (B2b)
3 8,729,537 (B3)
$ 190591 (B4)

$ 250,000 (B5)

$ 130,277 (K)

Amount

$ 3,604,573 (C)
$ - (C)
$ 178,859 (C2)
$ 194,869 (C3)
$ 2,737,938 (C4)
$ (C5)
Amount

I11-4.36

1

Amount

$ 10,199,695 (B)
$ - (Bla)
$ - (B1b)
$ - (Blc)
$ - (B1d)
$ 380.277 (M)
Amount

$ 492,907 (U1)
Amount

$ 112,630 (E)

9 194,869 (C3)



June 30, 2023

Section 3 Amount Amount

Reserved Excess Surplus ***[(E)] $ - (E)

Total Excess Surplus [(C3) + (E)] $__ 30749 (D)
Footnotes:

* Allowable adjustment to expenditures on line K must be detailed as follows. This adjustment line (as
detailed below) is to be utilized when applicable for:

(H) Federal Impact Aid. The passage of P.L.2015, c.46 amended N.J.S.A. 18A:7F41 to permit a
board of education to appropriate federal impact aid funds to establish or supplement a federal
impact aid legal reserve in the general fund. Accordingly, the Federal Impact Aid adjustment to
expenditures is limited to the portion of Federal Impact Aid Section 8002 and Section 8003
received during the fiscal year and recognized as revenue on the General Fund Budgetary
Comparison Schedule, but not transferred to the Federal Impact Aid Reserve — General (8002 or
8003) by board resolution during June 1 to June 30 of the fiscal year under audit. Amounts
transferred to the reserve are captured on line (C4);

() Sale and Lease-back (Refer to the Audit Program Section II, Chapter 10);
(J1) Extraordinary Aid;
(J2) Additional Nonpublic School Transportation Aid;
(J3) Recognized current year School Bus Advertising Revenue; and
(J4) Family Crisis Transportation Aid.
(new) (J5) Supplemental Stabilization Aid received April 2023 & Maintenance of Equity Aid received July 2023

Notes to auditor: Refer to the Audit Program Section II, Chapter 10 for restrictions on the inclusion of
Extraordinary Aid, Family Crisis Transportation Aid, and Additional Nonpublic School Transportation
Aid.

Detail of Allowable Adjustments

Impact Aid $ - (H)
Sale & Lease-back b - (I)
Extraordinary Aid $ 124343 (J1)
Additional Nonpublic School Transportation Aid $ 5928 (J2)
Current Year School Bus Advertising Revenue Recognized $ - (I3
Family Crisis Transportation Aid $ - (J4)
(new) Supplemental Stabilization Aid received April 2023 & $ - (J5)
Maintenance of Equity Aid received July 2023 -
Total Adjustments [(H)Y+(I)+(J1)+(J2)+(13)+(J4) +(05)] | $ 130.277 (K)

** This amount represents the June 30, 2023 Excess Surplus (C3 above) and must be included in the
Audit Summary Line 90031.

**% Amounts must agree to the June 30, 2023 ACFR and must agree to Audit Summary Line 90030.

***x* Amount for Other Restricted Fund Balances must be detailed for each source. Use in the excess
surplus calculation of any legal reserve that is not state mandated or that is not legally imposed by
another type of government, such as the judicial branch of government, must have departmental
approval. District requests should be submitted to the Division of Administration and Finance prior
to September 30.

111-4.37

12



June 30, 2023

Detail of Other Restricted Fund Balance

Statutory restrictions:

Approved unspent separate proposal

Sale/lease-back reserve

Capital reserve

Maintenance reserve

Emergency reserve

Tuition reserve

School Bus Advertising 50% Fuel Offset Reserve — current year
School Bus Advertising 50% Fuel Offset Reserve —prior year
Impact Aid General Fund Reserve (Sections 8002 and 8003)
Impact Aid Capital Fund Reserve (Sections 8007 and 8008)
Other state/government mandated reserve

Reserve for Unemployment Fund

[Other Restricted Fund Balance not noted above]****

2,187,957
218,981

331,000

AlA AR || |A|A|n|n|nn|en

Total Other Restricted Fund Balance $ 2737.98(C4)

The following example illustrates the proper calculation of the 2 percent excess surplus for districts not
required to use school-based budgeting (SBB). Note that the references (a), (b), etc. are for purposes of
this illustration only.

Example:

The school district had total general fund expenditures (from exhibit C-1 of ACFR) of $7,500,000.
Included in the general fund expenditures were “On-Behalf State Aid Payments” (TPAF Pension & Social
Security) of $405,000 and Assets Acquired Under Capital Lease of $182,000. General fund transfers to
other funds not included in the general fund expenditures of the ACFR, but added to the calculation,
Transfer from Capital Outlay to Capital Projects of $60,000; Transfer from Capital Reserve to Capital
Projects (augment SCC/SDA grant) of $12,000; Trans. from General Fund to SRF for Preschool - Regular
of $10,000; and Trans. from General Fund to SRF for Preschool - Inclusion of $5,000. The district
received $2,000 in federal impact aid revenue during 2022-23 and recognized $1,000 of School Bus
Advertising Revenue during 2022-23. The June 30, 2023 general ledger reflects that the district had the
following: $4,900 of year-end “other purposes” encumbrances reported in the “Committed” fund balance
category (GASBS 54); $9,000 legally restricted reported in the “Restricted” fund balance category
(GASBS 54) from an unexpended 2021-22 additional spending proposal required to be
designated/appropriated in the 2023-24 budget; $45,000 reserved June 30, 2022 excess surplus required to
be designated/appropriated in the 2023-24 budget reported in the “Restricted” fund balance category
(GASBS 54); $90,000 unreserved and designated in the 2023-24 budget reported in the “Assigned” fund
balance category (GASBS 54); and $395,000 unreserved/undesignated reported in the “Unassigned” fund
balance category (GASBS 54) prior to calculating June 30, 2023 excess surplus.

2022-23 Total General Fund Expenditures $7,500,000 | (a)
Increased by Applicable Operating transfers: $60,000 | (b)
Transfer from Capital Outlay to Capital Projects 12,000 | (b)
Transfer from Capital Reserve to Capital Projects 10,000 | (b)
Trans. from General Fund to SRF for Preschool 5,000 | (b)
(Regular)
Trans. from General Fund to SRF for Preschool
(Inclusion)
104.38

13



BEVERLY CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AUDIT RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

It is recommended that:

1.

10.

Administrative Practices and Procedures

None

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting

None

School Purchasing Program

None

School Food Service

None

Student Body Activities

None

Application for State School Aid

None

Pupil Transportation

None

Facilities and Capital Assets

None
Miscellaneous
None

Status of Prior Year Findings/Recommendations

There were no prior year audit findings or recommendations.

14



December 13%, 2023

Dr. Elizabeth Giacobbe
Superintendent of Beverly City School
601 Bentley Avenue

Beverly, NJ 08010

Dear Dr. Giacobbe,

This letter is to inform you that | am expecting the birth of my child on March 14, 2024. A statement from my
physician verifying my pregnancy, approximate date of birth, and disability time period will be forthcoming along with
the certification of health care provider paperwork. | am requesting the use of time off in accordance with the Federal
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leading up to the birth of the baby. | am also requesting to use time off in
accordance with the New Jersey Family Leave Act (NJFLA) to care and bond with my newborn child.

| intend to work until February 15th, 2024. Starting February 20", | will use 11 sick days due to disability in
accordance with FMLA. On March 6%, | will no longer have any sick days, and wish to continue my FMLA leave on an
unpaid leave of absence until the birth of my child, due to disability.

Following the birth of my child, in accordance with the NJFLA, | plan to continue my unpaid leave of absence for the
purpose of caring for my newborn child. | intend to use the full 12 weeks of leave, which will begin following the birth
of my child and end on or around June 13t2024. On or around June 14" | wish to be placed on an unpaid leave of
absence through the remainder of the school year.

| intend to apply to the State of New Jersey Insurance Benefits at the beginning of my unpaid leave. After | receive
the necessary paperwork for the BOE office | will then submit these forms for your completion within the timeframe
prescribed by law. Proper notification verifying my intent to retum will be provided.

| am requesting notification from the Board of Education granting these leaves. Thank you for your time and
consideration.

incerely, O(L » Zﬁ@f

Alyssa de la Pena
CC: Board of Education

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010 T (609) 387-2200  F (609) 387-4447  beverlycityschool.org



CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Fundations Club

Club Advisor(s): Heather Farrelly & Frankie DiMedio (Amy Hornbeck will substitute if either teacher can not attend)
Administrative Advisor: Kerri Lawler

Mission: Fundations is an after school program that aims to build a school culture of excitement around
reading. Fundations club will be offered to scholars in 1st through 2nd grade and peer mentors in grades 3-8.
Through a mix of fun activities, kids of all reading levels will improve their skills. The club will run for 8 weeks. During
each session students will have the opportunity to: learn new vocabulary, practice foundational skills in a game based
format & read with peers.

Club Participation Guidelines:
- Applicants in grades 1-2 who meet the school's code of conduct will be accepted as club members.

- Applicants in grades 3-8 who meet the school's code of conduct will be considered as peer mentors.
- Students will be expected to attend regularly, repeated absence will lead to removal from the program.
- Students who do not meet the expectations during the program will be placed on probation or removed.

- Parent/guardian agrees to attend a short orientation meeting the first week of the club

The Club Goals:
- Improve reading speed and accuracy.
- Increase vocabulary and comprehension skills
- Learn how to collaborate in groups.

- Build a robust culture of reading in the school

Grades: 1-2 [Max 5 peer mentors from upper grades)

Maximum Amount of Club Members: 16-20, 1st-2nd grade students & up to five peer mentors from 3rd through 8th
grade, for a total of up to 25 students. The club will be split into two sections based on reading ability.

Interval: 8 Weeks

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010 T (609) 387-2200 F (609) 387-4447  beverlycityschool.org



Meeting day/times:
3:00-4:00

Week 1:
Thursday, January 25th 2024

Week 2:
Thursday, February 1, 2024

Week 3:
Thursday February 8th 2024

Week 4:
Thursday February 15th 2024

Week 5:
Thursday February 22nd 2024

Week 6:
Thursday February 29th 2024

Week 7:
Thursday, March 7th, 2024

Week 8:
Thursday, March 14th 2024

Built in “rain dates” in case of a cancellation.

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Tentative Scheduled Make-Up Week 1:
Thursday, March 21, 2024

Tentative Scheduled Make-Up Week 2:
Thursday, March 28th 2024

Rate: Two Teachers at $40.50/hour

For a total of 20-25 Students and 8 hours
$40.50 x 8 = $324 per teacher

Total: $648

T (609) 387-2200 F (609) 387-4447  beverlycityschool.org



CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STUDENT COUNT

GRADE/TEACHER
PRE-K
Ms. Scarperia 13
Ms. Foglio 13
Ms. Spratt 12
Ms. Farmer 12
KINDERGARTEN
Ms. Costigan 19
Mrs. Rienzi 19
Ms. Kehlenbeck 2
FIRST GRADE
Mrs. Farrelly 14
Mrs. Longstreet 14
Ms. Kehlenbeck 1
SECOND GRADE
Mrs. Maldonado 18
Mr. Vogelei 15
Ms. Kehlenbeck 5
THIRD GRADE
Mrs. McCloskey 16
Ms. DiMedio 18
Mrs. Blythe 1
FOURTH GRADE
Mrs. Miller 10
Ms. Benson 9
Mrs. Blythe 3
FIFTH GRADE HOMEROOM
Mr. Spahr 11
Mrs. Harmon 15
Mrs. Blythe 3
SIXTH GRADE HOMEROOM
6t Grade Blue Ms. Buggs 16
6th Grade Gold Ms. Young 16
6t Grade Mrs. DiPace 2
SEVENTH GRADE HOMERQOM
7t Grade Blue Mrs. Whittington 18
7t Grade Gold Mrs. Torrillo 15
7t Grade Mrs. DiPace 1
EIGHTH GRADE HOMEROOM
8t Grade Blue Mr. Dempster 11
8t Grade Gold Mrs. Druding 11
8t Grade Mrs. DiPace 1

TOTAL COUNT 334

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010 T (609) 387-2200 F (609) 387-4447 beverlycityschool.org
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CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Nurse’s Monthly Report

Date Range: 11/15/2023-12/14/2023

Student Visits: 268

Physicals Processed: 3

Health Screenings Performed: 95

Students Requiring Emergency Services (911): 0

Employee Visits: Estimated 12

Documented Contagious llinesses: 4

Child Study Team Referrals Completed: Screenings completed per request: 2

Other:

Reviewed immunization and physical exams for new/transfer students for school compliance
Significant medical planning for current school year

Ordering and obtaining health office supplies

Communication with parents reqgarding immunization deficiencies
Sent home emergency care plans for completion

Streamlined medical needs into Genesis record system for teacher accessibility and student confidentiality
Facilitated school health clinic visits and medication administration

Medical planning for new/transfer students

Reviewed health forms and secured medications for 23-24 school year

Intake and organization of donated clothing for students

Monitored the weekly activity leve! of COVID in Burl. County

CDRSS tracking system completion — weekly submission
Facilitated SafeSchools training for staff who were non-compliant

Partnered with Sports Paradise to arrange for free Thanksqiving meals be provided to three families within
the district. Pick up 11/19/23
Arranged for four Beverly school families to receive Thanksgiving baskets from the Elks Club of Edgewater
Park. Pick up 11/18/23
Sent one Beverly family of 5 to the Burlington County Bar Association Christmas Party on 12/2/23
Collected and reviewed sports physicals for boys and qirls basketball team and presented to school
physician for approval. Currently 25 athletes approved for the 23-24 season
Medical planning for boys and girls basketball team/educating coaches/Epi-Pen fraining coaches
Submitted Nursing Services Plan to BOE 11/15/23
Arranged for four Beverly school families to receive Holiday baskets from the Elks Club of Edgewater Park
Hosted Virtua Pediatric Mobile Clinic for free Flu vaccines for students. 19 students vaccinated total. Of
those, 14 were Pre-K students who are state mandated to have the vaccine by 12/31/23

Prepared by Alyssa de la Pena, BSN, RN, CSN-NJ

Beverly City School Nurse

601 Bentley Avenue, Beverly, NJ 08010 T (609) 387-2200 F (609) 387-4447  beverlycityschool.org



i Y' SCHOOL DISTRICT

Reporting Form for Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying
HIB CASE #3
AMENDMENT

Dr. Joseph Campisi, Anti-Bullying Coordinator ~ Ms. Chelsea Light, Anti-Bullying Specialist

Note that in order to protect the identities of students and in order to ensure confidentiality, student initials,
rather than names, are used throughout this report.

SUMMARY OF ALLEGATIONS:
|t was reported by NW that JM called NW the “n-word."

FACTUAL FINDINGS OF ANTI-BULLYING SPECIALIST:

The witnesses that initially confirmed that JM called NW the “n-word” came forward on Friday 11/17/23 to
recant their statements. All witnesses reported feeling pressure to substantiate the claim made by NW, but
none of the students actually heard JM use the “n-word."

__Yes, this was harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND/OR INTERVENTIONS:

__No, this case was determined to be non-HIB related or non-actionable HIB!

_X_Results of the investigation were inconclusive
L

Signature of the Superintendent W/ Date /// ZO// ZOZ 3
Board of Education Meeting Date GCﬁVY)ber‘ l 4 2024‘

The Non-actionable HIB means a student engaged
in behavior that may be considered inappropriate,
rude, disrespectful, or unkind, but the behavior does
not violate school HIB guidelines.
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